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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MEBERE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
FTET FET g
Turnover EERE
Retail =& 13,097,720 16,258,416 -19%
Other businesses Hib 2w 1,934,700 1,477,810 +31%
15,032,420 17,736,226 -15%
Profit attributable to equity holders AREERFAA
of the Company JE1E 5 7 544,464 643,533 -15%
Earnings per share BRREF
- Basic - &K 80.4 cents 1l 95.0 cents {lll -15%
- Diluted -#E 80.4 centsfll  95.0 cents il -15%
Dividend per share RS
- Interim — R Ef 5.0 cents 1l 14.0 cents 1l
~ Final - RH 26.0 cents 1l 25.0 cents {1
— Special final - B RIRH 16.0 cents 1l - cents fll
Total dividend per share for the year 2EFGRREARE 47.0 cents 1l 39.0 cents I
Dividend payout ratio” KB E" 39% 41%
Equity attributable to equity holders AREERFAA
of the Company JEIGRER 12,019,114 10,632,385 +13%
Equity per share FiRER $17.7 T $15.7 7T +13%
* Special final dividend excluded " TRERFIRBRE
Turnover Return on equity
Ve EEE RO
E
2020 (SO 1534 15,032 %
2019 16,258 1478/17,736 10 97%
2018 17,130 1,676 | 18,806 8.7%
2017 14,516 2,117 116,633 8 B 1L 74 W
2016 14,045 2,048 116,093
0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000
HKS$'M 6 6.1%
M Retail T Other businesses H fth 275 ‘ BHEET
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 4 4.2%
Year KAEERFBEAERERR
F15
2020 — 544
2019 | 644 2
2018 | 1,012
| | | | |
2017 | 876 0 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
2016 742 Year
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

A year into the pandemic, science and technology seem to be coming
to grips with covid-19. Vaccines are available; but with their efficacy
less than definitive, they are being accepted less speedily than desired.
International travel without lengthy quarantine remains nowhere in
sight.

Beside the pandemic, global geopolitical rivalry is another immense
weight on the mind. One can only hope that the world is not slipping
into another cold-war era.

Back on home ground, | can report that to date the recovery in
Mainland China has been encouraging, but in Hong Kong and Macau
far less so. In Hong Kong, we are still shackled by a few ongoing shop
leases with rental charges far exceeding what the business volume can
sustain. The scarcity of visitors is clearly having a dire impact on the
economy in both Hong Kong and Macau.

E-commerce is growing unabated, but competition is intense and
causing costs to jump. In Hong Kong, online domestic or international
sales have made remarkable progress in 2020. The pandemic has
boosted online shopping of not just staples but even mid- to low- end
jewellery.

Even before the pandemic, we have been working on a system that
will enable us to serve our customers online and offline seamlessly. Our
goal is to allow our customers to shop as they like, and to take delivery
at their convenience. Subject to constraints imposed by customs or tax
boundaries, or by commercial agreements, from our entire inventory our
customers can order finished pieces, or pick a gem and have it set, and
choose the mode of delivery. It will enable us to leverage on our non-
franchised physical shops and our strong e-commerce presence in the
post-pandemic era.

Our securities and futures trading arm is a retail outfit with a risk
profile different from that of our jewellery business. We decided to
close it down, and the cessation process has begun. We have enlisted
brokerage houses to assist our clients to transfer their accounts and
holdings. Many of our staff will be joining them without a break in their
employment. Many of our clients, and many of our staff too, have been
with us a long time. We are thankful for the association and we wish
them all the best.
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

| take this opportunity to thank all our stakeholders for their support
and confidence. Particularly, in the midst of the pandemic, our frontline
staff are the most exposed. | salute them for their dedication and

tenacity in manning their posts in the face of adversity.

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 March 2021
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun, MB, BS, DMRT, aged 87, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He has been with the Group for over 45 years. Dr. CHAN
is a medical doctor in private practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing, SBS, BBS, MBE, JP, aged 74, is an
Executive Director of the Company, the Chairman of the Board, the
Group General Manager and a director of a number of subsidiaries
within the Group. Mr. CHOW is the cousin of Dr. Gerald CHOW King
Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and the father of Ms. Genevieve
CHOW Karwing. He is a director of Everwin Company Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. CHOW has been with the
Group for over 35 years, having been the Group General Manager and
the Chairman since 1998 and 2013 respectively. He is appointed by the
Home Affairs Bureau's to its Advisory Committee on Arts Development
as the Chairman and the Board of Governors of City University of Hong
Kong Foundation as a member. Mr. CHOW was made an Honorary
Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts; and he serves
as a Director of the Board of The Hong Kong International Film Festival
Society Limited, which is a not-for-profit organisation. He is a member
of the Board of Governors and a member of the College Council of the
UOW College Hong Kong.

Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, aged 64, is an Executive Director of
the Company. He is a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company and a director of a number of subsidiaries within the Group.
He has joined the Group for over 35 years. Dr. CHOW is the elder
brother of Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, a cousin of Mr. Vincent
CHOW Wing Shing and an uncle of Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing. He
is a director of Speed Star Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder
of the Company. For community services in Hong Kong, Dr. CHOW is
an expert member of the “Managing World Cities” Programme of the
Faculty of Social Sciences, The University of Hong Kong. He is a panel
member of the Public Affairs Forum under the Home Affairs Bureau,
HKSAR until its cessation of operation in 2018, a former member of
the Central Policy Unit of the Hong Kong Government (2009-2011)
and a former council member of The Better Hong Kong Foundation
(2007-2015). Dr. CHOW also served in the Central and Western District
Fight Crime Committee (2009-2011). He is an honorary member of
the Hong Kong Fire Services Officers’ Mess and the founding President
of the Central and Western District Fire Safety Ambassador Honorary
Presidents’ Association of the Hong Kong Fire Services Department.
Dr. CHOW has been a voting member of the Po Leung Kuk Advisory
Board since 1997. He is also a member of the Bauhinia Foundation
Research Centre and the Hong Kong Strategy.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising),
ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 67, was an Independent Non-executive
Director and the Secretary of the Company until September 2004. He
was re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company on
28 September 2004. Mr. TING is a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He is an independent non-executive director of seven other listed
companies in Hong Kong, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd.,
Tongda Group Holdings Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited,
Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited, Texhong Textile Group
Limited, Dongyue Group Limited and China SCE Group Holdings Limited.
Mr. TING is an accountant in public practice and has more than 40 years
of experience in this field. Currently, he is a partner of Ting Ho Kwan
& Chan, Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam, GBS, OBE, JP, LL.B (Lond.) (Hons), aged 80, is
a Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 26 June 1995 and re-designated as a
Non-executive Director in September 2004. Mr. CHUNG is a solicitor
in practice. Apart from being a China-appointed Attesting Officer and
a Hong Kong Notary Public, he is also an independent non-executive
director of two other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely S E A
Holdings Limited and Datronix Holdings Limited.

Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, aged 63, is an Executive Director
of the Company, the Group Deputy General Manager and a director
of a number of subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. CHOW has been
with the Group since 1984 (except 1988 to 1992) and has become the
Group Deputy General Manager since 1995. Mr. CHOW is the younger
brother of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, a cousin of Mr. Vincent CHOW
Wing Shing and an uncle of Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing. He has
experience in real estate in Canada. Mr. CHOW's key responsibilities
include the product development and staff learning and development
of the Group's jewellery business in Greater China. He is the Chairman
of Jewellery Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council, a Vice-chairman of the Quality Tourism Services Association,
an Executive Committee member of the Hong Kong Retail Management
Association and a member of the Jewellery Industry Training Advisory
Committee under the Qualifications Framework of the Education
Bureau.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Ka Lun, FCCA, aged 66, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, and the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 28 September 2004. Mr. LEE is an accountant by
profession and has over 25 years of experience in banking and auditing.
He was the Regional Deputy Chief Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc and
Regional Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB's operations
in Asia for over 15 years and has extensive experience in corporate
banking, private banking, treasury, operations, IT developments and
general management. He serves as an independent non-executive
director of five other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely Yuexiu
Property Company Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited (“Chong Hing"),
Medicskin Holdings Limited, Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited
and Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited. Mr. LEE is also an independent
non-executive director of Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited, a holding
company of Chong Hing.

Dr. LO King Man, SBS, BBS, MBE, JP, FRSA, FHKU, UFHKPU, FHKAPA,
DocHKAPA, Cavaliere (Order of Merit, Italy), Chevalier (Order of Arts
and Letters, France), aged 83, is an Independent Non-executive Director,
a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 28 September
2004. Following a career in higher education management, Dr. LO held
appointments as Director of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing
Arts during 1993 to 2004 and as Principal of the Canton International
Summer Music Academy established by the Guangdong Government
during 2004 to 2009. His public service included vice-chairmanship of
the former Urban Council and membership of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Basic Law Consultative Committee, Examination
Authority, Broadcasting Authority, Vocational Training Council and Arts
Development Council. He has served on governing boards of numerous
educational and cultural organisations. Dr. LO is the Chairman of the
Hong Kong Arts Festival Programme Committee and the Vice Chairman
of the Hong Kong Arts Festival Executive Committee. Dr. LO is also the
Director-general of Musica Viva Limited. He is an independent non-
executive director of another listed company in Hong Kong - Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung, OBE, JP, aged 75, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 17 December 2012. Mr. LAU is a qualified
electrical engineer, and a member of The Institution of Engineering
and Technology, United Kingdom, and with a postgraduate degree of
Master of Science from the University of Surrey, England. He has more
than 30 years of management and marketing experience, particularly in
the textile and apparel field. Mr. LAU is the managing director of The
Polyfabrics (Hong Kong) Limited. He was appointed as a member to
vice-chairman of the Urban Council from 1978 to 1995. Mr. LAU was
also appointed as a member of various committees, boards, and panels,
namely the Textiles Advisory Board, the Trade and Industry Advisory
Board, the Administrative Appeals Board, the Air Transport Licensing
Authority, the Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning), the Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance), the Broadcasting Authority, etc. He also
served as a Council Member of The University of Hong Kong from 1985
to 1997. Mr. LAU is active in several charitable organisations and in
Chiu Chow community associations.

Mr. Morison CHAN Chi Kong, FCPA, FCCA, FCS, FCG, CFA, MBA,
aged 53, is the Company Secretary of the Company and the Group's
Chief Financial Officer. Mr. CHAN joined the Group in February 2020
and has over 30 years of experience in accounting, auditing, corporate
finance and management. Mr. CHAN is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA"), the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and the Chartered Governance Institute, and
a Chartered Financial Analyst. He is the past Chairman of ACCA Hong
Kong. Mr. CHAN is currently a member of the Professional Development
Sub-committee of ACCA Hong Kong and the Accountancy Training
Board.

Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing, aged 36, joined the Group in 2010
and is the Group's General Manager of Omni-channel Development.
She leads the Group's e-Commerce business and is responsible for the
development of strategic initiatives to better position the Company to
deliver a holistic omni-channel shopping experience. Since 2018, Ms. CHOW
is also Brand Director of EMPHASIS and PROMESSA, overseeing their
branding, business development and product management. Ms. CHOW
holds a dual Bachelor of Arts Degree in Science of Earth Systems and
Economics from Cornell University. She is a GIA Applied Jewellery
Professional (A.J.P.) and GIA Diamonds Graduate. Ms. CHOW is a
daughter of Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing and a niece of both Dr. Gerald
CHOW King Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAU Hak Bun, aged 68, is the Group’s General Manager — Retail
Operations (Greater China). Mr. LAU has been with the Group for over
50 years. He is well-experienced in sales management. Apart from
managing the retail operations in Hong Kong and Macau, Mr. LAU is
also responsible for the development of operational strategies in Greater
China. He also serves as the Vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Jewellers’
& Goldsmiths’ Association Ltd. and the Chairman of The Kowloon Pearls,
Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association.

Ms. Susan MAK Wei Yee, FCCA, CPA, aged 64, is the General
Manager of Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited. Ms. MAK joined the
Group in 2001 and has over 40 years of experience in accounting,
banking and finance. Ms. MAK is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

The covid-19 pandemic has been battering economies worldwide
since early 2020. Border controls, restrictions on crowd gathering
resulting in cancellation of wedding celebrations caused significant
disruptions to the Group’s jewellery business. The pandemic has
brought unprecedented challenges to our retailing business, causing
quarterly revenue to drop 45% year-on-year in the first quarter of 2020.
Nonetheless, revenue decline started to narrow from the second quarter
on. Our jewellery and watch sales in Mainland China regained its growth
momentum in the second half of 2020. In Hong Kong and Macau, with
the almost total absence of tourists, our 2020 jewellery and watch sales
dropped 34%. Remarkable growth in watch sales partly offset the hit.

International gold price rose strongly in the first half of 2020 and dipped
from its August peak. Surge in gold price hindered gold jewellery sales
but helped margin enhancement. The Group recognised impairment
losses on right-of-use assets arising from some Hong Kong jewellery
stores with declined sales, as well as margin loans arising from our
securities and futures broking business.

The Group's consolidated turnover for 2020 decreased by 15% to
HK$15,032 million. Profit attributable to equity holders decreased by
15% to HK$544 million.

Retail of Jewellery and Watches

Analysis by Geographical Area

Retail Turnover

TEERE

2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

Analysis by Geographical Area (continued)

Mainland China

Hong Kong and Macau
Taiwan =
Total At

Mainland China

P EARE
&t RORM

EEEAWMRDM

REREZTE(R)
BHE S (E)
Segment revenue Segment results
7 EP U iR e
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BBERT AEETL +- HEBT A@ABEL +-
8,686 9,688 -10% 1,213 1,095 +11%
4,261 6,436 -34% (310) 180 -272%
151 134 +13% 12 7 +71%
13,098 16,258 -19% 915 1,282 -29%
FEIA

Revenue fell 29% vyear-on-year in the first half of the year, but
rebounded 10% in the second half, thanks to the easing of the covid-19
situation and sales from store expansion. Segment results were up
11% from the previous year, benefiting from the margin enhancement
brought by the surge in gold price, as well as the accelerated growth in
business conducted through Personalised Jewellery Service.

67%

Mainland China Sales Mix
TEAMEEERS

2019 2020 Products ZEm

62%

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

Analysis by Geographical Area (continued)

Mainland China (continued)

2020 1H vs 2019 1H

EEEAWMRDM

REREZTE(R)
BHE S (E)
FEIALE ()

2020 2H vs 2019 2H 2020 FY vs 2019 FY

2020 F EHFE 2020 F T HFE 2020 F2F

Same Store Sales (i3] 53] [3g2)
Growth (“SSSG") FEHEE R 2019 F E¥FE 2019 FTNHFE 2019 24
Gold jewellery and ~ H&HMKER

products -38% -5% -23%
Gem-set jewellery ERUE 21% 2% -11%
Watches Ei +27% +159% +91%
Overall e -32% +1% -16%

. Overall SSSG was narrowed from -45% in the first quarter to
-13% in the second quarter. With the pandemic coming under
control, SSSG quickly returned to +1% in the second half.

. Rising gold price deterred buyers in the first half. Sales were
stabilised in the second half as gold price retreated after its
August peak.

. Our Personalised Jewellery Service business continued to grow
strongly, supporting gem-set jewellery sales.

. Our watch sales on the Mainland benefitted as consumers, unable
to travel outside the country, lavished their spending on the
domestic market.

Hong Kong and Macau

2020 revenue was down 34% year-on-year. Jewellery sales were greatly
influenced by the lack of visitors and wedding cancellations. Sales
across all products except watches took a major downturn. The negative
segment results were primarily due to operating deleverage on lower
sales volume and impairment losses of HK$170 million recognised on
right-of-use assets arising from some jewellery stores in a prolonged loss
situation. Government aid of HK$79 million and rental relief of HK$58
million were received which offset part of the loss.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

Analysis by Geographical Area (continued)

EEEAWMRDM

REREZTE(R)
BRI ()

Hong Kong and Macau (continued)

ZEREF](E)

Hong Kong and Macau Sales Mix

BERERAMHELAS

2019 2020 Products ZEm

Gold jewellery and products &= & &5 M E M

Gem-set jewellery SER K E

Platinum/Karat gold jewellery $A% /K& #5m

Watches $5%

0,
63% 61%

2020 1H vs 2019 1H

2020 2H vs 2019 2H

2020 FY vs 2019 FY

2020 F EHFE 2020 F THEE 2020 F&F
i) Lt i)
SSSG L SHEHE & 2019 F ¥ FE 2019 FFHFE 2019 2 4F
Gold jewellery and ~ ZE&#id &
products -48% -25% -37%
Gem-set jewellery BERKE -70% -44% -60%
Watches ik -5% +35% +14%
Overall B -47% -19% -34%
e Sales were hit hard by the pandemic in the first half, then eased e  HFEHEXIERBER ME=

slightly in the third quarter. Year-on-year decline in the second
half eased as 2019 had a lower base caused by social unrest.

The outbreak of the fourth wave of the pandemic in late
November 2020 and tightened crowd control measures hit local
consumption again.

According to provisional figures from Hong Kong Census and
Statistics Department, number of marriages in 2020 was down
36.4% year-on-year, which damped the demand for jewellery
products.

As in Mainland China, robust sales of Rolex watches helped ease
the pain.

Taiwan

The pandemic has had a smaller impact in Taiwan than in other regions
where our retail stores were operating. Benefitting from solid internal
consumption, turnover increased by 13% to HK$151 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN @D

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued) KEREZRSE(HE)
Store Network A
As at As at
31.12.2019 31.12.2020
Region %2019 & Opening Closure Net change | #2020 F
HE 128318 HE g% =Y 2[4 128318
Chow Sang Sang | A44 561 +62 -32 +30 591
[AEE BEE 0 +10 0 +10 10
HHE o EF HE o FF
(Qasis by Chow
Sang Sang)
Mainland China
_ Rolex/Tudor Bht,/ w8 13 0 1 -1 12
- Bht/wh
MINTYGREEN MINTYGREEN 25 +3 -3 0 25
EMPHASIS EMPHASIS 7 +6 -1 +5 12
PROMESSA PROMESSA 0 +2 0 +2 2
MARCO BICEGO MARCO BICEGO 0 +1 0 +1 1
Sub-total; Nzt 606 +84 -37 +47 653
Chow Sang Sang | A£4 49 0 1 1 48
Hong Kong Rolex/Tudor ght/wh 12 0 0 0 12
& EMPHASIS EMPHASIS 4 +1 1 0 4
PROMESSA PROMESSA 0 +1 0 +1 1
Sub-total; /JN&t : 65 +2 -2 0 65
Macau 2B 2B 5 +1 -2 -1 4
pidl
Sub-total; /]N&t 5 +1 =) -1 4
Taiwan BEM BEMD 24 +1 0 +1 25
=
=" PROMESSA PROMESSA 0 +1 0 +1 1
Sub-total; /]N&t - 24 +2 0 +2 26
Total: &3t : 700 +89 -4 +48 748
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

Store Network (continued)

Chow Sang Sang/&f& .3

During the year, 72 new Chow Sang Sang stores were opened in
Mainland China and a total of 32 stores were closed. 53 of the
new stores were located in shopping malls.

In September 2020, we launched our line of shops with the
moniker “ £ 4 « JEF " (Oasis by Chow Sang Sang) in Beijing,
PRC. In order to blend into residential neighbourhoods, this line
of shops is fitted out in a relaxed, “corner-store” style and carries
themed products lines. Total number of stores increased to 10 at
the end of the year.

In Hong Kong, one Chow Sang Sang store, located in Tsuen Wan,
was closed.

There was a net decrease of one BifE & store in Macau during the
year.

We added one more 248 & store in New Taipei City, Taiwan.

PROMESSA

PROMESSA is the name of our signature collection of engagement
rings and wedding bands, which we now promote on its own in a
specialty store designed to evoke an atmosphere suited for making
a proposal of marriage.

The first PROMESSA store was launched in Chongging in May
2020. Three other PROMESSA stores were then opened in
Shanghai, PRC, Tsimshatsui, Hong Kong and Hsinchu City, Taiwan.

EMPHASIS

EMPHASIS aims to define the new daily wear jewellery.

Store number has a net increase of 5 to 16 to get connected with
customers who love originality and creativity.

MARCO BICEGO

MARCO BICEGO is an Italian jewellery brand featuring artisanal
craftsmanship and contemporary design concepts.

We have been distributing these all-Italian-made art pieces in our
network since 2000. The first MARCO BICEGO specialty store was
opened in Beijing in May 2020.

MINTYGREEN

MINTYGREEN is an affordable daily wear brand that makes items
suitable for younger generation to wear every day.

All MINTYGREEN stores are located in Mainland China and store
number stood at 25 at the end of 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAWMRDM

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued) KERERTE(E)
Chow Sang Sang Omni-Channel Retailing BEEEEETE
On-line Sales RLEHE
2020 2019

On-line Sales BHI5E D HK$'M HK$'M
by Market mEHE BEER BEET +%
Mainland China SICTPN 1,546 1,532 +1%
Hong Kong, Taiwan &% « Z/& & E At

and Others 68 36 +89%

For e-commerce in the Mainland market, we have set up flagship
stores on the main platforms Tmall, JD, VIP as well as smaller ones
operated by banks and other entities. In addition, we have our
own online stores.

Mainland China online sales were steady in spite of covid-19 and
accounted for about 18% of our Mainland China sales (2019:
16%).

For Hong Kong and beyond, we operate our online stores in Hong
Kong and Taiwan. We work with HKTVmall, Lazada and Amazon.

Global pandemic has solidified the demand for e-commerce. 2020
online sales to Hong Kong, Taiwan and other markets were almost
double that of 2019.

Omni-Remote Sales

2020 was a year of milestone significance in respect of Chow Sang
Sang omni-channel retailing. It has become the new phenomenon:
customers browse and purchase products online, and shop across
physical stores and e-commerce platforms.

With Omni-Remote Sales, we can offer a wider variety of products
from both physical store network and distribution centres.

Personalised Jewellery Service is ideal model which is
complementary to and synergistic with omni-channel retailing.
Customers can create customised pieces by using designated
applications online or with the help of our sales professionals in
store, visit any Chow Sang Sang physical store to feel and touch
the jewellery, and collect the tailor-made jewellery via in-store
pickup or door-to-door delivery.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

Chow Sang Sang Omni-Channel Retailing (continued)

Omni-Remote Sales (continued)

o In February 2020, we introduced our Star Concierge Service,
which empowers our store staff with the communication tools to
judiciously approach their customers and guide them to conclude
sales.

. Omni-Remote Sales include sales generated from e-commerce
platforms, Star Concierge Service and other remote sales
concluded out of in-person branch environment or with remote
inventory. As a percentage to total sales in Mainland China, 2020
sales surged to 32% (2019: 21%).

Products and Marketing

o Personalised Jewellery Service offers high degree of personalisation
and seamless 020 experience to our customers. We have
continued to optimise our product offering and enhance customer
experience, including launch of more variety of products,
introduction of patented ring with adjustable shank for try-on and
addition of sales mini-programs in various e-commence platforms.

o Diamond jewellery sales from this service for the Group surged
over 300% to HK$536 million, representing 23% of corresponding
sales (2019: 5%).

o Customers are still eager for value-preserving and hard-to-find
consumer products on the market. Rolex sales growth in 2020 has
been remarkable. We also added a new category of gold ingot
products in Hong Kong to meet the needs of customers who
treasure craftsmanship as well as product value as investment.

. Chow Sang Sang takes inspiration from Chinese culture and
portrays the classic elements with modern artistry. Collections
steeped in Chinese heritage and aesthetics have been well-
received by the market.

. The Group participated in 10 wedding expos in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Taiwan in 2020 to attract young couple clientele.

. We organised over 4,600 hours of live streaming shows on various
e-commerce platforms in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Wholesale of Precious Metals

Although gold wholesale business contracted slightly, sales of other
metals achieved satisfactory growth. 2020 turnover was up 31% to
HK$1,885 million and segment operating profit increased to HK$11
million.

Securities and Futures Broking

IPO fundraising and securities transactions in Hong Kong were active
in 2020, with average daily turnover up 49% compared to 2019.
Commission income from securities and futures broking business
increased by 45% to HK$35 million.

Nevertheless, in January 2021, the Board came to the decision to wind
down the operation of the securities and futures broking business and
it is expected that it will cease its operations in May 2021. The Board
believes that the cessation will have no material adverse impact on the
operations of the Group, but will conserve resources for the better
development of its jewellery business.

The Group has initiated legal proceedings in the Court of First Instance
of the High Court of Hong Kong by issuing writs of summons on 1
February 2021 against some customers (the “Default Customers”)
who defaulted on the payment of commission fees and margin facility
interests and/or the repayment of margin loans, their respective
guarantors and the introducer who referred those customers to the
Group.

Provisions for impairment losses totalling HK$44 million and HK$446
million were made on loans due from the Default Customers for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 respectively. As at 31
December 2020, total loans due from the Default Customers (being part
of receivables arising from securities and futures broking conducted
in the ordinary course of business in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements) and corresponding total credit loss allowance
on such receivables amounted to HK$711 million and HK$490 million
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Investments

Investment Properties

The Group holds various properties with a total carrying value of
HK$333 million for rental purpose. Rental income from investment
properties amounted to HK$11 million, which is less than 1% of the
Group's turnover.

Shares in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEC”)

The Group's investment in 3,326,800 shares or 0.26% of HKEC is of
strategic nature and is the remaining part of the distribution received
from the reorganisation of the then exchanges in the year 2000. Such
investment was carried at fair value of HK$1,414 million, representing
8.4% of the Group's total assets as at 31 December 2020.

During the year, the Group received dividends in the amount of HK$24
million and recorded a gain of HK$611 million recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of fair value change of the Group's
financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Also, the Group sold 235,000 shares in HKEC. The disposal
enables the Group to realise cash and unlock the value in its investment
in HKEC at fair market value. The accumulated gain recognised in other
comprehensive income of HK$101 million was transferred to retained
profits.

Capital Expenditure

The Group incurred capital expenditure of HK$244 million of which
HK$200 million was spent on new openings and refitting of stores.

Finance

Financial Position and Liquidity

The Group generates strong recurring cashflow from its retailing
business and continues to enjoy a solid cash position. As at 31
December 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$1,654
million (2019: HK$1,028 million). Cash is mostly held in Renminbi or
Hong Kong dollar and deposited in leading banks with maturity dates
falling within one year.

The Group was well supported by over HK$6,222 million in banking
facilities including bank borrowings and bullion loans, out of which
HK$782 million are committed facilities. As at 31 December 2020, the
total unutilised banking facilities amounted to HK$4,083 million (2019:
HK$3,992 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance (continued)

Financial Position and Liquidity (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, total bank borrowings and bullion loans
amounted to HK$1,080 million and HK$1,002 million respectively, most
of which were unsecured in accordance with the Group's policy. The
weighted average tenure of bank borrowings is around three years. The
gearing ratio was 17.3%, based on total bank borrowings and bullion
loans of HK$2,082 million as a percentage of total equity of HK$12,019 million.
The current ratio of the Group was 3.5.

The Group manages risk of credit cost and availability by several
means: cultivating relationship with a large number of lending banks;
diversifying the funding sources by engaging a number of local and
overseas banks; putting some loans on a term basis; and fixing interest
costs on loans as appropriate. The Group had 27% of its bank loans
at fixed rates as at 31 December 2020, decreased from 32% as at
31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, outstanding derivatives on the books were
mainly bullion contracts for hedging the bullion price exposure.
Management monitors the hedging policy closely and the hedging level
of the Group is approximately 40% of the total gold inventories.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group's assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses are mostly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US dollar. As such, the
risk is easily manageable and slight. Simultaneously, the Group maintains
an appropriate level of foreign currency borrowings for natural hedge
and cross currency swaps, to mitigate foreign exchange exposure. As at
31 December 2020, the borrowing denominated in New Taiwan dollar
amounted to NT$100 million.

Charge on Assets, Lease Liabilities and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, listed equity investments of HK$850 million
(2019: HK$784 million) were pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had lease liabilities of HK$1,001 million
(2019: HK$1,300 million) and had no material contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Human Resources

The Group maintains its long-established performance-based
remuneration policies with a discretionary annual performance bonus.
Training has been provided to new and existing staff at a pace
commensurate with the expansion of the networks in all territories.

On 11 June 2020, the shareholders of the Company approved and
adopted a new share option scheme and terminated the share option
scheme adopted on 7 December 2010. The new share option scheme
is to provide incentives or rewards to eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group and enabling the Group to attract and retain
valuable employees. Details of the schemes are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the total number of employees of the Group
was 10,109, of whom 8,453 in Mainland China, 1,474 in Hong Kong
and Macau, and 182 in Taiwan. During the year ended 31 December
2020, total staff costs amounted to HK$1,401 million.

Outlook

Stepping into 2021, overseas visitors to Hong Kong remained at zero,
and crowd control measures continued to halt most wedding plans.
China’s pace to rebuilding its economy under covid-19 and the ongoing
China-US friction is of paramount importance to the world’s economic
recovery and our business outlook. With global vaccinations underway,
we have seen encouraging surges in consumer spending in our major
markets during the Chinese New Year period.

The pandemic has pushed people to change and adopt digitalisation.
It is now well accepted that the real and virtual market places are
converging. Based on our system comprising finely segmented brands,
two e-commerce centres and multiple platforms, more than 700
physical stores all self-owned and operated, an intelligent fulfilment
centre coupled with a manufacturing facility in Shunde, we are uniquely
positioned to offer our customers a seamless shopping experience.
Going forward, we will continue to optimise our omni-channel retailing
ecosystem. These tasks include further integration of multi-brand
store network with digital platforms, upgrading retail management
system and engaging customers with quality products and services.
Our customers can shop whenever they want, from wherever they are,
choose a product from our national inventory or have one made from
our inventory of gems and settings, and take delivery at home or from
virtually any store.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESBEERAERARA

EEEAWMRDM

ANER

AEBRBETZCEARRAR/EENH
MK TRENBENFREERS - [
MABNMAARE TREEI - KESARE
B&D EREREROTXK

20206 A 118 ARARREBEBNIER
MFTEE AT B AR IERR 20105 12 A7 H
R BRERE - ERETEIREGE
R2EARBSHAEEELERG T
B E - URFEAREEERSWHE L
BEEEMNES - ZiTelFBaRGAMK
HEMTFE3S -

202012 8318 R"EEHAE10,109
fIEE HP8 453 AT B AMEMES
T 1 474%ATBMBMMEET UKk
1Q2HREEHMEET - BIZ2020F 12 A

NALEE  #ETIHYA1401BER
ﬁo
RE

BA2021F - BINGBRRETS  MA

MERBREES KB BERHEFE -

LB 118
REABEE2019BRRSEBE FTEELE
BT ARBEENPEER  HitRE

TTE =

BEENBMNEBAREHER - BE
EMETRERRE  REOHE BMAE
BERMOEIBMSHIRT < ASENHE
BiERK -

REREAPISNEMRBELCRIEK -]
EARRRBNE  BEMSNERTHIE
ERA - ERRANZRAZERLAD
Wi MEEFROMZETE BB
TOOREEERE - RURIBENE LK
EROMEEREEN  ERBERRME
REVERITMASBERENES - REKR
K BABKERL2RETELRE -
BLTHEBRE-SERZmED EBRK
HYHYE RATEEERGE  RUE
EMERERERIIBE - HAIOBERR]
MBS BEREY) - HRPEBIENERFS
EEEM IMRMANEFFHREEAE
BRAE BUAERXEARP R
FERA—RDIEER

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
2020 F %k



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Outlook (continued)

We realised that offline and online channels share the same importance
in achieving success. 2020 has been a milestone in the context of
Chow Sang Sang multi-brand implementation. We added three more
categories of stores, namely PROMESSA, 44 + JEF (Oasis by Chow
Sang Sang) and MARCO BICEGO. PROMESSA is the line of stores that
is devoted to our signature collections of engagement rings, wedding
bands and related merchandise. Our mainline store brand is Chow Sang
Sang. These stores are fully scaled, carrying all our lines of merchandise.
We have evolved a new line of stores bearing the moniker £ 4 « JEF
(Oasis by Chow Sang Sang) as a subtext to Chow Sang Sang. This line
of stores is fitted out in a relaxed,” corner-store”style designed to blend
into residential neighbourhoods. They are generally smaller than the
mainline stores and they typically carry products following one of three
themes: culture, lifestyle and romance. We envisage that by means of
this line we can speed up the expansion of our network’s geographical
coverage and deepen our penetration of the lower-tiered cities in
Mainland China. In Hong Kong, we will continue to adjust our store
network to better serve local customers. We plan to open a total of
some 100 stores in 2021 in accordance with our multi-brand strategy.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are active in the field of the manufacture and retail of
jewellery, distribution of watches, wholesale of precious metals,
and securities and futures broking. Details of the principal activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 72 to 192.

An interim dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on
24 September 2020. The Directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK26.0 cents per ordinary share and a special final dividend
of HK16.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
10 June 2021.

Business Review

A fair review and the outlook of the Group's business are provided
in the Chairman’s Message on pages 3 and 4 and the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 to 22 of this annual report. Details
of the significant event of the Group after reporting period are set
out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements. Certain financial
key performance indicators are provided in the Financial Highlights on
page 2.

An account of the Group's key relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers as well as the principal risks and uncertainties
of the Group are shown in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
50 to 62.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations are
included in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages
33 to 49.

The above review constitutes part of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set
out below. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.

LERERBE

TXEIAEBBEREMBRFELEA
mEE BENBBZHZ(DHEALSE
BEAMBRELIEEBERENIER) -
L BY IEREERGE RN BRE L —

#o o

Results
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT FHET FET FET FET
Turnover ]
Retail & 13,097,720 16,258,416 17,130,414 14,516,326 14,045,322
Other businesses H 5% 1,934,700 1,477,810 1,675,928 2,117,055 2,047,215
15,032,420 17,736,226 18,806,342 16,633,381 16,092,537
Operating profit Eovingl 920,920 883,291 1,322,406 1,132,949 996,055
Share of profits of i NG|
associates, net A FHE - - 245 4,550 4,207
Profit before tax BB A& A 920,920 883,291 1,322,651 1,137,499 1,000,262
Income tax FTig i (376,456)  (239,758)  (310,394)  (261,081)  (258,086)
Profit for the year AARIERFAA
attributable to equity FE(EE R F
holders of the Company 544,464 643,533 1,012,257 876,418 742,176
Assets and Liabilities
EEREE
As at 31 December
R12A831H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 16,826,467 16,236,438 13,838,036 13,670,115 12,201,400
Total liabilities BmafE (4,807,353) (5,604,053) (3,419,099) (3,545,040) (3,163,502)
12,019,114 10,632,385 10,418,937 10,125,075 9,037,898

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED @ ANNUAL REPORT 2020

AEESEBREREAERAQA

2020 F #



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$2,136,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively. Further
details of the Group's properties are set out on pages 193 to 196 of this
annual report.

Share Capital

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the share option schemes as set out below, there was no
equity-linked agreement entered into by the Company during the year.

Share Option Schemes

On 11 June 2020, the shareholders of the Company approved and
adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) and
terminated the share option scheme adopted on 7 December 2010 (the
“Old Scheme").

A summary of the Old Scheme and the New Scheme, and details of the
movements in share options of the Company under the Old Scheme
and the New Scheme during the year are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Emolument Policy

The long-established performance-based emolument policy for
the employees of the Group operates on the basis of rewarding
performance, with appropriate consideration on experience and
prevailing industry practices.

The Company determines the emoluments of the Directors on the
basis of the comparable companies, time commitment, responsibilities,
employment conditions, the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 10 respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out the guideline on declaring and recommending the
payment of dividends.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into account,
inter alia, the following factors:

financial results;

cash flow situation;

business conditions and strategies;

future operations and earnings;

capital requirements and expenditure plans;

interests of shareholders;

any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The Company intends to distribute between 30% to 40% of the
Group's annual consolidated net profits as dividends to its shareholders.
The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to
time.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, amounted to HK$1,947,293,000, of
which HK$176,133,000 and HK$108,389,000 have been proposed as
final dividend and special final dividend respectively for the year. The
Board considers it appropriate to distribute special final dividend in
recognition of shareholders’ support.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 68% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 35%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close associates
or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun*

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam

Mr. LEE Ka Lun*

Dr. LO King Man*

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung*

*  Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing, Dr. CHAN Bing Fun and
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam shall retire by rotation at the 2021 annual general
meeting (the “2021 AGM") pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws. All
the retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the 2021 AGM.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2021 AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management up to the
date of this report are set out on pages 5 to 9 of this annual report.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

Save as detailed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or his connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of
the year.

Management Contracts

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts relating to the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or in existence during
the year.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company's bye-laws and subject to the provisions of the
statutes, every Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2020 which is still in force.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors in the issued
share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions:

EEnkOzER

M2020F 128318 SEFNARFL
HHzB(EEA(BEHFRBER)E
XVE)BEBETRAS  #H(BHLBEK
BI)E 352 A RRATIRIF 2 AR
B BB LMBTAESETELRRS
MEETFR([BEETA ) MEREARE R

EBHARHHERAAN(HRN)AH
2T
R

Number of shares held

BREE
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate Trustee percentage of
interest  interest interest interest Total  shareholding
BRERD
Name of Directors ESfg BARR ZBER DR BREAER it Aot
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing KB &4 - - - 136,271,595 " 136,271,595 20.12
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing R E & 960,000 70,398 74,995,996 7 - 76,026,394 11.22
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing BrkEE 28,681,104 52,800 7 142443167 32,616,000 " 75,594,220 11.16
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun RRBBE 1,320,000 - - - 1,320,000 0.19

Note:

@ Pplease refer to the notes in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’

and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares

and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of those persons in the issued
share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:

TERRREMATRERO REERD 2
B

2020F 12 8318 BEB(EARHPE
BHIE 33615 ARBIATREZEZ S
MasrRBEEARRB D EITRAANL 2
ey NN

Long positions: #A
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity shares held shareholding
FREMY
=L 54 KREE Bk
Everwin Company Limited Beneficial Owner 120,000,000 @ 17.71
ERFAA
Speed Star Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner and Interest of 74,995,996 ¥ 11.07
Controlled Corporation
BB ANRENRR 2 R
Schroders plc Investment Manager 54,052,447 © 7.98
REBEA
Happy Family Limited Beneficial Owner 53,909,932 “ 7.96
REXKERR LA ERREA
Notes: Wit
(1) 136,271,595 shares in the Company were held by a discretionary trust of (1) —EREETHFALRRF 136,271,595 K%
which Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was the beneficiary. The trustee Bln - BKKEERZETZZBA o 1M

of the trust was Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited, which held the
interests in the Company through the following companies:

Name of companies
RE]ETE

Everwin Company Limited

Golden Court Limited

Accordingly, Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited was deemed to have
interests in the 136,271,595 shares. Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was
deemed to have interests in the 136,271,595 shares in the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

)

70,398 shares and 52,800 shares in the Company were held by the
respective spouse of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing.

60,751,680 shares in the Company were held by Speed Star Holdings
Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
and his spouse.

14,244,316 shares in the Company were held by Eimoling Company
Limited, in which Speed Star Holdings Limited and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing owned 44.5% of the equity interest respectively.

32,616,000 shares in the Company were held by CWS Holdings
Limited, a company beneficially owned by a discretionary trust of which
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing was the founder and one of the
beneficiaries. The trustee of the trust was UBS TC (Jersey) Ltd. and,
accordingly, it was deemed to have interests in the 32,616,000 shares in
the Company.

Accordingly, Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and his spouse were deemed
to have interests in the 75,066,394 shares and 75,955,996 shares in the
Company respectively. Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and his spouse were
deemed to have interests in the 46,913,116 shares and 75,541,420 shares
in the Company respectively.

Schroders plc through its subsidiaries, namely Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited, Schroder Investment Management
(Singapore) Ltd, Schroder Investment Management Limited and Schroder
& Co (Asia) Limited, held 33,129,447 shares, 16,269,000 shares,
4,592,000 shares and 62,000 shares in the Company respectively, and was
accordingly deemed to be interested in the respective shares held by the
aforesaid companies.

53,909,932 shares in the Company were held by Happy Family Limited, in
which the late Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling had a 20% equity interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person, other than
the Directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares” above, had registered an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group did not have any connected transactions
which were subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the year and
up to the date of this report.

Event after the Reporting Period

Save as disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements,
there is no significant event of the Group after the reporting period and
up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire, and being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the 2021 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 March 2021
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group complies with the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Reporting Guide published by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "HKEx ESG Guide”). The main purpose of this report
is to disclose the Group’s current management approach, strategies
and performance in social and environmental responsibility as well as its
vision for sustainable development strategies.

This report covers our performance for the year ended 31 December
2020. Unless specified otherwise, all policies and management systems
described in this report refer to our manufacturing and retailing
of luxury products in Greater China. ESG performance indicators
reported in this report cover our main operations in Hong Kong and
Mainland China unless specified otherwise. Revenue contribution and
the associated ESG impacts are the primary factors in defining the
reporting boundary. The operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China
contributed the majority of our total revenue. As our operations have
continued to expand, the number of retail stores included in this report
has also been increased.

The Group follows all four Reporting Principles in the HKEx ESG Guide,
namely materiality, quantitative, consistency and balance, in preparing
the ESG report. This report prioritises and details the issues deemed
important from the perspectives of our stakeholders and business. In
addition to policy and programme descriptions, performance data of the
current and previous years and corresponding narratives are provided
for more comprehensive account of our ESG management. We adopt
the same methodologies to derive the disclosed data unless otherwise
specified.

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group's ESG strategy and
reporting while our management is responsible for implementing ESG
management and objectives.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group has established various means to communicate with internal
and external stakeholders comprising employees, customers, investors,
suppliers, trade associations, institutions and charitable organisations
that we support. The channels used to communicate with these
stakeholders include online questionnaires, interviews, feedback forms
and courtesy visits.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Materiality Analysis

The Group reviews the feedback from stakeholders periodically to
evaluate the materiality of the ESG topics in an ongoing manner. It has
conducted a focused stakeholder engagement exercise, with the purpose
to identify material aspects within different subject areas. Stakeholders
were invited to assess the importance of various ESG aspects with
reference to the HKEx ESG Guide. The issues deemed material were
reviewed and endorsed by the Board and management for their relative
materiality and priorities.

The result of the exercise prioritised ESG subject areas and aspects in
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RMBBEFNERBEINRE HEk
E/D?H%Wjﬁgiﬁiﬁ HekEnsEsEE
EZMELHTG AEFGRERER
J&ﬁ&mﬁﬁa%f@ EEUREXF -

AMERBBEEELEAFBTIARERR

the following order:

ERNRE HekEARZBNEKELE

[ER Ol

Subject Area
TEHE

Most Material Aspects within the Subject Area
ETBRAEENSE

Social — Operating practices
g - ZETH

Social - Employment and labour practices
e - ERRSITE

Environmental
RIE

Social - Community
e -HE

Ensuring service and product quality
BRRERERER
Protecting customer data

REEPEH

Providing a safe working environment
REZ2TERE
Ensuring employees’ occupational safety and health

ERESNBEZ2HEZE

Energy and wastewater management

R K EEKER

Contribution to community development

HEEROTR

While we strive for overall balance in the disclosure of the Group's ESG
initiatives and performance, emphasis will be placed on issues which are
considered more material to our business.

Operating Practices

The Group is committed to ensuring that its products are of premium
quality, obtained through verified and ethical sources and that processes
are well controlled to prevent the occurrences of corrupt practice. We
were not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group, concerning
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress during the year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices (continued)

Product Responsibility and Service Quality

The Group has systems in place to ensure that all products marketed
are monitored for (a) the fineness and veracity of materials; (b) the
presence of toxic elements as prescribed by national standards; and (c)
conformance with our defined levels of workmanship.

Management protocols in place define the testing methods and
sampling procedures for different products and materials. Tests using
both surface spectrometric and destructive methods are done by the
Group's externally-accredited laboratories located in Hong Kong and
Shunde. Workmanship inspection is conducted at several stages on all
products as they go through the supply chain. With the stringent quality
assurance process, there were no records of products sold or shipped
subject to recall for safety and health reasons during the year (2019:
Nil).

Management has established policies to ensure that the advertising
and labelling of our products are in line with applicable laws and
regulations. Moreover, in conformance with the Group’s Code of
Conduct, management has systems in place to ensure that intellectual
property rights, both our own and of other parties, are observed and
respected in our business dealings.

The Group attaches importance to the interests of our customers in the
context of applicable legal provisions. Should there be any enquiries
or complaints, the Group has a dedicated team of customer relations
personnel for quick response. Customers can reach the team via various
channels, including:

D service hotlines;

LIVE CHAT; and

social media platforms including Facebook, Weibo, WeChat and
Instagram.

In addition, all shop staff are trained to handle queries on products,
maintenance and repair. All customer correspondence through
the proper channels are logged and documented. 86 product- and
service-related complaints were received during the year as compared to
92 in 2019.

Our high-quality service was recognised and the Group was awarded
2020 Quality Service Retailer of the Year of Chain Stores (Above 5
Outlets) — Grand Awards’ Gold Award and 2020 Quality Service Retailer
of the Year — Category Awards in Watch and Jewellery Category from
Hong Kong Retail Management Association.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices (continued)

Customer Data Protection

The Group maintains a database of customers. We have policies
and procedures that ensure compliance with the relevant local laws and
regulations and General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) of the
European Union, which govern the collection, use, retention and
protection of the customers’ personal data. We collect and maintain a
minimal amount of their personal details in the database. The database
is well protected both on policy and technological terms. Even within
the Group, customer data are released strictly on a need-to-know basis,
and the same will not be released without prior consent to outside
parties or even to units within the Group that are not the original data
collectors. Relevant details of our privacy policy are readily available on
our website.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has comprehensive procurement and supply chain
management policies which are benchmarked against the highest best
practice principles in the trade. During the supplier selection process,
we not only consider the infrastructure, production capacity and market
reputation of the potential suppliers, but also their commitment in
compliance with legal, ethical and social aspects.

Diamond suppliers are required to provide documented proof of the
ethical provenance of their goods. All materials and finished goods are
monitored as stated under the paragraph “Product Responsibility and
Service Quality” and only those that passed the tests are accepted.
Through prioritising suppliers with demonstrated management and
high performance on ESG aspects, relevant risks arisen from the supply
chain are mitigated and managed. We strive to work out a solution
with suppliers once substandard goods and materials are identified.
These suppliers are subject to a system of warnings, temporary or
even permanent blocking of orders if no improvements have been made
thereafter.

Where possible, the Group maintains relationships with multiple
suppliers in order to avoid the risks inherent in over-reliance on
suppliers. The Group also supports fair competition when selecting
potential suppliers by observing relevant laws and regulations. This
commitment is communicated with the procurement staff in the
procurement and supply chain management policies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices (continued)

Anti-corruption

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations, our employees are
required to comply with the rules stipulated in our Employee Handbook
(the "Handbook"”), which provide for definitions of permissible and
impermissible giving and receiving of advantages and gifts. Employees
are required to report receipts and subsequent disposal of gifts. Our
employees are also required to follow the Group’s Code of Conduct,
which defines appropriate methods in handling conflict of interests.
In addition, the Group has implemented the Prevention of Money
Laundering Policy, which spells out the principles, work and reporting
mechanism in relation to criminal activity.

The management has arranged online trainings to employees on their
expected conduct upon the identification of potential incidents of
corruption or bribery within the workplace. A mandatory anti-corruption
training, which has been updated, was provided to all new employees.
Under the whistleblowing policy, employees are protected if they submit
signed reports on suspicious activities. During the year, there were
no reported cases of corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering (2019: Nil).

Employment and Labour Practices

Training and development programmes, employee welfare and
relationship building initiatives have always been important to our
business. The Group is proactive in adopting best practices for human
resource management to cope with the ever-changing business
environment. In recognition of the performance, the Group was
awarded Best HR Teams in Greater China 2020 from HRoot, 2020
Top Human Resources Management Awards from 51job and 2020
AmCham’s CHRMA HR Best Practice Premium Innovation Pioneer Gold
Award.

Employment

The Group observes relevant employment laws and regulations. Being
an equal opportunities employer, the Group and its management
embrace diversity in its workforce and ensure that the employees are
not discriminated against due to their ethnicity, age, gender, marital
status, religion or belief.

Complying with relevant laws and regulations, the use of child labour is
strictly prohibited by the Group. Human Resources Department verifies
candidates’ identity through checking their identity documents as well
as relevant certificates of proof. Similarly, forced labour is not tolerated.

On the other hand, the Group requires employees to comply with its
code of conduct, which stipulates the Group's value and expectations
on employees to uphold high standard of ethics and integrity. The
document/handbook containing the code of conduct is available on the
Group's intranet.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Employee Welfare

Beyond the requirements stipulated in the applicable laws and
regulations, the Group maintains an open and standardised framework
for employment, salary review and promotion. Apart from basic salary,
employees are rewarded with performance-based bonuses. Benefits such
as paid vacation leave and insurance are commensurate with, or better
than local practices and legal requirements. Relevant policies are fully
communicated to the employees through the Handbook.

To strengthen overall communication across various departments and
ranks within the Group, the Group has introduced a mobile application
"CChat”. The application allows employees to receive updates on
corporate and training information, as well as personal exchanges.

Management level of the Group regularly reviews employees’ goal
alignment, job performance and working conditions to ensure that the
employees’ personal development and job performance improvement
are in alignment with business priorities. Grievance procedures are in
place for the protection of employees. Personal details of employees are
strictly protected.

Work Safety and Health

The Group adheres to the principle of “safety and prevention first”
to create an accident-free working environment for the employees.
As such, the Group has various committees established to ensure the
employees have a safe and healthy working environment and to further
strengthen the implementation of relevant initiatives at divisional level.
Safety risks in various facilities have been identified, assessed and
managed with corresponding preventive measures. Monthly committee
meetings are held to closely monitor our occupational health and safety
performance as well as conducting regular safety inspections. Safety-
and health-related awareness building trainings are conducted for the
benefit of all staff.

We complied with all the relevant laws and regulations related to
providing safe environment at all locations of operations and protecting
employees from potential occupational hazards. We had zero work-
related fatality in the last three years and 544 lost days due to work-
related injury in 2020 (2019: 476). Follow-up work had been carried out
immediately to reduce the likelihood of similar events in the future.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Work Safety and Health (continued)

During the outbreak of covid-19, we have implemented flexible working
hours and working from home arrangements as well as a number of
precautionary and safety measures to protect our employees, including:
o setting up temperature checkpoints at store and office entrances;
placing of disinfected carpets at office entrance;

distributing alcohol cotton balls for sanitising office or store
supplies; and

distributing surgical masks and gloves.

Development and Training

To cope with the development of the Group’s omni-channel retailing
and multi-brand strategy, the Group and its management oversee the
design and execution of various onboarding and on-the-job training
programmes for new and current employees, which cover topics such
as product knowledge, customer service, consultative selling skill,
store marketing and team management, property security and risk
management, and occupational safety. All these programmes are
designed to support and upskill both online and offline employees of
different ranks and responsibilities. Apart from face-to-face training, on-
site coaching is also a crucial part of the training programmes. In order
to promote continuing education of employees, the Group has set up
an online platform, “Channel T”, to provide interactive communication
between trainers and employees on all aspects related to our business.

To nurture high potential talents for the Group, a Management Trainee
Programme was launched in Mainland China during the year. To align
with the Group's omni-channel retailing strategy, we provided trainees
with well-rounded development experience and exposure through
orientation programme, store attachments and back-office project
management and execution.

In addition to utilising internal training resources, the Group subsidises
employees who require professional qualifications or advanced studies
for specific roles and caters to their specific training needs by third-party
professional training. The Group and its management are dedicated to
the continuous development of our employees’ capabilities and we value
the personal and professional growth of our employees. By fostering a
culture of continuous learning, we seek to cultivate and retain our best
talents and maintain our competitive positioning in the market.

Despite pandemic and social distancing measures, the Group continued
to organise internal trainings during the year. A number of face-to-
face trainings have been converted to trainings via video conferencing
platforms such as Zoom.
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Environment

The Group has made an internal environmental protection pledge
for environmental sustainability, where the Group fulfills its role as a
responsible corporate citizen. For example, the Group bans shark fins,
humphead wrasse and other endangered species from the menu at
corporate functions. To reduce the generation of plastic and paper
waste, wherever feasible reusable cups are provided for drinking.
Employees are encouraged to follow suit in their private life.

An Environmental Policy is established to guide us in mitigating
greenhouse gas emissions, using energy, water and other resources
more efficiently, and handling waste. The Group has also formulated
Guidelines for Handling and Discharging Effluent and Flue Gas, which
delineates the proper disposal and monitoring procedures for hazardous
waste. The commitment to the environment is further communicated to
the employees through the Group’s Code of Conduct.

We operate in accordance with the local environmental laws and
regulations, and were not aware of any material environmental non-
compliance that would have a significant impact on the environment
or on our Group. We summarise our efforts in managing climate risks,
energy and resource use, effluent, waste and emissions of air in the
paragraphs below.

Energy and Resources Management

We proactively adopt measures to minimise the environmental impacts
caused by our business operation. The management observes and
seizes opportunities for overall reduction in energy use across the
Group. We have signed up as participants to the Charter on External
Lighting organised by the Hong Kong Government, thereby committing
to switching off shop lightings by 11 p.m. To foster our employees’
awareness, tips and information on carbon reduction and energy
conservation are also disseminated on our intranet.

During the year, we continued to carry out multiple energy and water
efficiency measures including:

o installing energy saving lights and LED lights in our standardised
office, factory and shop lighting when feasible;

controlling billboard and exterior lighting at street level stores with
timer; and

maintaining indoor temperature at an optimal, comfortable level
to conserve energy.
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Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management (continued)

Energy efficiency, water conservation, waste reduction and other
environmental impact mitigation have all been carefully considered by
the management as part of the design specifications in the erection of
the Shunde plant. Based on the experience gained in the construction of
the Shunde plant, we would also take these factors into consideration
in future building construction. Savings on air-conditioning are achieved
by taking measures to mitigate the heating effect of the afternoon sun,
to reduce heat generation by eliminating excess lighting, and to isolate
furnaces and other heat and emission dissipating equipment from room
air. Solar panels are installed to generate electricity for our staff quarters
and canteen. In 2020, we have installed a centralised control system to
intelligently manage the air conditioning system such as chilled water
flow and temperature of air handling unit.

At the same time, various enhancement works have also been
implemented or planned. Our Xian plant established charters to avoid
energy- and water-wasting behaviour, as well as added an inverter
and repurposed used water in our manufacturing process to save the
resources. We are gradually upgrading the air conditioners to Grade 1
at Hong Kong plant.

Incorporating green elements into our Xian Glorious Plaza
flagship store

We take environmental aspects into consideration during the design and
construction of our buildings and stores. As an illustration, we actively
work with our landlord of our four-storey flagship store in Glorious Plaza
in Xian to make a joint effort in promoting environmental sustainability.

The new facade is built by recovering and reusing nearly half of the
existing facade panels, of which many are still in good conditions. For
the rearrangement, besides salvaging the existing old facade, with a
clever twist, the internal views are opened for pedestrian spectacle
and natural lighting. Apart from saving construction cost, this can also
reduce waste disposal and initial embodied energy.

In addition, vertical green walls are integrated into two prominent
facade corners of the store. Local non-invasive species that can absorb
volatile organic compounds are selected to improve the surrounding air
quality and reduce carbon emissions incurred from transportation. By
reconnecting with the nature, the green wall not only offers aesthetic
pleasure, but also helps bring environmental efficiency by reducing
summer heat gain.

The building design won the Asia Pacific Property Awards 2020-
2021 Best Retail Architecture China 5-Star Winner in the International
Property Awards.
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Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management (continued)

BE -HERERRE

B (#)

BEFRERETE ()

Intensity
(Gigajoule (GJ) or
Tonnes /
HK$1m Turnover)
T
Total Consumgtion* (?JE%\EEEWE/
N iyl g
Type of Resource Unit adlakin 1ERBTERE)
EiR%ER B 2020 2019 2020 2019
Megawatt Hour (MWh) _ B
N KR 23,025 23,868
Electricity
E B Gigajoule (GJ)
nergy igajoule
A m FkERE 82,889 85,923
6.4 5.4
Fuel' Gigajoule (GJ) !
Water Freshwater Tonnes
K ok i 101,945 110,135 7.8 6.8

* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

- Energy conversion factors used for LPG and natural gas are from the
Accounting Methods and Reporting Guidelines for Greenhouse Gas
Emissions of Enterprises in Other Industries by National Development and
Reform Commission. Energy consumption of towngas was calculated
based on the formula provided by The Hong Kong and China Gas

Company Limited.

Our total energy, water consumption and greenhouse gas emissions
decreased between 2019 and 2020 due to the pandemic outbreak
which led to suspension of operations and shortening of operating
hours. We will keep track of our energy and water consumption and
regularly review the effectiveness of our current initiatives to further
improve our performance in energy and water use as well as greenhouse

gas emissions.

Fuel used in the operations includes natural gas, towngas, liquefied

petroleum gas and naphtha. As a result of our effort in improving data
management, naphtha consumption is newly added to the scope. For
comparability, the 2019 figure is also restated.
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BE -HERERRE

Direct greenhouse gas emissions are emissions from sources that are
owned or controlled by us (Scope 1), including use of fuel for stationary
combustion. The data were calculated based on Guidelines to Account
for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings
(Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong and the
World Resources Institute’s Greenhouse Gas Accounting Tool for Chinese
Cities (Pilot Version 1.0).

Indirect greenhouse gas emissions are emissions that are a consequence of
the activities of our operations, but occur at sources owned or controlled
by another entity (Scope 2), including purchased electricity. The data were
calculated based on the default factors provided by electricity providers in
Hong Kong, such as Power Assets, CLP and The Hong Kong and China Gas
Company Limited. The emissions by electricity purchased in China were
calculated based on the emission factors in China’s Regional Grid Average
CO, Emission Factors in 2012.

As a result of our effort in improving data management, naphtha
consumption is newly added to the scope. For comparability, the 2019
figure is also restated.
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Environment (continued) RIE(E)
Energy and Resources Management (continued) BERREREFE(E)
Intensity
(Tonnes of
Carbon Dioxide
Equivalent (tCO,e) /
HK$1m Turnover)
B
Scope of Greenhouse Total Emission* | (AM-E{tHEE
Gas Emissions Unit RIEmE 1ERETERE)
BERBHHEE B 2020 2019 2020 2019
Scope 1 - Direct Greenhouse Tonnes of Carbon Dioxide
Gas Emissions Equivalent (tCO,e) 66 89°
HE - ERAZRBHNRE RE—EtRE=E
1.1 0.9
Scope 2 - Indirect Greenhouse Tonnes of Carbon Dioxide
Gas Emissions Equivalent (tCO,e) 13,807 14,264
#E2 - AEAZEREBHENE Rt E=E
figures are rounded to the nearest whole number * AFEEIRENCEYH
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Environment (continued)

Climate Change Management

Climate change brings about potential risks and disturbances to
business operations. Consistent with our risk management policies,
our management is delegated to identify, analyse, evaluate, respond,
monitor and communicate risks related to climate change. To
understand and mitigate accordingly the significant climate-related
issues that would affect our business, we have commissioned a third-
party consultant to conduct a formal climate change impact assessment.
The assessment suggests that our manufacturing and retail operations
have not been materially impacted by climate-related issues and are
subject to limited climate-related risks in the short, medium and long
term.

The impact of climate change has been mitigated by various measures
implemented in the operations. Business contingency plans for our
manufacturing and retail operations are in place. We have also set
energy and carbon reduction targets for our factories to enhance
climate resilience against future low-carbon policies. We will continue to
monitor the situation and update our management approach to climate
change.

Wastewater Management

The Group's major use of water occurs at its plants in the course of
manufacturing jewellery. The wastewater may contain acids, alkali,
various chemicals and heavy metals. At the plants in Shunde and Hong
Kong, there is an onsite facility for neutralisation, deionisation and
sedimentation of the wastewater. The treated water is certified safe to
discharge into the municipal network, and the slag is properly handled
by licensed operators. At the smaller plants, wastewater is put in safe
storage for removal by licensed operators at regular intervals.

B (#)

ﬁ//”’*‘/ﬁfk‘ﬁ%
RIFZCHBEEZETRBEERR KT
% EHRMOEAREERRE B ERE
BARER - ot - 5HE - DR BERER

BEAREECERORR - BT HELE
Fﬂ@T%%E%%MEKﬁ@WWW
CBAZETE=SER ATEAR
ﬁﬂk%iwﬁ ZaaR AR EE
miﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁméﬁ
CARKERE - REAZHERR

mﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬂ RINAR ©

BBERETETSAREERERRE
tHEE BZMNYERTEEBDRTE
EESTE  HMAE BIREILE AL
KOR Bk BAZ - LA N 5& &R & (b /) i E BE
B MEE B EMEREBR - RIEE
BERKR  TEHRMEEREEH
ERFET o

BKEHE
AEEFTEREEGREREREARNX -
Emﬁﬁéﬁ& B SEtEMRES

o EIRERBENREEA & EEKE
ﬁ#ﬂ EEEFRONRA R o BEKE R
BRANZ2HNETANEERSE - B
BHEFEREEZZERE - B/)AUKE
W BRPIEEKEERT  AEhFEER
fEEEHERE -

Total Volume of Effluent Discharged*

Type of Emission Unit kSR E >
B R B 2020 2019
Wastewater from Jewellery Manufacturing Tonnes 21,681 43,831
REREELE 2K ]

* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

Compared with 2019, the Group discharged less wastewater due to
reduced manufacturing and production activities during the year. We
will continue to monitor the volume and quality of the effluent to
ensure it is discharged appropriately and responsibly.
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Environment (continued)

Waste Management

Another area of focus in the Group’s environmental management
policies is waste reduction at source. The Group has placed much
emphasis on the reusability in the packaging of its products. Customers
will find our boxes useful for storing other items if not used for their
jewellery. It is ingrained into our culture to reuse suitable containers
and boxes for transportation. As a recognition of our continuous efforts
in waste reduction, the office, plant and laboratory of the Group were
bestowed the Wastewi$e Certificate (Excellence Level) by Hong Kong
Green Organisation Certification. Compared to 2019, fewer packaging
materials were used and distributed in general due to reduction in sales
volume this year. The Group will continue to study possible ways to
avoid undue and unnecessary use of packaging materials and recycle
whenever appropriate.

BE -HERERRE

B5(#)

BEEYEE

ARBERREEBROZ —BHRRBER
B -AREBRAERIERERANERE
K- AEERFANENE  BAFHRKE
o BEMUTESFEALRERE RN
EREMBERSENTREMETREHR
PR R B R 3L - HAER D BED T ®E
WFES BT  ARENBAE -
ITHENERERSIBERERBEREIT
MOREZEE (EMARF) - E2019F 48
f MRAFEHEERD - BB EEAM
NENBEMBTERD - AEE S EET
R—LAT0E BRBEHITLERRE
AEefyH  TeEEERFRETDH -

Amount of Material Used*

Type of Packaging Material Unit YIRE &
BEMEER By 2020 2019

Paper Box Tonnes 271 414

Hwa 7]

Jewellery Pouch Tonnes 8 M

PNEIRER W

Paper Bag Tonnes 106 176

e B

Others (e.g. plastic, leather, wood, and etc.) ~ Tonnes 10 25

Hipet (FImZR - K% - AME) 7]

* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

There are other measures for small savings but heightened awareness:

o to cut down the use of paper cups, all staff members are
encouraged to use glass and cups for their tea and water; and
wherever feasible guests are served with those as well;

o to reduce the use of printing paper, the Group and its
management require departments to check out their own paper
and record total usage; and

o to encourage the use of email and online chats for company
business.

Recycling bins are generally available and employees are encouraged to
make use of them. We have participated in the Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence for several years and recycled resources used in
our operations. All recyclables are collected and handled by recognised
recycling organisations.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AE4SEBEBERRDA

* HFEEERBAZEY

REBTHBEMER  $RLVEHHE
= = Ry—pr==] =z iyh
SERBERREM

o RELEREN  KEEHEFREE
TERRKEEAFEL AR - R
ATHERT - IRIEE A TS REUE
RISO%

o  RELERITHE  AEEREEE
EREPIZYE KRR REEHE
K

o SEERETBHERREIPNATAH
(VNCIES/

ARE-—REBEKERFBETER -
BEBERMOBEL2NMBERREHAKR
2 YEORAEELERANER - M5B
(E 45 it s el 58 T 1 A A M e B SR

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
2020 F %k



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management (continued)

Where options of recycling and reuse have been fully considered, the
Group engages authorised or licensed contractors in the disposal of
general waste and hazardous waste generated at our manufacturing
factories or at our offices.

The Group endeavours to reduce use of hazardous materials wherever
feasible. For example, the plant in Hong Kong has changed its
electroforming processes to use non-cyanide chemicals. Overall,
hazardous waste is always handled by qualified contractors in
compliance with applicable local laws.

The following tables outline waste which is materially generated and
recycled in our operations. Common office materials such as paper and
toner cartridges are also included.

BE -HERERRE

B (#)

BEEYEHE(E)
ERDZEREUNERNERK  A%HE
EREREXF I ABRRE BRELE
BEIBRREMELN —REZYLEE
BEY -

AKBHNEATER TR EREEY
£ flm EEBEECREREEELN -
KRGS ERET BEME -
BEBRRVMVERBAERAMBUNTE
EARTARRE -

TEMASEEBATEES R B 2R
2 YASR-RPLEMRINERR

X -

Type of Amount of Waste Generated
Hazardous Waste Unit BEYELS
BERENER By 2020 2019
ﬁ_ighly Acidic Waste Tonnes 4.2 7.0
SR 1

Others (e.g. waste with lead, inorganic Tonnes 3.5 7.5

cyanide, mercury, organic solvent)
Hiurey (PInSsamEy) - EBRSCYREY - W
KR - BRRBER)

Amount of Waste*

BERYE *
Type of 2020 2019
Non-Hazardous Waste Unit Generated Recycled  Generated Recycled
BEREWER B EX Bl 4 EE EIl
Paper Tonnes 43 7 46 19
Rk 7
Toner Cartridge Pieces 2,822 825 3,889 748
He fEE
General Waste Tonnes 23 - 37 -
—REEY 1

* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

In comparison with last year, less hazardous waste was generated during
the year as a result of reduced production activities. Meanwhile, the
Group has made continuous progress in generating less non-hazardous
waste. We will continue to promote waste reduction measures, such as
reuse and recycling, in our operations to improve resource effectiveness.
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Environment (continued)

Air Emissions Management’

Jewellery manufacturing generates air emissions that may contain acids,
alkali, other chemicals or traces of metals and dust. Our workplaces are
equipped, depending on the scale of the operation and the nature of
the processes employed, with equipment ranging from fume cupboards
and filters to full-scale scrubber networks to render the air clean for
discharge into the atmosphere as per the requirement of local regulatory
authorities. In particular, the scrubber system in Shunde plant has
airflow control to keep noxious emissions out of the working area.

Community Involvement

The Group believes that its involvement in the community can foster
social harmony and development and is simply good corporate
citizenship.

Promotion of Arts and Cultural Development

The Group is keen to foster the growth and development of Hong
Kong's arts and cultural landscape, and we believe this encourages
positive societal values for the expression of thoughts and feelings
through design and innovation. For example, we have been a corporate
partner with Hong Kong Sinfonietta and Maestro Circle member of the
Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra for several years. The Hong Kong
Repertory Theatre has likewise been receiving programme sponsorship.

Community Development

The Group has contributed to various charitable themes such as youth
education, social service, community care, child and elderly care, care
for special needs and groups on raising environmental awareness.
During the year, we have supported many charitable organisations
through monetary and in-kind donations and through participation in
their charitable events. The Group donated to a number of organisations
including The Salvation Army, St. James' Settlement People’s Food Bank
and Yan Chai Hospital.

Recognising the importance of quality education for young people,
the Group provides scholarship funds to The Hong Kong Academy for
Performing Arts, the City University of Hong Kong and have subsidised
the “Sustained Vitality, Ever Rejuvenated education aid fund” (£41
BENBEES) run by Shanghai Education Foundation of Huangpu
District.

Air emissions are not material to the Group's jewellery manufacturing and
retail businesses. The types of emissions and respective emissions data of
HKEx ESG Guide are therefore not reported.
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Community Involvement (continued)

Community Development (continued)

The Group not only supports Hong Kong community but also extends
the support to Mainland China, Macau and Taiwan. Our offices in all
regions are encouraged to initiate or participate in charitable events
targeted to serve local community associations and organisations for
youngsters, elderly and the environmental protection. To encourage
participation by our staff, the Group sponsors the activities and
encourages interested employees to become volunteers. Employees
are eligible to apply for volunteer leave, which further encourages the
participation of meaningful charitable work.

In 2020, we launched an event called " FE4E4A XM “ via the Ant
Forest online platform where we encouraged our staff to perform
low-carbon activities such as doing more exercise and participating
in environmental recycling projects. These activities would then be
converted into “green energy” for watering “virtual tree” online. Once
the “virtual tree” has fully grown, Ant Forest would plant a real tree
in desertified areas in Mainland China. With the tremendous support
of our staff, a total of 63 real trees were planted after the event. On
the other hand, we have also organised a visit to a cultural community
centre in Shunde to support their local flea market and promote
environmental sustainability.

Laws and Regulations

Based on various aspects of the subject areas in the HKEx ESG Guide,
we have identified the laws and regulations that are the most relevant
to the Group:

HESH(H)

R

AEBETMEXERRBLE - THLERE
BEREPBEARE RFREE - HMISE
EHBRERBERA2ERREY BE
BREERNETLF RENRAREZ
AELRE  ABBET2EMRRY
AEEEYZSEHYHBERBET
RARETL REE-—FHBBEILEER
EEMEETIHE BIHERIMR

20205 BB BBERMER LT AR
HAERIAEEREMINEE BET
ETERITY - WS MESH M2 NRED
WIER - WEFERBEERKIREEE T
Rig ERIE RS 2K - BIERE KX
& BEFRMEMRHBEAERE (R
BE-REH -HEEISNXHKHT  EH
RBRIEABERER - Z—7@ - &M
NP BIREmRA LR O X5
I E Bk 2 T 85 Rt EIR I A B
1 o

EERRH

RIEFEXMERE  HENEREITRE
BRZEER  RMBMAEAEERS
HRRR R RARA

Aspects Hong Kong Laws & Regulations

B BREERRAD

Mainland China Laws & Regulations

B AR R R AR

A. Environmental B4

Aspect A1: Emissions Water Pollution Control Ordinance
EBE A1 : B KRB E FI1EB1)
. Waste Disposal Ordinance
(EBEMRE GO
o Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste)
(General) Regulation
(BYMERE ((L2REW) (—#&) R
o Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(ERIFRE &G

J Law of People’s Republic of China
on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution
(pEAREMBIKSERRE)

J Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of
Environment Pollution Caused by Solid

Waste
(PEARLMBEBEYSFREN S
D

. Law of People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution

(P AREMBIAR S RIAE)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Laws and Regulations (continued)

BE -HERERRE

ERRAG(E)

Aspects
B

Hong Kong Laws & Regulations

BREERAD

Mainland China Laws & Regulations

o E KB A E R AR

B. Social # &

Aspect B1: Employment
and Labour Practices
EHB1: ERERLETER

Sex Discrimination Ordinance
CHERIIAR 651D

Disability Discrimination Ordinance
CERR IR 5B

Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance

(RE AR &)

Race Discrimination Ordinance
(R RRIAR 1551

Employment Ordinance

CER B

Minimum Wage Ordinance

(FIETE A

Employment Promotion Law of the
People’s Republic of China
(hEARLMBEGEREZE)

Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China

(hEARXNBALEE)

Social Insurance Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(REARAMBHSREE)
Provisions on Minimum Wages

(HEIEHRE)

Aspect B2: Health
and Safety
EHB2: BREZS

Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance

(BEZ2 REREH)

Factories and Industrial Undertakings
(Safety Management) Regulation
(IBEIELE (Z2ER) RO

Work Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(FEARENBERZ2EEE)
Provisions on the Supervision and
Administration of Occupational Health
at Work Sites
(LESBEFEEEERAE)

Aspect B4: Labour
Standards
B B4 : & T %R

Employment of Children Regulations

(BRAZERM)

Provisions on Prohibition of Child
Labour

(BIHFRETHE)

Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Protection of Minors

(PEARAMBARKE AREZL)

Aspect B5: Supply Chain
Management

JEME BS : IEEEIE

Com_petition Ordinance
(B F &G

Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Bid Invitation and Bidding
(PEARANMEBRREE)

Aspect B6: Product
Responsibility”
EEB6: EMEM’

Trade Descriptions Ordinance
(Pt AR 1B )

Trade Marks Ordinance

CRR 1601 )

Sale of Goods Ordinance
(EmMEEKH)D

Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

(EAER (FLBR) &A1

Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(FEARANBESE)

Trademark Law of the People’s Republic
of China

(hEARAMBERE)

Patent Law of the People’s Republic of
China

(hEARLNMBEFEFE)

Product Quality Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(HEARANBEREE)E)

Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests

(PEARAMBIEEZE B REZL)

Aspect B7:
Anti-corruption
EEB7 : RE)S

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

(B L B B 15 1)

Interim Provisions on Prohibition of
Commercial Bribery

(ERZELEEBRETANETRE)

4

The Group also complies with the General Data Protection Regulation
(GDPR) of the European Union.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group as a whole strives to adhere to the highest standards of
transparency, accountability and corporate governance, balancing and
protecting the interests of shareholders, employees, customers and
suppliers. The Company has complied throughout the year 2020 with
the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the Code
and which is explained in the relevant part of this report.

The Board

Board composition

The Board comprises nine Directors, of whom three Executive Directors
("EDs"), two Non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) and four Independent
Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”). In addition, a list containing the
names of the Directors and their roles and functions is available on
the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited ("HKEC").

Chairman and Group General Manager

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing holds both positions of the Chairman
and the Group General Manager of the Company. The Board is of the
opinion that the present board structure provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies.

Independence of Directors

Save for the relationships disclosed in the biographical details set out
on pages 5 to 8 of this annual report, the Directors do not have family,
material financial, business or other relationships with one another.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs written annual
confirmation of his independence as required under the Listing Rules
and therefore the Board considers all INEDs to be independent.

Re-election of Directors

All NEDs (including INEDs) are appointed for specific terms of not more
than three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and re-election in annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Code and the
Company's bye-laws.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board (continued)

Securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. Directors are reminded on a regular
basis of their obligations under the Model Code.

All Directors have written to confirm, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year.

Employees who have access to inside information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with written internal guidelines (the “Written
Internal Guidelines”) that follow the Model Code.

Directors’ continuous professional development
Directors have continuously been updated on major developments of
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B2 (@)

ARBCHRA LR ATz Eh
BOANESETESRINEE #H'J(WT

TR AERARAIEFTRTERR
TRl AR TE/HHT}EEEX%$B/\\TT\

BT TERITZER -

EERARFEH B EERNERCER

2EE

R NEEFH-BETREETRIMH
ZHRTERE
EETRBIAAKEZABHES  TEE
SREETAFTZ 2 EmAEESI(Em

PaEkESI )

BEIRBEZRER
ARRFHEAEERESETEBLTRA

the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure NMEMBREERELEANLERE  UER
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. BEBTNREROTCEERER -
During the year, the Directors participated in continuous professional FANEFL2EBBEHELER  UBERERE
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and RSB REEE  WARKDRRE
provided their records of training to the Company. Details are as =4 sE o HIEMT -
follows:
Training ™"

Name of Directors Esng s
Executive Directors: HITES :
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing B E v
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing [ 4K B v
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing BRREE 4
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRELE v
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam EmMEE v
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES !

Directors:
Mr. LEE Ka Lun FREELE 4
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun PRINENEE £ v
Dr. LO King Man ESNEL v
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung B ELE v
Note: /Wu:jt‘r .

The mode of trainings includes but not limited to attending online trainings and
seminars, and/or reading materials on relevant topics.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Group. It determines the overall strategic direction and management
objectives, oversees significant operational and financial matters and
ensures a framework of risk controls is in place.

The Company has provided to each Director a Directors’ Manual, which
includes the statutory obligations, duties and responsibilities for being a
director. The Directors’ Manual is updated from time to time to reflect
the latest developments in those areas.

Internal guidelines with continuing updates in areas on the Company’s
and the Directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, and the latest
developments or material changes on ordinances, rules or regulations
are provided to Directors from time to time.

The Board has delegated day-to-day operations to management, who
is responsible for implementing the Group’s business strategies and
managing the daily business operations under the leadership of the
Chairman/Group General Manager and the Group Deputy General
Manager, both of whom are EDs.

Management support

All Directors were provided with monthly updates on the Group’s
business, operations, and financial matters as well as timely information
that may have affected the Group's businesses. Comprehensive Board
papers are prepared and distributed quarterly to Directors to keep them
informed.

Directors have free access to management for additional information, as
and when required and may solicit independent professional advice at
the Company's expenses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Attendance Records of Directors

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the annual general meeting held in 2020 are

set out as follows:
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ESNHRELE

FEEHER200FNBITHNEESRE
ELEees  UMBRRAFASNLE

=5 = Ak

T

Attendance/Number of Meetings

EELEREBIRY
Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
Name of Directors BEpe Exg ERZEEE FMEEE REZEE RREFAS
Executive Directors: BTES:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing BB S
Chairman and Group General Manager IEEEFELE 5/5 - - - 171
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing RAHRBE 4/5 - - N 171
Mr. Winston CHOW Waun Sing RAAKEE
Group Deputy General Manager £F5EnE 5/5 - - - 17
Non-executive Directors: FHUTES !
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRELE 5/5 212 I 0/1* "
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam BEREE 5/5 212 I " "
Independent Non-executive Directors:  BUFHTEE :
Mr. LEE Ka Lun PREEE
Chairman of the three Committees —HZEE2 1 5/5 22 11 11 1/1
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun RiRBEE 5/5 0 " " "
Dr. LO King Man EEXAL 45 0 " " "
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung B EEEE 5/5 22 111 7 1l
- The Director is not a member - EEIHE
*  Antecedent to the appointment of Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel as a * TRAEFELER2020F6 719 HEZ LA
member of the Nomination Committee on 19 June 2020, there was one WEZESHEZH - RET T — X185

Nomination Committee meeting held.

During the year, the Chairman held a meeting with the INEDs without
the presence of other Directors in accordance with the Code.

Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or material
interests in proposed transactions or contemplated issues are required to
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

Board Committees

The Board is supported by three committees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, whose respective
terms of reference are available on the websites of the Company and

HKEC.

Composition of each of the three committees is shown in the section
headed “Attendance Records of Directors” above.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee

The principal duties are to monitor the integrity of the Group's
consolidated financial statements, oversee the Group's financial
reporting systems, internal control and risk management procedures and
the relationship with the external auditor. Members possess appropriate
professional qualifications, accounting or management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the Group's accounting
principles and practices, development in accounting standards and
associated impacts on the Group, risk management issues, audit
findings, compliance, strategy summary and financial reporting matters,
and the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems. The Committee discussed the above matters, where
appropriate, with management and external auditor. An enterprise risk
management framework has also been adopted so as to enhance the
Group's ability to secure an early-mover positioning in a fast-changing
business environment.

Remuneration Committee
The principal functions include reviewing and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policies and packages for Directors
and senior management.

The remuneration of Directors consists of a basic annual fee with
additional payments for serving on Committees. It is not set individually.
EDs receive additional pay packages by virtue of their positions in
management.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the remuneration package
and bonus payment of Directors and senior management; and reviewed
and made recommendation to the Board on Directors’ fees.

Nomination Committee

The main duties include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board, assessing the independence of INEDs, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and determining the policy for nomination of Directors.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Group's corporate strategy. All Board appointments are based on
meritocracy, and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

In determining the Board composition, the Committee considers a
number of aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry and regional
experience and other qualities.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Board has adopted a director nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and process in relation to
nomination and appointment of directors of the Company and aims to
ensure the continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board
level.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

o character and integrity;

qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,

knowledge and experience that are relevant to the business and
corporate strategy of the Group;

the Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted
by the Committee for achieving diversity on the Board,;

requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and assessment of the
independence of the candidates; and

commitment to understanding the Company and its industry,
willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board.

Upon receipt of a proposal on appointment of new director, the
Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate based on
the criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship. If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Committee and/or the Board should rank them
by order of preference based on the needs of the Group and the
Committee should then make recommendation to the Board. For
any person nominated by shareholder(s) for election as a director
at the general meeting of the Company, the Committee and/or the
Board should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out
above to determine the eligibility of such candidate, and thus make
recommendation to the shareholders on the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

For re-election of director at the general meeting, the Committee and/
or the Board should review the overall contribution and service made
by the retiring director to the Group, and consider whether the retiring
director’s level of participation and performance on the Board meet the
criteria as set out above. The Committee and/or the Board should then
make recommendation to the shareholders on the proposed re-election
of director at the general meeting.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and recommended the addition of new board
member so as to work towards age and gender diversity of the Board.
It also assessed and confirmed the independence of the INEDs, and
made recommendation to the Board on the nomination of Dr. Gerald
CHOW King Sing, Mr. LEE Ka Lun and Dr. LO King Man, the retiring
directors, for re-election as Directors by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 11 June 2020. The Committee
considered that an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board is still maintained.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has undertaken the corporate governance functions as
required under the Code and is responsible for determining the policy
for the corporate governance of the Company and keeping up to date
with the latest requirements of the Code and the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board reviewed the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the Written
Internal Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the Code and
the disclosure in this report.

Financial Reporting

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group's
state of affairs, results and cash flows in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.
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Financial Reporting (continued)

External auditor

The reporting responsibilities of the Group’s independent external
auditor, Ernst & Young, on the Group's consolidated financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 63
to 71 of this annual report.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended its re-appointment as the
Company’s external auditor at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The services provided by Ernst & Young and the associated fees thereof
paid/payable for 2020 were as follows:

Audit i
Taxation %
Others Hip

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that adequate risk management
and internal controls are in place to safeguard the Group's assets
and manage risks. The Board reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. Policies
and procedures are designed for providing reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss and managing risks of failure in
operational systems and achievement of the Group's objectives.

Risk Management

Management is delegated to identify, analyse, evaluate, respond,
monitor and communicate risks associated with any activity, function or
process within its scope of responsibility and authority. For risk control
and monitoring, it involves making decisions regarding which risks
are acceptable and how to address those that are not. Management
develops action plans to address potential risks and contingency plans
for possible loss scenarios. Accidents and other situations involving loss
or near-loss will be investigated and properly documented as part of the
effort to manage risks. Risk assessment is carried out biannually. Key
risks and action plans are identified by management and reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
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Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out as follows:

AEFGE )T BRE S R T HEERHE
wr

o Retail market suffers from disruptions caused by covid-19 and the
uncertainties in the global economic and political environment and
the weakened consumer demand. We see opportunities to grow
by adopting omni-channel retailing and increase customer loyalty
via product and brand differentiation.

o The Group's operations will be affected by multiple risk factors
related to the manufacture and retail of jewellery and distribution
of watches, wholesale of precious metals, and securities and
futures broking. Policies and procedures are designed to minimise
the risks.

e Adverse effects which may arise from changes in laws and
regulations affecting our businesses. Legal and regulatory
compliance policies are in place to mitigate against the risks.

o Details of financial risk management objectives and policies are set
out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Internal Control

The purpose of internal control is to reasonably provide the assurance
for the compliance of its operation and management with regulations
and laws, assets security, and authenticity and integrity of financial
report and related information, improve the efficiency and effectiveness
of operating activities and promote the realisation of development
strategy of the Group.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Internal Control (continued)
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Major internal controls currently in place within the Group included the
following:

FEEEEZ T ERDEL AN TE
7

o An Internal Audit team conducts regular audits of different
aspects of the operations and reports any findings to the Audit
Committee.

o Business plans are prepared annually. Income and expenditure are
subject to regular budgetary review.

o Policies are set to cover the integrity of trading practices,
safekeeping of customer assets, and credit control for the
securities and futures broking business and wholesale of precious
metals.

o All inventory movements are properly recorded and reconciled,
and verification and cross-checking with source documents
procedures are in place. Inventory level is under continuous review
and adjusted reqularly taking into account of prevailing market
conditions.

o Major or material connected transactions require pre-approval of
INEDs and all continuing connected transactions are reviewed on a
regular basis.

o Information access is managed on a need-to-know basis.
Guidelines and procedures are in place to protect personal data
and to ensure the integrity of communication systems.

o The Group strictly prohibits unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information. Disclosure of inside information guide has
been established and only the authorised staff are allowed to
communicate with parties outside the Group.
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The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group's risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2020, with reference to the risk management and internal
audit reports and the representations made by management and
concluded that adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are being maintained. The annual review
also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, and their training programmes and budget. There were no
significant areas of concern identified during the year.
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Constitutional Documents

During the year, there was no change in the Company’'s memorandum
of association and bye-laws. A copy of the latest consolidated version
of the memorandum of association and bye-laws is available on the
websites of the Company and HKEC.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that human capital is a key asset to sustainable
business growth. The objective of the Group’s human resources
management is to reward and recognise performing staff by providing
a competitive remuneration package and implementing a performance
appraisal system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career
development and progression by appropriate training and providing
opportunities within the Group for career advancement. We believe
these measures could further enhance employee involvement and
engagement as part of a team.

The Group is committed to providing high-quality products and services
to its customers. Apart from our professional sale representatives in
stores, we also have a dedicated team of customer relations personnel
for quick response to enquiries and complaints. We believe that
customer satisfaction is the key to our long-term success.

The Group values mutually beneficial long-term relationships with
its suppliers. Steady supply of high-quality raw materials is crucial
for us. The Group is committed to developing stable and sustainable
partnership among its suppliers.

Corporate Communication

Shareholder communication

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
the Company's shareholders and other stakeholders. A shareholders’
communication policy with the objectives of ensuring a transparent
and timely communication with shareholders and other stakeholders
via various means has been established. The general meetings of the
Company provide a forum for communication between the Board and
the shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as the chairman of
the three Committees and other members of the respective committees
are available to answer questions at the general meetings.
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Corporate Communication (continued)

Investor communication

Aside from annual reports and interim reports, the Company
disseminates timely information on its website to investors and
consumers alike.

Management also attends meetings with financial analysts and fund
managers from time to time. These meetings allow management to
maintain close contact with investors which facilitate their understanding
of the Group's strategies and operations.

Internal communication

The Group's staff members are linked by the Group’s intranet for
prompt sharing of information. Regular meetings of staff members from
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan are held to share and discuss
issues on achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, actual operational
practices, local rules and regulations and compliance practices.

Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM") of the Company. Shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of
the Company may send a written request to the Board of the Company
to request for an SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company's registered office for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for
the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the
“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received. If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
shareholders concerned or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholders concerned as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the

requisition; or

(b)  not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company’s registered office for the attention of the Company
Secretary. The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the
Company, please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose
a Person for Election as a Director” available on the website of the
Company.

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing through the Company Secretary at 27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (email: ir@chowsangsang.com).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

e
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To the shareholders of
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 192, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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B BEN R &

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters

HREEIER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZEREFTPROMESN

Net realisable value of inventories
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As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
inventories (net of inventory provision), mainly comprised
of gold, platinum, diamond products and watches,
amounted to HK$8,774,591,000. Significant judgement
was required to assess the appropriate level of inventory
provision for slow-moving or obsolete products which
might be sold below cost. The assessment took into
account factors that included but were not limited to,
economic outlook, sales forecasts and the forecast market
value for the inventory items.

The write-down of inventories to net realisable value
during the current year amounted to HK$29,198,000.

Further details about the Group’s inventory provision

are included in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Valuation of investment properties
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The Group owned a portfolio of investment properties in
Hong Kong and outside of Hong Kong, which was valued
at HK$332,649,000 as at 31 December 2020.

Significant estimation was required to determine the
fair value of the investment properties, which reflected
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.
Management engaged an independent professionally
qualified valuer to estimate the value of investment
properties at the end of the reporting period.

Further details about the Group’s investment properties
are included in notes 3 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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We obtained an understanding of management’s
processes for the initial identification of slow-moving or
obsolete products. We reviewed the bases adopted by
the Group for its inventory provision policy with reference
to historical inventory losses, and evaluated whether
the inventory provision was made in accordance with
the policy. We also assessed the inventory provision by
comparing the selling prices of the inventory items to
their costs.

In addition to the above, independent gemologists
were engaged by the Group to assess the net realisable
values of certain jewellery items held by the Group
as at 31 December 2020. We reviewed the sampling
approach adopted by the gemologists, which was based
on a mix of material and random items. For diamond
products assessed by the independent gemologists, we
also evaluated the net realisable value with reference to
independently published sales prices.
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We evaluated the objectivity, independence and
competency of the valuer. We also involved our internal
valuation specialists to assist us in reviewing the bases
and assumptions adopted in the valuation for estimating
the fair value of the investment properties and performed
the benchmarking of the value of investment properties
held by the Group to other comparable properties. We
also assessed the related disclosures in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters

BEESEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZEEEE P RAOMTELN

Impairment assessment on receivables arising from
securities and futures broking

EHF R EELELZ BRI B E TS

As at 31 December 2020, gross receivables arising from

securities and futures broking and the related credit

loss allowance amounted to HK$1,148,417,000 and

HK$489,744,000, respectively.

The assessment of impairment of receivables arising
from securities and futures broking involves significant
management judgements and estimates on the amount
of expected credit loss.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposure
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting
date and the date of initial recognition.

The Group’s methodology and assumptions used
for estimating the amount of future cash flows for
receivables arising from securities and futures broking
normally encompass the nature and value of collateral
held and anticipated receipts; and where applicable the
Group performed credit assessment based on the specific
circumstances and market conditions which involved
significant assumptions.

Further details about the Group's receivables arising from
securities and futures broking are included in notes 3 and
22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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We obtained an understanding of the Group’s credit risk
management and practices, and assessed the Group's
methodologies and assumptions used for estimating the
impairment of receivables arising from securities and
futures broking. Our procedures to assess the Group's
impairment included the following:

. We evaluated the Group’s methodologies and
assumptions used in expected credit loss estimation.

. We tested the appropriateness of the Group’s
determination of significant increase in credit risk
and the basis for classification of exposures into
the 3 stages. Our testing included checking loan
overdue information, loan-to-value percentage or
other related information, and considering the stage
classification determined by the Group.

. We also considered the control procedures
performed by the Group over monitoring and
valuation of collateral and determined whether
there was any shortfall by comparing the loans
outstanding with the value of collateral.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
in relation to credit risk.
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Key audit matters

HEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZEHEFTPROMESN

Impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment and rjght-of-use assets
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The Group's management performed impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets for identified retail stores that continued
to underperform by estimating the recoverable amounts
of their property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets based on value-in-use calculations.

During the year, the Group recorded impairment of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
of HK$4,063,000 and HK$169,572,000, respectively,
to reduce the carrying amounts of these assets to the
recoverable amounts.

Significant judgements and estimates were involved in the
assessment of the recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of those
retail stores, including assumptions on the budgeted
turnover of respective retail stores and discount rates.

Further details about the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are included in notes 3,
14 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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We evaluated the Group's policy and procedures
in identifying impairment indicators and assessed
management’s significant assumptions used in the
value-in-use calculations by (i) comparing the budgeted
turnover with historical results; and (ii) assessing the
sensitivity of management’s estimates and assumptions
used in evaluating whether a reasonably possible change
in assumptions could cause the carrying amounts to
exceed their recoverable amounts.

We also involved our internal valuation experts to assist
us in evaluating the methodologies used and certain key
assumptions and estimates made, including the discount
rates used in determining the recoverable amounts.

In addition, we evaluated the adequacy of financial
statement disclosures relating to impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEN R &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B BEN R &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEN R &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Leung Chi Ying.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2020

REEER
HZE2020FE12 A31BIEEE

TURNOVER
Retail
Other businesses

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, net

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other losses, net

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
Basic

Diluted

EF
HiplA - #E
HERDHER
THER
HipEiE - #E
MBER

BRBE AT A
st

ARREBREAESL

FRRF

ARREBFEAESL

SREF
E5YIN

Note
B aE

11

13

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET
13,097,720 16,258,416
1,934,700 1,477,810
15,032,420 17,736,226
(10,877,614) (12,958,750)
4,154,806 4,777,476
163,055 118,251
(2,499,049) (2,784,708)
(685,399) (686,123)
(124,629) (452,443)
(87.864) (89,162)
920,920 883,291
(376,456) (239,758)
544,464 643,533

80.4 cents 1l

95.0 cents 1Ll

80.4 cents 1l

95.0 cents 1Ll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2020

REEEKER

HZE2020FE12 A31BIEEE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation

Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Changes in fair value of financial
assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
FRRR 544,464 643,533
Hitvz2mEbkE/ (&E)
RARKENIBEZEER
ZIEE :
&N =% 434,356 (106,424)
AATEEHNIBEEER
ZIEE :
BT ARNTEE
STAEMEE
W EEE L
NEEEEH 611,140 91,208
FREMEZEKRE (EHE)
1,045,496 (15,216)
RATESEEA
EEFERER
WA 1,589,960 628,317
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2020

FEMBRRE

7202012 A31H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Other assets

Financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities and
futures broking

Prepayments, other receivables and
other assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Tax recoverable
Cash held on behalf of clients
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities and
futures broking

Other payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank borrowings arising
from securities and futures broking

Bullion loans

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt E T FET
ERBEE
M - e N ARE 14 1,019,130 1,014,404
REME 15 332,649 333,026
EREEE 16(a) 793,676 1,270,893
BREE 17 271 271
HmEE 18 209,359 217,087
EEARATEEFAR
MEERENTBEE 19 1,446,083 935,599
BERIBEE 32 92,201 112,021
BIERBEE 3,893,369 3,883,301
RBEE
FE 20 8,774,591 8,932,514
JE W BR 5K 21 834,649 915,804
BERBEEREEY
& 5 Bl 3R 22 658,673 585,230
BRFIE - M EUERT
N E A B E 23 507,699 433,861
BATFEEABRN
MBEE 24 9,634 13,394
TEemIT A 29 = 145
AU e 8,796 66
REFRKELRS 25 485,289 443,797
RekERRE 25 1,653,767 1,028,326
BREEE 12,933,098 12,353,137
RBAE
FEfTBR 3R 26 129,803 116,156
BERBERREEY
FETBR 3N 27 575,052 503,271
HEmERFRESIERE 28 520,799 542,920
TEEMIA 29 7,054 9,158
TRIRITER 30 519,022 496,594
BERBMECREEY
STRIRITER 30 180,000 280,000
ESBEE 31 1,002,135 1,473,773
HEARE 16(b) 554,400 572,891
PRI 168,756 160,435
BREas 3,657,021 4,155,198
RBEEFE 9,276,077 8,197,939
13,169,446 12,081,240

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERAEBEE

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

AEESEEEBRER QA @ 2020 F #H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2020

REMBRRER
7202012 A31H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital

Reserves

Total equity

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Director

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FHT FET
*RBERE
STRIRITER 30 380,907 440,330
HEBE 16(b) 446,762 727,010
BERIEEE 32 322,663 281,515
BIERBEE 1,150,332 1,448,855
BERE 12,019,114 10,632,385
B
BT/ 33 169,359 169,359
G 35 11,849,755 10,463,026
mER 12,019,114 10,632,385
RBX Winston CHOW Wun Sing B
) Director 5=

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2020

At 1 January 2019

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year:

Changes in fair value of financial assets designated at fair

value through other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeiture of
share options

Transfer from retained profits

Dividends declared and paid during the year

At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2020

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year:

Changes in fair value of financial assets designated at fair

value through other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer of fair value reserve upon the disposal of
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeiture of
share options

Transfer from retained profits

Dividends declared and paid during the year

At 31 December 2020

Note
fisE

20191 A1H

EhEH
EREHIEBA
K BRATBE AR BRERE
DB EE ATRES
EjizE

EREANGER
NRRBRERERRRERE

EZERAEH
ERTRRETRE 12

M2019512A31H

1202061 A1 H

EREF
EREM2TRE
e BRDTEEF A2 AN
Wy R ATEES
EXZE

FREERELE

B
R ERAFEES AR 2 AN
WHEERBRATEERRS

NRRERERERRRERE

ERREEA
ERERLEMRE 12

®2020512A31H

Issued Share
capital premium
BRTRE R iaE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THRL THRL
169,359 1,060,356
169,359 1,060,356*
169,359 1,060,356
169,359 1,060,356*

R These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$11,849,755,000 (2019: HK$10,463,026,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MAEREEHX
EE2020F 12 A3 BILEE

Fair value
reserve of
financial assets Difference
designated arising from
at fair value acquisition
Share Buildings through other of non- Exchange
option revaluation  comprehensive controlling fluctuation Reserve Retained Total
reserve reserve income interests reserve funds profits equity
_BATER
HARBZE  WBEER
PEEHRRE  BRESEL )E y 5
BRERE  BFEARE ZATEERE ZEH SEGEE ffas RERA Ags
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER THRL
(Not\g 34) (Notg 35)
(FtE34) (Fit3E35)
15,251 343,946 842,426 4,897 (212,675) 410,193 7,763,227 10,396,980
- - - - - - 643,533 643,533
- - 91,208 - - - - 91,208
- - - - (106,424) - - (106,424)
- - 91,208 - (106,424) - 643,533 628,317
(983) - - - - - 983 -
- - = - - 68,764 (68,764) =
- - - - - - (392,912) (392,912)
14,268* 343,946% 933,634* 4,897* (319,099)* 478,957* 7,946,067* 10,632,385
14,268 343,946 933,634 4,897 (319,099) 478,957 7,946,067 10,632,385
= = - - - - 544,464 544,464
- - 611,140 - - - - 611,140
- - - - 434,356 - - 434,356
- - 611,140 - 434,356 - 544,464 1,589,960
- - (100,627) - - - 100,627 -
(14,268) - - - - - 14,268 -
- - - - - 68,075 (68,075) -
- - - - - - (203,231) (203,231)
=¥ 343,946* 1,444,147* 4,897* 115,257* 547,032* 8,334,120* 12,019,114

& b Z R EEE B R AR A ISR R 2 47 & 5 11,849,755,000 % 7T (2019 4F : 10,463,026,000 ) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 December 2020

GERERER

HZE2020FE12 A31BIEEE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBeRERE
ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations REMmEHRE

Interest received EYHE

Interest paid EARNEES

Hong Kong profits tax paid BREEFEH

Mainland China tax paid B PBARERIE

Net cash flows from operating activities REXBB R REFHE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHHERE
ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYME  HERZHBEE
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE - #ERREER
plant and equipment P18 538

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at H/EERAFEEAEM
fair value through other comprehensive FEKGENNBEE
income PR IE

Deposits paid for purchases of items of BEYE  #ERREER
property, plant and equipment PARANE &

Increase in other assets Hfth & B 2 3B

Dividends received from listed investments Bl FTHIRERE
Dividends received from unlisted investments B2WIEEHEERE

=N

Net cash flows used in investing activities REGZHMAZREREFHE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMEFHRERE
ACTIVITIES

New bank loans L RITE R

Repayment of bank loans BRRITER

New bullion loans FRECBEE

Repayment of bullion loans BEECBEE

Principal portion of lease payments MEFEz A& B

Interest paid EANEIE

Dividends paid EATARE

Net cash flows used in financing activities RERSACESREFE

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND HE4&RZRE& &M/

CASH EQUIVALENTS (R ) FH
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning RENzHERERRE
of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SMN&EEREFHTE - FE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND REXAZEH4RZREES
OF YEAR

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P & TERT TAET
36(a) 2,599,014 911,417
63,665 69,653
(57,956) (58,237)
(64,218) (35,363)
(250,240) (215,962)
2,290,265 671,508
(233,665) (414,729)
715 279
19 100,656 =
(2,189) (434)
(830) (8,832)
24,360 24,710
1,018 1,070
(109,935) (397,936)
4,782,000 2,371,140
(4,920,535) (2,120,313)
1,912,543 2,102,108
(2,610,353) (1,811,132)
36(b) (539,329) (655,508)
(31,390) (30,632)
(203,231) (392,912)
(1,610,295) (537,249)
570,035 (263,677)
1,028,326 1,302,527
55,406 (10,524)
1,653,767 1,028,326
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS TEABRERER

Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020FE12 A31BIEEE
2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B =t TR FHBT

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND BEéREZERREERIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances Re RRTEX 25 1,599,651 900,563
Non-pledged time deposits with original FHEEIHA LR =R

maturity of less than three months when ZERATEBER

acquired 25 54,116 127,763

1,653,767 1,028,326

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED @ ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEMBHREMT

1. Corporate Information 1. AREH
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited is a limited liability AEEEEBRRAERARTINBREZM
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company K2 BRAR - ARBZEMPER
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, fizpd Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Bermuda. Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °
During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal FAAEEREZEEEBHWT
activities:
0 manufacture and retail of jewellery and distribution of watches . RERENTERER D H
. wholesale of precious metals . EeBE
. securities and futures broking . FHRMERE
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are detailed in note 45 to the KATMBRARFEHENGE M RGN
consolidated financial statements. 5450

2.1 Basis of Preparation 21 REEE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, certain buildings classified as property, plant and
equipment, customer gold deposits, bullion loans, derivative financial
instruments and certain financial assets which have been measured at
fair value as further explained in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements. These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

KB BRENRREESHMAE
([BEEEMAE )R 2 BBEMBER
SR EBMBRSER ] (BEMA
EEMBREER BB EU(E
BEEARRE) BELBRALZ
SR REB D ERD 2 HERTE MR
B BRAGAYMBREME24FME—F
fERE - DAY EEHECRENE 28
RYE BEEREIETET FFPF
% ESBRE (TESRMIARETH
BEREN - NRQUMBRE HEEL KA
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TNER  BRBEEAEIN  EEEY

BEEHHEOTT

GRERE

ARAVBRERFBEHZE2020612 A
BNNBEFEZASBEMISRE - WBAQ
A —fmAR A EE SRR EE 2 B
(BEABEER) S4A5ERRB2EY
BEFREEE M AE 8RR E
B EEFEAEEOE  WAHKENE
AR E R RE D (BI—REREE B A
BRENEBRHBEHFNIEEEBNIREE
2SO R - BEVSEHIE

EADAERKREREEONERETA
ZYREEIBERE - AEEZEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEMBHREMT

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 21 REEE(HE)
Basis of Consolidation (continued) SEEE(E)
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income ERniRLkEMEZEKRER 2 SEKEH
are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the non- FER AR A ERRA A RIERRRE
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests & MR E g BB R R AR
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, BEBER - MAERAEEZKERARM
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between RHBEZEBANRRBCEERARE -
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. B WA AXRReRE  HREGe

RENZHHE -
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and =B KRBT EX it 2 =T
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three TEZ-ESZELRES  AKESE
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest M EEREERIREAR - WBARM
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity BiEEREE MW EAREITHIRE - BIE
transaction. BmXHAERE -
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets AR KEHHTB AR 2IEHH#E - BIR
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying BRANZHBARIZEE(BHEEER)
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation RE&E: (VEFFEEBRBREES ZER
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the B Rt ARz R ELEZSE I
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and BROBEWREBZAFEE  (i)EME
(i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share RBEBEZAFEER (I BERFEM
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is EEE 7 B EE - FAIERNEME
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the AR EERZAEREGID @ RERR
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the SEERLENBEESBEMARBZ
related assets or liabilities. BREE  RIEREHSBEBRERK
REEF o
2.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and Disclosures 22 EHEEREEZZ2E

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current

year's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial

Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described below:

AEBCRAFEE 2 ERMBRE HRR
M2018FBI IS 2 BESER R T A&
ERIRBRBHREER -

BiEMBRELER
F3RBIAR

BABRE £
F95  BHESH
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BT aRE £A
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2.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework"”) sets out a comprehensive set of concepts for financial
reporting and standard setting, and provides guidance for preparers of
financial statements in developing consistent accounting policies and
assistance to all parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on measurement and
reporting financial performance, new guidance on the derecognition of
assets and liabilities, and updated definitions and recognition criteria for
assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual
Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein
override the concepts or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the financial position

and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated set
of activities and assets to be considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business. The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions or other events that occurred on or after 1 January 2020.
The amendments did not have any impact on the financial position and

performance of the Group.

2.2
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2.2

Changes In Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address issues affecting
financial reporting in the period before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"). The
amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to
continue during the period of uncertainty before the introduction of the
alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging relationships which
are directly affected by these uncertainties. The amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position and performance of the Group as the
Group does not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for lessees to elect
not to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as
a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic. The practical expedient
applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change; (ii)
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due
on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change to
other terms and conditions of the lease. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application
permitted and shall be applied retrospectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain monthly lease payments
for the leases of the Group's retail stores have been reduced or waived by
the lessors as a result of the pandemic and there are no other changes to
the terms of the leases. The Group has early adopted the amendment on
1 January 2020 and elected not to apply lease modification accounting
for all rent concessions granted by the lessors as a result of the pandemic
during the year ended 31 December 2020. Accordingly, a reduction in the
lease payments arising from the rent concessions of HK$73,270,000 has
been accounted for as a variable lease payment by derecognising part of
the lease liabilities and crediting to profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of material.
The new definition states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information,
or both. The amendments did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

2.2
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2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated financial

statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts®®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®”

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use’

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,

lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41°

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020
to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS

4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply
HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

2.3
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable

to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS
3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of
the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of

transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16 address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which
affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount when accounting for changes in
the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets
and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit changes
required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a
temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the
separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity reasonably
expects the RFR risk component to become separately identifiable within
the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to
disclose additional information to enable users of financial statements to
understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity's
financial instruments and risk management strategy. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and
shall be applied retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate the

comparative information.

2.3
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings denominated in
Hong Kong dollars based on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate as at
31 December 2020. If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced
by RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply this practical expedient
upon the modification of these borrowings when the "“economically
equivalent” criterion is met and expects that no significant modification
gain or loss will arise as a result of applying the amendments to these

changes.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments

are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’'s
right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of
the liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have

any significant impact on the Group'’s financial statements.

2.3
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2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

2.3
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2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to
the Group are as follows:

. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.
An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is
not expected to have a significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

. HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example
13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying HKFRS
16.

2.3

CEBEEREREBUBREER
(%)

EBP KR ELR2018E FE 202058
Bz FEERBRE R BV ERELERZE
S BAMBRELENEIN  BAUE
HEEAFIREEEBEN REES
FPERBIBAFETA - BHEARAS
EpACHEINDSE S

. BBV RELEANEIFTEHMT
B MAZERTETTSETE
HEBRRERAESBAEBENER
RAFEEENZERAaSHNE
A -ZEERERENENEER
ZERSXNBWEBNER  BFEHE
AREFRREF AR E
B -BRBEIRERANEELS
IREREERNFERE BHKA
K2 BERBIRIBLNEEHEE - %
BETR 202241 B 1 B bAT&RI1A
e AR - TTIREER %
BB T e U AL BIBEREE
EEATE -

s TEARAUBBEEMNFI6HREE:
e B &R B R E LR FE 165548
HEEGEM3PHEAREEY
EREBRNNTEA o PALER
HEBMBRELERE 165185
MEAEE N EEERE -

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEEEBRER QA

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
2020 F %k



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FERBmEME
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FEESHEEHE
Business combinations and goodwill EEEE

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated retained profits

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice 30 Business Combinations in 2001, goodwill arising on
acquisition was eliminated against consolidated retained profits in the
year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains
eliminated against consolidated retained profits and is not recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when all or part of the
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

PR S B

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, customer gold deposits,
bullion loans, derivative financial instruments and certain financial assets
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising

the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FERBmEME
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Impairment of non-financial assets FUBEERE

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
financial assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and

that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

or

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEMBHREMT

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation ME - BERZERITE
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, ME - e (BRERIEIN « =K
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any $M$Eﬂ§ﬁ?ﬁ%&&ﬁﬂ@%?ﬁ?&ﬁu
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment B o W% - BBRRDEEERABEEA
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing ERFEEERENRTE RS 2EERR R
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. B2 EEEEIERA o
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have ¥ BB NREBBRABERES
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally 2 MEERRE  —RRELZE
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period YHEB R A IERERTHE - (TS
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are REA - AEAREZHERNEEREE
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the RENUERER - WATHERALS
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of M BBRSE AXREESEZES

property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives

and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this

purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Buildings

Not depreciated

terms and 2.5%

Plant and machinery 10% to 30%

Leasehold improvements, furniture,
fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

20% to 33%
30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant

asset.

Over the shorter of the lease

NHERRBEEACAFHR 2 ERHEE -
WA R E -

WENESRETE  RBEME  ERER
REETEE 2 fHET A5 A AR E A A Bk
HEZEFBREE - JLmE  IERZ
TEFERERNT :
KAEREL TFIE
BT RREFEHR25%
MERIEE

G 10% % 30%
fﬁiﬂ%%ﬁﬂ% BRAF

R 20% £ 33%
mﬁ 30%
WEYE  WREREER 2EHER
FHEHATRE - #BEZKASHERA

BEETASEZZAMN - e EMHER
AETE - FREE  UERFHRTE
TERBEAMBERERBZREEE R
o

WE - Wes MRHE R BRAEMETRE
RBLZEBHANHESMAEEAREE
THBEERKREENZE  THEERA
B o EMLERREA BB UL ERAE
FEFERAMEERTECZHEHE
IEATEEEu EEZFREERABRRN

7."
m °©

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

~ A

Aet£BEARAR

53/

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
2020 F #



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

PR S B

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant

and equipment when completed and ready for use.

The transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment have been adopted for property, plant and
equipment stated at valuation. As a result, those assets stated at revalued
amounts based on revaluations which were reflected in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 1993 have not been
revalued by class at the end of the reporting period. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the buildings revaluation reserve
realised in respect of the previous valuations is transferred to retained

profits as a movement in reserves.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including the leasehold
property held as a right-of-use asset which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties

are stated at fair value.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in

the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in

the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite

useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBREMT
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

The Group's intangible assets, representing eligibility rights to trade on or
through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (the “Futures Exchange”),
have indefinite useful lives and are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life
is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment

from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Where applicable, the cost of
a right-of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the

estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

50 years
2 to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of

the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of office properties, retail stores and factories
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease

or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in turnover in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are

recognised as turnover in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as

finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value designated through other

comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out

for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value designated through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value

through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity
under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Investments and other financial assets (continued) REREMEBEE(H)
Subsequent measurement (continued) Higit2 (&)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss L FEEFA B Y EEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the BATEEFABRNMBEERATE
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net changes ERGRAMBHARAYE  EAFEE

in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments which
the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised
as other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the

amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
removed

a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) MEEERE(E)
General approach (continued) —BHE(E)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for accounts receivable which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 -

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 -

to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings or payables, as

appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

(a)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses
on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains
or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
except for the gains or losses arising from the Group's own credit
risk which are presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on
these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(o) Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial
assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as bullion contracts
and cross currency swaps, to hedge its bullion price risk and foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value
is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are
taken directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBRENE
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Inventories FE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of production overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBRENE
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Income tax (continued) FRE% (&)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,

except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

D in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

D in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected

to be settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(@)  Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods represents the net invoiced value of
goods sold, after allowances for returns, trade discounts and value
added tax and is recognised at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
goods.

Some contracts for the sale of jewellery through e-shops provide
customers with a right of return. The right of return gives rise to
variable consideration.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Sale of goods (continued)

(a)

(i)

(i)

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine the
amount of variable consideration that can be included in the
transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned,
instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised. A right-
of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost of
sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from
a customer.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group's retail of jewellery and watches segment operates
a customer loyalty programme, which allows customers to
accumulate award credits when they purchase products. The
award credits can be redeemed for discounts on products
in a limited period. Under HKFRS 15, the customer loyalty
programme gives rise to a separate performance obligation
because they provide a material right to the customer and
allocated a portion of the transaction price to the loyalty
credits awarded to customers based on the relative stand-
alone selling price.

Commission on securities and futures broking

Revenue from the commission on securities and futures broking is
recognised at the point in time when the relevant contract notes are
executed.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Income from the sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised on the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are

executed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RERMBREWT

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Revenue recognition (continued) AR (&)
Other income (continued) BEKA (&)

Government subsidies are recognised where there is reasonable assurance
that the government grants will be received and all attaching conditions
will be complied with, as further explained in the accounting policies for
“Government grants” above.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers
the related goods and services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods
expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the
former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any expected
costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in the value of the
returned goods. The Group updates the measurement of the asset for any
revisions to the expected level of returns and any additional decreases in
the value of the returned goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of
the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer and is measured
at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return to
the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and
the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each
reporting period.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEMBHREMT
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Share-based payments (continued) B 65 2 A4 ()

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and

end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are

also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised.
When awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service

conditions are satisfied.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share

dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the end
of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave

earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant income and are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently

administered fund.

The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group's employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in

accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China and Taiwan are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the respective local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentages of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable in

accordance with the rules of the respective central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are expensed in the

period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as liabilities when they are approved by the
shareholders in general meetings. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in

the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws grant the Directors
the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PR S B

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in
the consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries operating outside Hong
Kong are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into
Hong Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of subsidiaries operating outside Hong Kong are translated into
Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside
Hong Kong which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

(a)

(b)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly
affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from
contracts with customers:

Determining the method to estimate variable consideration and
assessing the constraint for the retail of jewellery

Certain contracts for the retail of jewellery through e-shops
include a right of return that give rise to variable consideration.
In estimating the variable consideration, the Group is required to
exercise judgement to determine to use either the expected value
method or the most likely amount method based on which method
better predicts the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled.

The Group determined that the expected value method is the
appropriate method to use in estimating the variable consideration
for the sale of jewellery with rights of return, given the large
number of customer contracts that have similar characteristics.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the
transaction price, the Group considers whether the amount of
variable consideration is constrained. The Group determined that
the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained based on
its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic
conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration
will be resolved within a short time frame.

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as
the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of
the property and the present value of the minimum lease payments
not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased out
and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

(©

(d)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate the
lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

(a)

Variable consideration for returns
The Group estimates variable consideration to be included in the
transaction price for the sale of jewellery with rights of return.

The Group developed a statistical model for forecasting sales
returns. The model used the historical return data of each product
to come up with expected return percentages. These percentages
are applied to determine the expected value of the variable
consideration. Any significant changes in experience as compared to
historical return pattern will impact the expected return percentages
estimated by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(@)

(b)

(©

Variable consideration for returns (continued)

The Group updates its assessment of expected returns half yearly
and the refund liabilities are adjusted accordingly. Estimates
of expected returns are sensitive to changes in circumstances
and the Group’s past experience regarding returns may not be
representative of customers’ actual returns in the future. As at 31
December 2020, the amount recognised as refund liabilities was
HK$787,000 (2019: HK$633,000) for the expected returns.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The Group’s unlisted equity investments have been valued using the
income capitalisation method and net realisable value method. This
valuation requires the Group to make estimates about capitalisation
rates, and hence they are subject to uncertainty. The fair value
of the unlisted equity investments as at 31 December 2020 was
HK$32,193,000 (2019: HK$34,464,000). Further details are
included in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for accounts
receivable. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, product type and customer type and
rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the retail
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes
in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s accounts
receivable is disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

3

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)

(e)

Provision for expected credit losses on other financial assets

The measurement of expected losses on other financial assets
requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors,
changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the
expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition. The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and
is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

&

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

()

(9)

(h)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are contained in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of property, plant, equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for property, plant, equipment and right-of-use assets at the end
of each reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is based on its value in use. In assessing value-in-
use, management estimates the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and chooses a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amounts of property, plant, equipment and right-
of-use assets as at 31 December 2020 were HK$1,019,130,000
(2019: HK$1,014,404,000) and HK$793,676,000 (2019:
HK$1,270,893,000), respectively. Further details are included in
notes 14 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill, property,
plant, equipment and right-of-use assets)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
estimates the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and chooses a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

3. ZE

BETHE R A ()

st AR E & (&)

(7)

()

(h)

BEFHEE
AABEEE - 8% B
BRI 2 EERER - 1HHER
BERHRBEE - BEAERZE
EHBEESHN  EEEBRE
R ORE SR E v F 2 AT e RF ] Rk
AR AR RE ISR BIRBEE R EAH
B o E—SHBERNG AR ERE
MizE32 -

WE - EERREAREFEEE
JR1E

AEBERERERRTEDE -
BERBEAREREEERD
HBRIMRRETR - EEERRE
EEBMREEEHEETERN
FHEBSET KBS B
BRE - REHMEEREEN B8
Bt RaEERRcELE N
MBEHARRERE  LEEREE
MBRENNEZEREREN
HE- R2020E128318 ¥
¥ HRENREUAREREEEN
BRETEE D B4 1,019,130,00078 7T
(20194 : 1,014,404,0007% 7T )
% 793,676,0007% TT(20194F :
1,270,893,0008 T ) » # — F &
BENGATBRENTE 14K 16

HHBRERE(BE Y% #
B RREU REHEEERI)
AEEREEREHRFEE2HIE
PHEEERBHFERMHRETR
REERFH BV EESF R
BRETREETRERNR - At
FRBEERNEPRENREER
RENBEM B R ETTRE R - (W&
ESReELEU  REERDE
AYEeE(BEAFEEREE
RAREFREEIRRE) B
FERE - X FEEREEKRAT]
BRUBEZ A FRARZSHAL
RNHEXHMBEEXTERT
BHRHEEEE CRIENAFE -
REEAEREEFER  EEER
HAGHREBEEXRSELEN
ZARBERE  MEREERR
KU EREREREZHE -

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESBEERAERARA

119

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

2020 F #



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

&

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(1)

1

Measurement of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their fair value. The fair value was based on
valuation on these properties conducted by an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve making assumptions on certain market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions would
result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and the corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimation costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates, based on the current market condition
and the historical experience in selling goods of a similar nature,
including but not limit to economic outlook, sales forecasts and
the forecast market value for the inventory items. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. The Group
reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting period.

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has four reportable operating
segments as follows:

(a)

the retail of jewellery and watches segment produces and sells
jewellery products and distributes watches for the Group's retail
business and operates retail stores mainly in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan;

the wholesale of precious metals segment trades precious metals to
wholesale customers;

the securities and futures broking segment provides brokering and
dealing services for securities and futures; and

the other businesses segment comprises, principally, the investment
in properties for their rental income and capital appreciation
potential, and other jewellery related businesses.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before
tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that certain dividend income are excluded
from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

4,

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2020

Segment revenue
Sales to external
customers
Intersegment sales
Other revenue

Reconciliation:
Elimination of
intersegment sales

Segment results
Reconciliation:
Dividend income

Profit before tax

Note
FisE

BZ2020%F
12A31H
LLFE

2 E U 5
HETINREP

AEEHE
Ht s

HED ¢
HENIHE

P ERE
EIED -
BEMA

BRAR AR

4. ReEIVBERE)
Retail of
jewellery Wholesale Securities
and of precious  and futures Other
watches metals broking businesses Total
HAR L EY BER At -
EREE o HEgL %% CEl
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER THT TET
13,097,720 1,885,388 34,879 2,958 15,020,945
- 450,778 - 2,532 453,310
- - - 11,475 11,475
13,097,720 2,336,166 34,879 16,965 15,485,730
(453,310)
15,032,420
914,506 11,484 (26,093) (3,859) 896,038
24,882
920,920
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

4,

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2020

Other segment
information

Interest income

Dividend income

Net fair value loss on
investment properties

Net fair value gain on
bullion loans designated
as at fair value through
profit or loss

Net fair value gain on
derivative financial
instruments
— transactions not
qualifying as hedges

Net fair value loss on
financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net loss on bullion loans
designated as at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net loss on disposal of
derivative financial
instruments

Net loss on disposal of
items of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Impairment of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment of right-of-use
assets

Impairment of accounts
receivable

Impairment of receivables
arising from securities
and futures broking

Write-down of inventories
to net realisable value

Finance costs

Capital expenditure
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EAMR%

Retail of
jewellery
and
watches
HER
BHRTE
HK$'000
THEr

(27,028)

(10,247)

(2,111)

209,464
19,855

4,880
276,438
649,823

4,063
169,572

20,982

29,198
76,100
243,260

Wholesale
of precious
metals
BLE

il
HK$'000
THERT

(5)

150

1,591

4., REFIBER(E)
Securities

and futures Other
broking businesses
BER 2
HERe 7%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THERT
(35,892) (5)
(496) -
- 1,811
3,760 -
1,203 253
3,877 609
44,076 -
11,727 37
250 902

Total
At
HK$'000
T

(62,930)
(496)

1,811

(10,247)

(1,961)
3,760

209,464
21,446

4,880
277,894
654,309

4,063
169,572

20,982

44,076

29,198
87,864
244,412
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

4,

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2019

Segment revenue
Sales to external
customers
Intersegment sales
Other revenue

Reconciliation:
Elimination of
intersegment sales

Segment results
Reconciliation:
Dividend income

Profit before tax

HZE2195
12831H
ILEE

7 s
HETIREP

PEREH &
HtbUeas

I
HIENDHE

BRI AT 7

Note
FisE

4. REIVERE)
Retail of
jewellery Wholesale Securities
and of precious and futures Other
watches metals broking businesses Total
KER EcE FER Y Hth \
BHTE e ek %% BF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00
TET FHT THT TET THET
16,258,416 1,435,672 24,113 5,981 17,724,182
— 885,758 - 2,940 888,698
_ - - 12,044 12,044
16,258,416 2,321,430 24,113 20,965 18,624,924
(888,698)
17,736,226
1,282,011 5,727 (428,640) (1,062) 858,036
25,255
883,291
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

4,

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2019

Other segment
information

Interest income

Dividend income

Net fair value gain on
investment properties

Net fair value gain on
bullion loans designated
as at fair value through
profit or loss

Net fair value loss on
derivative financial
instruments
- transactions not
qualifying as hedges

Net fair value loss on
financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net loss on bullion loans
designated as at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net loss on disposal of
derivative financial
instruments

Net loss on disposal of
items of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Impairment of accounts
receivable

Impairment of receivables
arising from securities
and futures broking

Write-down of inventories
to net realisable value

Finance costs

Capital expenditure

BZE2019%
12A31H
HEE

Hitvn BER

FIBMA
BEMA
RENE s ATE
EEkE
T ARATEE
STREzES
BEEHATE
BFh
SESRTAY AT
BEIHE
- THA MRS
255
BATEETAR
e EES
ATEEFHE
EEARATEE
HEREz 82
EEE TR

HEMESRTA
FEHE

HEME . BER
REEAERA

UERS T E T
ZIE

ERERECHE

YRR R ME

ErRkBMERLES
Z W R RME

WHFREAER
\\W{E

F
HBER
BAMRS

Retail of
jewellery
and
watches
KER
BHRTE
HK$'000
FTAT

(19,693)

1,600

224,208

121,300

4,394
233,607
681,449

18,790

11,790
76,977
414,679

Wholesale
of precious
metals
EoE

# B
HK$'000
THT

(23)

721

1,932

4., REFIBER(E)

Securities

and futures Other

broking businesses

FEHER Ho

HEse S

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FAET

(49,806) (6)

(525) -

- (2,088)

201 =

1,803 340

3,910 -

445,668 -

12,185 —

50 -

Total

A=

HK$'00
TAT

(69,528)
(525)

(2,088)

2,321

201

224,208

123,232

4,394
235,750
685,359

18,790

445,668

11,790
89,162
414,729
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

4.  Operating Segment Information (continued)

(a)

(b)

Geographical information

Revenue from external customers

Mainland China LalEiyN 7
Hong Kong and Macau BB REM
Taiwan S

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the
customers.

Non-current assets

Mainland China A A R
Hong Kong and Macau BB REM
Taiwan Ed-

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

The turnover from the Group's largest customer amounted to less
than 10% of the Group's total turnover for the current and prior
years.

5. Turnover

Revenue from the following activities has been included in turnover:

Revenue from contracts with customers FKEEFEH Nam
Revenue from other sources BRI Wz

Gross rental income from investment

REMZELEHO BHEE

properties operating leases: WA -
Other lease payments, including HibHEFIE - BEETE
fixed payments DE:A

4, RBESWER(E)
(a) HEZR
WETFIKESL 2 Wan
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FET
8,686,658 9,689,478
6,194,634 7,912,189
151,128 134,559
15,032,420 17,736,226
R ER TER AT E S
S o
HETBEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
1,243,670 1,204,597
1,079,809 1,600,135
31,606 30,949
2,355,085 2,835,681
LR EEER NIREERET
WEES - WA EEREEAEAT
BEFAEMBEAREHTEEE
RELERIBEE °
(b) BEBREEERFZESHR
RAFER LFEREAEBZA
REZEERHAREREXEY
LR 10% o
5. E¥EE
EEBOEATEB 2 W
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
15,020,945 17,724,182
11,475 12,044
15,032,420 17,736,226
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

5.

Turnover (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i

Disaggregated revenue information

Segments

For the year ended
31 December 2020

Types of goods or services
Sale of goods
Securities and futures broking

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

Geographical area
Mainland China

Hong Kong and Macau
Taiwan

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point
in time

Pk

H5Z2020F

12A31ALEE

ERBRBEY
EmiHE

RERFAH
Z#lgs

BEHS
RE AR
B RR

=

=/3

KEEFPAK
Z#lgs

U 3 7 5 B

EEmERE

5. BEHEE
REEFENzKE
() D HEREER
Retail of
jewellery  Wholesale Securities
and  of precious and futures Other
watches metals broking  businesses Total
KER BLR BER Hit
BHREE 3 HELR 5% &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TERT TET THERT TERT
13,097,720 1,885,388 - 2,958 14,986,066
- - 34,879 - 34,879
13,097,720 1,885,388 34,879 2,958 15,020,945
8,685,590 - - = 8,685,590
4,261,002 1,885,388 34,879 2,958 6,184,227
151,128 - - - 151,128
13,097,720 1,885,388 34,879 2,958 15,020,945
13,097,720 1,885,388 34,879 2,958 15,020,945
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBRENE

5.  Turnover (continued) 5. EEHE(E
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REEZFAN 2N (E)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) () DYWL E)
Retail of
jewellery Wholesale Securities
and of precious  and futures Other
Segments 2 watches metals broking businesses Total
KER ESB FHER Hith
BRTE #E HELe ¥7% At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THT TAT THL THT
For the year ended BZE2019%
31 December 2019 12B31BLEE
Types of goods or services EmBRBEE
Sale of goods EmiEE 16,258,416 1,435,672 - 5981 17,700,069
Securities and futures broking FHRBEEL - - 24,113 - 24,113
Total revenue from contracts RERFAN
with customers 2z 16,258,416 1,435,672 24,113 5981 17,724,182
Geographical area RS
Mainland China R AR 9,688,252 - - - 9,688,252
Hong Kong and Macau B RAF 6,435,605 1,435,672 24,113 5981 7,901,371
Taiwan 2E 134,559 - - - 134,559
Total revenue from contracts KERFPAK
with customers 2Bl 16,258,416 1,435,672 24,113 5,981 17,724,182
Timing of revenue recognition Uiz B KA
Goods transferred at a point EEmEER
in time 16,258,416 1,435,672 24,113 5,981 17,724,182
CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED PORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Turnover (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)
Set out below the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts to
customers to the amounts disclosed in the segment information:

Segments

For the year ended
31 December 2020

Revenue from contracts with
customers

External customers

Intersegment sales

Intersegment adjustments and
eliminations

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

For the year ended
31 December 2019

Revenue from contracts with
customers

External customers

Intersegment sales

Intersegment adjustments and
eliminations

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

REMBREMT
5. EEHE(E)
REEFAHN 2N (H)
() SEREEHE)
RERFAEHZ W ED AR
BESBEIHENT
Retail of
jewellery  Wholesale Securities
and  of precious and futures Other
2 watches metals broking  businesses Total
KER E4E BER Hitr
EHTE #E HELR % At
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
Tz THT THT THT T
BZ2020F
12A31BLEE
REEFEHNZ
Wi
INREF 13,097,720 1,885,388 34,879 2,958 15,020,945
W SHE - 450,778 = = 450,778
13,097,720 2,336,166 34,879 2,958 15,471,723
WEHER
Eap| - (450,778) - = (450,778)
REEFEH
2Bl 13,097,720 1,885,388 34,879 2,958 15,020,945
BZ2019F
12831BLEE
REEFANZ
[
SAREF 16,258,416 1,435,672 24,113 5981 17,724,182
MR iH & = 885,758 = = 885,758
16,258,416 2,321,430 24,113 5981 18,609,940
AEAER
E3f| - (885,758) = = (885,758)
REBEFEH
i Le 16,258,416 1,435,672 24,113 5981 17,724,182
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

5. Turnover (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included in contract

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting B R M
period:
Sale of goods EmiHE

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods
and payment is mainly on cash and credit card settlement, except
for corporate clients and wholesale customers, where payment is
due within 60 days from delivery. Some contracts provide customers
with a right of return which give rise to variable consideration
subject to constraint.

Securities and futures broking

The performance obligation is satisfied on the transaction dates
when the relevant contract notes are executed and the payment
is generally due two days after the transaction date or at specific
terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and dealers.

5. EEE(E
REFFAERNZ W (&)

() DEUZEHE)
TRETAAHRERRARZAR
HEBNRIIAGHEREZ NES

=

RESHIBIIAGHNEEL

#
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
88,610 53,730
(i)  BRIEE
REBERBRAEEZ BEZ MR
T
EmiHE

BORERZAEREER - B
EEPRUEES HRR 60
BB - EREE BB S
REEBFRE - BHLNABFHE
ORI U ELEINR A
BRE -

ErRBELL
BRORERBURBAOXEZR
ZEEER - HRATEAERER
5B MEMATIZAEEN - B4
RZ B ME 2 E G2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

6. Profit before Tax

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold

Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value”

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Auditor’'s remuneration

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Covid-19-related rent concessions from
lessors

Loss/(gain) on termination of leases

Employee benefit expense* (excluding
Directors’ emoluments (note 8)):
Wages and salaries

Pension scheme contributions
Less: Forfeited contributions

Net pension scheme contributions

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment®

Impairment of right-of-use assets"

Impairment of accounts receivable®

Impairment of receivables arising from
securities and futures broking”

Direct operating expenses (including
repairs and maintenance) arising on
rental-earning investment properties

Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment
properties’

Net fair value gain on bullion loans
designated as at fair value
through profit or loss’

Net fair value loss/(gain) on derivative
financial instruments — transactions
not qualifying as hedges®

Net fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss"

Net loss on bullion loans designated as at

fair value through profit or loss™

Net loss on disposal of derivative financial

instruments™
Net loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

HEHA
M S ETRRHE

ME - MEBERERBZNE

EREBEZHE
R &

AEHEAGERTEBRENL

HEzE
HEALTH2019BINES

R A ER
BIEREZEE,/ (W)

BERAFEY * (TBE
BE=WE (M)
TERFS

RIREE B
B BRI

RAREFEIHFFE

ME - BERREBRE'

EAEEERE"

R R AE "

ArhPERLEL Y
YRR E "

ARBEE  REMEERZE

A (BEEERRR)

&%@%§Q$Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ/
e ARAT BB R RS

ESBRRENATEETFKRES"

MTEEMIAZAFEBEFER/
(z) - THEHPERELRS"

BAFEEGABROMBEELZ

AVEEFER'
EBERBRATEEITABL
EoBREFER"

HETESeRIATER"

HENE  #RRREREFER

6. BRBLATEAR
AEEZBRHEAENEMEGIA) :

Note 2020 2019
BisE HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET

10,617,506 12,599,520

29,198 11,790

14 277,894 235,750
16(a) 654,309 685,359
3,741 4,063

16(c) 71,881 55,178
16(b) (73,270) -
6(c) (2,371) 271
1,255,053 1,378,343

135,588 210,035
(125) (59)

135,463 209,976

1,390,516 1,588,319

14 4,063 =
16(a) 169,572 =
21 20,982 18,790
22 44,076 445,668
1,028 1,357
15 1,811 (2,088)
(10,247) (70)

(1,961) 2,321

3,760 201

209,464 224,208

21,446 123,232

4,880 4,394
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

Profit before Tax (continued)

Interest income FEHA

Dividend income from listed investments EmREZBRERA
Dividend income from unlisted investments FETIRE 2BRBMA
Government grants** B Haas e

Design fee paid to a related party**

Foreign exchange differences, net EXERE 38

AR

* %

This balance is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The employee benefit expense included an amount of HK$3,595,000 (2019:
HK$3,545,000) paid to a Director’s family members as employee emoluments.

These balances are included in “Other losses, net” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

These balances are included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The purpose of the above bullion transactions entered
into by the Group is to manage the Group’s bullion price risk. Such loans and
contracts did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

Government grants mainly represent subsidies received in connection with the
support from the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating
to these subsidies.

This balance is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The design fee paid to a related party, who is a
Director’s family member, was determined in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group.

MEEA L HREE *

6. BRBIADER (F)

AR

**

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
(62,930) (69,528)
(24,360) (24,710)
(1,018) (1,070)
(103,994) -
84 -
(46,517) 5,742

WESRBEEGABRER EMHEKE]
o

EERFBIOEINT REEZRE
KEEREEMSE 253,595,000/ T
(20194 : 3,545,000 7T) °

WEEHRBEERARaR LIAME
B FElF -

HEEREEEFABRER EIHENA]
hoe AEENY FESBRHEEER
AEE B BERER - ZFEERE
KA A B &t BRI 2 1 o

BIFHERE = R BB BT EBURD
BB ESRBRA ISR 2 fl - &
ERAALRAER G HRAREE -

IESREEEGFARER EIHEKK)
e AEAL(R—REFHREMNE)
XNZRFAEDAEBER R —REKA
RPERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

Finance Costs

Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and

other loans

Interest on lease liabilities

Directors’ Emoluments

7.
Note
BitsE
RITER B REMERZ
E
HEBEF S 16(b)
8.

Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules,
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

Fees

Other emoluments:

Salaries and allowances
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable
Pension scheme contributions

fikn

HioE -
e OB
ENRENBEEL
RIREBFEIHRK

MBER
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TR
41,641 42,852
46,223 46,310
87,864 89,162
E=He

BRIz EWHRA - FE QB 383(1)
@) OROERAR(KEE ST
HERRPE 2R AEEZESTMHE

BEWT :

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

TR THEL

3,237 3,320

5,983 6,181

718 502

97 103

6,798 6,786

10,035 10,106
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

8. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

An analysis of the emoluments paid and payable to the Directors during

the year is as follows:

8.

ESHE(8)
FRENRENTEE M OWIT

Discretionary

bonuses Pension
Salaries and paid and scheme
Fees allowances payable  contributions Total
ek B RER Bire
ne =41 HERA TEIR &5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TET TET TR THT THT
2020
Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing IR e 419 3,146 313 - 3,938
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing EEiE 351 290 25 15 681
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing Bk E 293 2,547 320 82 3,242
1,063 5,983 718 97 7,861
Non-executive Directors: FHTES
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERE 351 - - - 351
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam ENILY Yiad 351 - - - 351
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun* BRINENE A * 351 - - - 351
Mr. LEE Ka Lun* FREFA 419 - - - 419
Dr. LO King Man* EEXEL* 351 - - - 351
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung* BIRER A 351 - - - 351
2,174 - - - 2,174
3,237 5,983 718 97 10,035
2019
Executive Directors: HITER
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing EbR G 430 3,247 257 = 3,934
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing Rk EE 360 300 25 16 701
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing BB E 300 2,634 220 87 3,241
1,090 6,181 502 103 7,876
Non-executive Directors: EHTES:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRBLE 360 - - - 360
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam EHMEE 360 - - - 360
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun* PRImENEE A * 360 = = = 360
Mr. LEE Ka Lun* FRE S 430 - - - 430
Dr. LO King Man* ESXET* 360 - - - 360
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung* BIRER A 360 - - - 360
2,230 = = = 2,230
3,320 6,181 502 103 10,106
*  |ndependent Non-executive Directors @ BYFWTESR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

10.

Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

There were no other emoluments payable to the Independent Non-
executive Directors during the year (2019: Nil).

During the year, 9 (2019: Nil) directors of the Company waived
emoluments totalling HK$284,000 (2019: Nil).

Senior Management’s Emoluments

The emoluments paid to the members of senior management by band are
as follows:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included
two (2019: two) Directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the emoluments for the year of the remaining
three (2019: three) non-Director highest paid employees are as follows:

Salaries and allowances e M2
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable B RERBIEEA
Pension scheme contributions RIRS IR

1,000,001 %7 % 1,500,000 % 7T
1,500,001 % 7L £ 2,000,000 % 7T
2,500,001 87T % 3,000,00075 7T
3,000,001 7T 3,500,000 7T -
3,500,001 7T % 4,000,000 57T -

8. EEMS(A)

FRTELMMS RN TBUIERNTES
(2019%F : &) °

ER - RATIL(20195F : TX)ESE
MES 284,000 TR £ (20194 -

mENMSREBAENZMEMT -

Number of individuals

AH
2020 2019
1 =
1 1
2 2
1
4 4

10. hERBHFMES

FRAAEELLESFMERSCERS
(2019 : MA)EE - EFAMSEH
B L EES - AFEHH=4(2019
FZR)BRRFHFESRE ZFAM
LERMT

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT
7,906 8,181
542 767

251 409
8,699 9,357
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

10.

1.

Five Highest Paid Employees (continued)

The number of non-Director highest paid employees whose emoluments
fell within the following bands is as follows:

10. EERSHHMES(E)

MENFUTRN ZRFHMFESZEE
ZABIT

Number of individuals

AE
2020 2019
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T % 3,000,000 7T 2 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 %% 3,500,000 7T 1 =
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T 4,000,000 % 7T =
3 3

Income Tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a
qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
first HK$2,000,000 (2019: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this
subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2019: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%).

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Corporate Income
Tax (the “CIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the CIT Law, the
tax rate of the Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% (2019: 25%). Taxes
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

11. FiBdH

EBFGHRNEFAREBELE Z(ATIE
BHEFIARE % 16.5% (20194F : 16.5%)
B HASE—RKBRARIN - ZA
AIFAMEHFEHEE 2 EE - %W
BARZERGFIF + 52,000,000
(20194 : 2,000,000 7T 1% 8.25% (2019
F :825%)FHH  MEIRERTRF AIE
16.5% (20194F : 16.5%):1& -

REREARKMBPERETUE([ B
EREDREEMEREERAR
F B K B BB A B 2 K 4 25% (2019
0 25%) o HAbimfE R R A 2 BB
DEASRENEEERZEER BRH

il
E

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET
Current — Hong Kong KE - BH

Charge for the year FAHIE 12,91 33,609
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years BEFERETR/ (BERE) 1,771 (86)

Current — Mainland China and elsewhere AH - B RRERH MR
Charge for the year FRFIE 300,171 252,142
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years BEFERETR/ (BEEE) (804) 245
Deferred (note 32) IR (P 32) 62,407 (46,152)
Total tax charge for the year FANRIBARE 376,456 239,758
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

1.

Income Tax (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which major operating subsidiaries of
the Group are domiciled to the tax charge at the effective tax rate is as

follows:

Profit before tax

Tax charge at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%)

Difference in tax rates applied for specific
provinces or enacted by local authorities

Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous
periods

Estimated income not subject to tax

Estimated expenses not deductible for tax

Effect of withholding tax at 5% or 10%
(2019: 5% or 10%) on the distributable profits
of the Group's subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China

Tax losses utilised from previous periods

Estimated tax losses not recognised

Tax losses derecognised

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate

11. FBHGE)

TREAEE T ZLEMB AR ML
FIERDEE BR OREREFHELERR
BREADEN 2 IR - URIRBE R KA

ZRRTERITHER
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEL
B 750 AT 920,920 883,291
BEBETEHE16.5%

(20194 : 16.5%):TEFHE 151,952 145,743
FEAN R EA M E iR 2

BRER 94,592 79,949
BT 2 FIEE

RER R 967 159
IABT 2 BHETIA (30,652) (30,269)
OB A et i 35,469 12,847
BASERPEARLBEIKY 2

HIB AR 2 Al 2 KiEF 5% 3% 10%

(20194F : 5% 35 10%)

STEERRZVE 40,818 32,651
fEFABEEE 2 BRIEEE (47) (3,220)
HARTER Z fhFT R IEE B 11,512 1,898
RIFTER 2 BiAEE 71,845 =
BRASEEERETE 2HE 376,456 239,758
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

12.

ek

Dividends

Dividends recognised as distribution during
the year:

Final dividend for 2019: HK25.0 cents
(2018: HK44.0 cents) per ordinary share

Interim dividend for 2020: HK5.0 cents
(2019: HK14.0 cents) per ordinary share

Dividends proposed after the end of the
reporting period:

Final dividend for 2020: HK26.0 cents
(2019: HK25.0 cents) per ordinary share

Special final dividend for 2020: HK16.0 cents
(2019: Nil) per ordinary share

RERBERREZ
RE :

2019 FRHRR B
FE@AL25.0 71l
(2018 4F : 44.07%1l)

2020 FHRHARR B
BTS00
(20194 : 14.03%4L)

R@i&g%ﬁ&ﬁﬂmz

RE :

2020 FREIRR B -
FEBAL26.0 751
(20194 : 25.051L)

2020 FAFRIREIRR B, -
FEBAL16.0 751
(20194 : Zy(l)

The proposed final dividend and special final dividend for 2020 were
recommended after the end of the reporting period and have not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period, and they are
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

Earnings per Share Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$544,464,000 (2019: HK$643,533,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 677,434,000 (2019: 677,434,000) in issue
during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts
presented for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019
in respect of dilution as the impact of the share options outstanding had
no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amounts presented.

12. RE

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET

169,359 298,071

33,872 94,841

203,231 392,912

176,133 169,359

108,389 =

284,522 169,359

2020 F#E 3 2 R BB KR I R 2 A%
ERMEPRBERRE  TARBREH
KEREAE  RAGARATIBRRAER
REBEERS HIEE - HAEER -

13. FLABEEEEAERGESRER

FREARBNSBNIRFNARBRLSE
B A JE 1k % 7 544,464,000 7£(2019
4 1 643,533,000787C) RERND BTN
’EE IR H 677,434,000 (2019 4 :
677,434,000 %) & @PLETE o

B 14 R 1T 58 O B X 9 P 2. 51 B A &
AENEBUREEYE  QWARAHRAZR
2020412 A31H K 2019412 A31HLE
FEMEN 2 SREFRTISEELEE

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 31
December
2020

At 1 January
2020:

Cost or valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Net carrying
amount

At 1 January
2020, net of
accumulated
depreciation

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation
provided
during the year

Impairment
during the year

Exchange
realignment

At 31 December
2020, net of
accumulated
depreciation
and
impairment

At 31 December
2020:

Cost or valuation

Accumulated
depreciation
and
impairment

Net carrying
amount

#2020 F

12A31H

ffszozoﬁ
1818 :

Ak A

ZitiE

RHHE

ﬁﬁzozoﬁ
1818
ne 25t

EI‘FPFF;ES?\
T DJJHW

i
FRTE
#

R

5L AR

o

#2020
12 431

R2020F
2H31

ﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬁ

RifreE
RiRE

REFE

14. Y% BBERRE

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Freehold Plant and fixtures and Motor Construction
land Buildings machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
HEME
LKA M K KR . N
gL EF ks HERRE AE HEIR &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET TR TET THxT Tz TET
20,051 620,810 166,950 1,403,085 13,596 1,138 2,225,630
- (248,169) (105,337) (847,576) (10,144) - (1,211,226)
20,051 372,641 61,613 555,509 3,452 1,138 1,014,404
20,051 372,641 61,613 555,509 3,452 1,138 1,014,404
- - 5,490 237,294 285 1,343 244,412
- - (131) (5,464) - - (5,595)
- (26,857) (15,173) (234,146) (1,718) - (277,894)
- - = (4,063) - - (4,063)
1,186 14,153 2,611 29,705 66 145 47,866
21,237 359,937 54,410 578,835 2,085 2,626 1,019,130
21,237 640,921 173,293 1,579,106 14,431 2,626 2,431,614
- (280,984) (118,883) (1,000,271) (12,346) - (1,412,484)
21,237 359,937 54,410 578,835 2,085 2,626 1,019,130

BEAER

~ A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

14. Y% BERZEGE)

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Freehold Plantand  fixtures and Motor  Construction
land Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
HEME
KA et K5 Hi-
FETH BT FE RKERF AE EETE AF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00!
THT THT AT THT THT THL THT
As at 31 R2019F
December 12A31H
2019
At 1 January R20194F
2019: 1R18:
Cost or valuation XA (HE 19,712 517,574 155,742 1,211,307 13,153 67,005 1,984,493
Accumulated  ZFHTE
depreciation - (227,956) (95,933) (799,724) (8,653) - (1,132,266)
Net carrying REEE
amount 19,712 289,618 59,809 411,583 4,500 67,005 852,227
At 1 January 720194
2019, netof  1R1H:
accumulated 3R 23t
depreciation nE 19,712 289,618 59,809 411,583 4,500 67,005 852,227
Additions NE - - 18,918 307,176 1,082 87,553 414,729
Transfers B = 108,380 - 44,795 - (153,175) -
Disposals & - = (629) (4,044) = = (4,673)
Depreciation  FRIE
provided BiE
during the year - (21,565) (15,652) (196,432) (2,101) - (235,750)
Exchange [ i %
realignment 339 (3,792) (833) (7,569) (29) (245) (12,129)
At 31 December 720194
2019, netof  12A31H
accumulated 3R 23t
depreciation & 20,051 372,641 61,613 555,509 3,452 1,138 1,014,404
At 31 December 1720194
2019: 12A318:
Cost or valuation FAZ[HE 20,051 620,810 166,950 1,403,085 13,596 1,138 2,225,630
Accumulated  ZiE
depreciation - (248,169) (105,337) (847,576) (10,144) - (1,211,226)
Net carrying REFE
amount 20,051 372,641 61,613 555,509 3,452 1,138 1,014,404
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEMBHREMT

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 14. ¥ BERREE)
Certain of the Group’s buildings were revalued on 31 December 1993 AEBEETEFMRI993F12 31 B
by Knight Frank & Kan, independent professionally qualified valuers. The BUSXSEREEMEGRAAENTE
buildings were revalued on an open market, existing use basis. Since i - ZERFREFASAREARMER
1995, no further revaluations of the Group’s buildings have been carried BB ASEB 1995 FHKME B G
out, as the Group has relied upon the exemption, provided under the ERIE16RZBEGRB T 28E &
transitional provisions of HKAS 16, from the requirement to carry out BN ERHENRZME - #ERRE
future revaluations of its property, plant and equipment which were stated BOIARAKRER REEAEEFHES
at valuation at that time. i o
Had these buildings been carried at historical cost less accumulated MELEEFURELKARBEHTE
depreciation, their carrying amount would have been approximately 5 B - H B {8 4 & 12,385,0000% 7T
HK$12,385,000 (2019: HK$13,739,000). (20194 : 13,739,000787T) °
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets Y% BERREUREHERERE
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s management identified certain retail R2020512A31H A5 BEEREE
stores which continued to underperform and the estimated corresponding BREETREBERENZTEEHZ
recoverable amounts of their property, plant and equipment and right-of- ME - BELREBARFERESERRE
use assets. Based on these estimates, impairment losses of HK$4,063,000 MGt e esE BRBEZSET
(2019: Nil) and HK$169,572,000 (2019: Nil) were recognised to write M2020F 1283180 B 2 Bl %28
down the carrying amounts of these items of property, plant and {EE518 4,063,000 /87 (20194F « L)
equipment and right-of-use assets to their recoverable amounts of % 169,572,000 (20194 : TH L)
HK$4,105,000 (2019: Nil) and HK$198,364,000 (2019: Nil), respectively, A ZEME - #as R BENRERE
as at 31 December 2020. The estimates of the recoverable amount were EEEENEMES IMRZETRE
based on the value-in-use of these property, plant and equipment and $%84,105,00087(2019F : THT) R
right-of-use assets, determined using discount rates in the range of 10.5% 198,364,000/ jt(20194F : EHJr) »
t0 11.5%. FIEISBEIRBZEYE - HERRE

PREREEENEREAEL G - 1
AN T 10.5% 2 11.5% IR ERETE
15. Investment Properties 15. REWMHE

R1ATBZEREE

Carrying amount at 1 January

Net gain/(loss) from a fair value NEEEARZFWE /(B8

adjustment

Exchange realignment PE 5 28

RN12A31AZEEA

Carrying amount at 31 December

Management has determined that the investment properties consist of
two classes of asset, i.e., properties held in Hong Kong and properties
held outside Hong Kong, based on the nature, characteristics and risks
of each property. The Group’s investment properties were revalued at
HK$332,649,000 on 31 December 2020 based on valuations performed
by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further details of which are included in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties are included on
pages 193 to 196.

)

2020 2019

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bizx TERT THET
333,026 331,317

6 (1,811) 2,088
1,434 (379)

332,649 333,026

TEEEBRESENEZNE  BERE
RETKEMERERESLE BREE
BEZWERREARIMNGEZDE - R
2020012 A31H AEBZRENME
RERBYEEAERGEMBZERTE
RARI#ETZEEER5332,649,000%
=
ZEREMENCLROATE=S &
— SR BRI EREN 161 -

ARAEERANR ZE—SHBHNSE
193% 1965 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

15.

Investment Properties (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

All investment properties were classified under Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy. During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there
were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group has assessed that the

highest and best use of its properties did not differ from their existing use.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of

the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at 1 January 2019
Net gain from a fair value adjustment

recognised in profit or loss
Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2019
and 1 January 2020

Net gain/(loss) from a fair value
adjustment recognised in profit or loss

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2020

PR2019F1 B 1A ZEEE

REZXPEANDTEE
R F s

EREEE=A

72019412 A31 H K 20204
1AVAZEEAE

REERPERNATLEE
Bz (FE)

b %

1202012 B31 HZBREE

15. RENEE)
NFEEER
PIBRENEASBERRTEBESRZR
B3 & £20204F K 201912 A31H
IEFEEARRERR2 2 FIEDTE
EFFEEY  TEBARBLHAMN3 K
SEEFEENEZERR ARERGEL
RERBUEDR
DBERRVEESRZBAIAZAFE
Bt 24K
Properties
Properties held
held in outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
RERBEE REBEZIN
2= BFREzO% &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET THET
310,490 20,827 331,317
500 1,588 2,088
- (379) (379)
310,990 22,036 333,026
(3,160) 1,349 (1,811)
= 1,434 1,434
307,830 24,819 332,649
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

15.

Investment Properties (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key inputs to

the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation technique

fhER

Properties held in Hong Kong Market comparison

method

REERBZIME IS LBOA

Properties held outside Hong Kong  Income capitalisation

method

REBRIMNFBEZNE WABARLE

A significant increase/decrease in the price per square foot and market
unit rent per square foot per month in isolation would result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.
A significant increase/decrease in the capitalisation rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment

properties.

The valuations take into account the characteristics of the properties
which included the location, size, floor level, year of completion and other

factors collectively.

15. REWEE)

ATLEEZR(E)
WTAREMEREMFERBERTEE
EHBIHE
Significant
unobservable Range
inputs (weighted average)
BRBNBRHE EE (mHEF)
2020 2019
Price per square foot HK$7,000 to HK$7,000 to
HK$62,000 HK$65,000
(HK$21,000) (HK$21,000)
BYHRER 7,000 TZ  7,0008TE
62,000 % T 65,0007
(21,000%5T) (21,00087T)
Market unit rent per square HK$200 HK$200
foot per month
BREYARMSELES 20058 7T 20078 7T
Capitalisation rate 8.5% 8.5%

BAi X

SEPREH/RESAGTHRTSBOA
SBIUMAR L THBEHRANE
2 ATEEREHI/ YD - AR E
BIUAR L/ THEEHRANEN
RFERRABHED, 0 -

HERBH IR L - SRS K
NBE - TIFHREMER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBRENE
16. Leases 16. #HE
The Group as a lessee EEEEAFREA

The Group has lease contracts for various buildings used in its operations.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from
the owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments
will be made under the terms of this land lease. Leases of buildings
generally have lease terms between 1 and 10 years. Generally, the Group
is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group. There are several lease contracts that include variable lease

payments, which are further discussed below.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the
movements during the year are as follows:

At 1 January 2019
Additions

Termination of leases
Depreciation charge (note 6)
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2019 and

1 January 2020
Additions
Termination of leases
Depreciation charge (note 6)
Impairment (note 6)
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020

2019F1 A1H
NE

RIFAE

FER (ME6)
IE A%

20196 12A31A K
202061818

NE

RIEHEE

FrERX (HE6)

WA (HEE6)

B 3 AR

202012 B31H

Further details of the impairment testing are set out in note 14 to

the consolidated financial statements.

AEERAREENZEETH]AHEAR
K- BRAEL —RENFAPMEET K
BHEELH BHRS0F  MBEZS
T BENGER BT RESMER
R HEETHOHMBENFI1E10
Fo—RME - AEBERRAEE AN
ATEZROHEEEE - FTHEAL
BEAEEENR  FEHIMT

@ REBEE
FRAKEEREEENRAER

BEWT
Leasehold

land Buildings Total
HEL# BF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR T
11,309 1,037,816 1,049,125
= 964,298 964,298
= (54,842) (54,842)
(268) (685,091) (685,359)
(190) (2,139) (2,329)
10,851 1,260,042 1,270,893
- 350,071 350,071
- (16,717) (16,717)
(266) (654,043) (654,309)
- (169,572) (169,572)
653 12,657 13,310
11,238 782,438 793,676

ARRERRANE - FFHBEHRE

AMBREME 14 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

16.

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during
the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1BZERERE
New leases oHEE
Termination of leases RIERE

Accretion of interest recognised
during the year (note 7)
Covid-19-related rent concessions

from lessors (note 6) s ER(MEe)
Payments ISEN
Exchange realignment [E & g

Carrying amount at 31 December

Analysed into: MR
Current portion mEE D
Non-current portion FEnEE D

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 41(a) to
the consolidated financial statements.

As disclosed in note 2.2 to the financial statements, the Group
has early adopted the amendment to HKFRS 16 and applied the
practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions granted by the
lessors for leases of certain retail stores during the year.

K12 A31 B2 REE

FRDRERN LR (HE7)

HHAALTH 20198 R ESIHE

16. MHE(E)
AEBEREBA(E)
(b) HEEE
FAHREABENEAERESHN
e
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEL
1,299,901 1,058,109
308,742 956,487
(19,088) (54,571)
46,223 46,310
(73,270) =
(585,552) (701,818)
24,206 (4,616)
1,001,162 1,299,901
554,400 572,891
446,762 727,010

HEABENIBAITREAMK
REMTA1Q)IBE -

BN EIREMFE2. 2 KE - &
SEERPRADT B BREE
FIEMEETA - WK AITH
ENARARFALBEARTET
TEERHENRAREREER
% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

16. Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as

follows:
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENS
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREEZIE

Expense relating to short-term leases and ~ SEHAFE R HEMFHE (2019
other leases (2019: short-term leases and £ : }EHIFAE R THEAR

other leases with remaining lease terms 20194 12 A 31 Bel 2 Al fE

ended on or before 31 December 2019) WA EMEE) FEMNRAL

(included in selling and distribution costs) (Gt ASEE KD IHER)
Expense relating to short-term leases and ~ EEHME M E (2019

other leases (2019: short-term leases and 4 : G EAFHE K e AR

other leases with remaining lease terms 20194 12 31 B 7 AifE

ended on or before 31 December 2019) MAOEMHEE) BN

(included in administrative expenses) (RIATTHER)
Variable lease payments not included Rt AHEEETEN
in the measurement of lease liabilities A EEEIE
(included in selling and distribution GTAHERDHER) *
costs)*
Covid-19-related rent concessions HAARTH2019EMRES
from lessors EEzEEER
Loss/(gain) on termination of leases RIERE 2 BB/ ()
Impairment of right-of-use assets CREEERE

Total amount recognised in profit or loss ~ AEHXERNFIBLE

* The Group leased a number of the retail stores and units in a shopping
mall which contain variable lease payment terms that are based on the
Group's turnover generated from the retail stores and the units in the
shopping mall. There are also minimum annual base rental arrangements

for these leases.

(d)  The total cash outflows for leases and future cash outflows relating
to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in notes 36(c)
and 37(b), respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

16. HE(E)
REBEREBA(E)
(0 REBmZFERNHEBHE
T
2020 2019
Note HK$"000 HK$'000
= FERT FET
16(b) 46,223 46,310
16(a) 654,309 685,359
6 37,048 30,070
6 2,984 679
6 31,849 24,429
16(b) (73,270) -
6 (2,371) 271
16(a) 169,572 =
866,344 787,118

AEERELATEEHRNE
MPELHENL - ZEREREMN
AEBEEZENTLEEERR
BEUEANSEBAEROT R
BERRER - RERETRE
REFEARBS R -

() BHEEEMBRSRLAERE
MARBENHEEGHENRKAS
LSS BIR R A MR E T
36(c) K2 37(b) B3 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEMBHREMT
16. Leases (continued) 16. HME(E)
The Group as a lessor FEBEREHBEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting of AEERBELEHELHEEEEEYWE
commercial properties, industrial property, residential property, roof (M3515) BREREARTEAENR
and car parking space in Hong Kong and Mainland China under EVE ITEWE TEVE KK
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require FHEA - ZEHENKRBEEXAPY
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent HERRS  UREBEERNBRITHRE
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental TEHASAR - FARNSBERARN
income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$11,475,000 A& WA &11,475,0005 (20194 :
(2019: HK$12,044,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the 12,044,000 7T) « FIEFNGA KR
consolidated financial statements. EMTEES ©
At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments receivables by M2020F 128310 AEEREHEMR
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with KR E BB A R AL & T E R FEMCR AL
its tenants are as follows: REEHEWT -
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT
Within one year —FR 5,891 10,361
After one year but within two years —FUEERFEUA 748 4,076
After two years but within three years MEAEB=FAR 33 =
6,672 14,437
17. Intangible Assets 17. EREE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Trading rights R5HE
Cost at 1 January and 31 December, R1A1TAR12A31BZKA -
net of accumulated amortisation kR Rt 8N 271 271
At 31 December: W12H318 :
Cost (gross carrying amount) A (BRELE) 524 524
Accumulated amortisation ESE i (253) (253)
Net carrying amount HREFE 271 271

Upon the adoption of HKAS 38, trading rights, which are considered to
have indefinite lives because they are expected to contribute to the net

cash flows of the Group indefinitely, are not amortised.

BB R G EREIRE AR S
RENAASEERATRASREF
B MRS EARREHMm A EEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

18. Other Assets 18. HtEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Cost of membership for a seat at The Chinese SREEFHH([EREEH%])
Gold and Silver Exchange Society (“CGSE") SRR 1,500 1,500
Statutory deposits in respect of securities and EHBSFRAELRL
futures broking ETRS 2,988 2,935
Rental deposits* HEEZS 202,682 201,905
Deposits paid for purchases of items of property, BEE W%  #ERREERD 2
plant and equipment BfiEE 2,189 10,747
209,359 217,087
* The rental deposits are related to office properties, retail stores and factories & UNAKBEZHAE TEEHRBEHE
leased by the Group (note 16(a)) and the majority of the terms of the lease A (MiEE16(a) 2 IHEHRERS - KFHHE
arrangements are over one year. Included in this total is an aggregate amount NAPBB—F EFEHH1035E%
of approximately HK$103 million (2019: approximately HK$80 million) relating TL(20194F : YJ80EEETT)B—FERE|
to operating leases expiring within one year. The Directors are of the opinion HM7EEiRy - EF2 R REWEHALE
that such deposits are of a long-term nature on the basis that the related leases HRZEIHRENZEE  WEREE
are expected to be renewed upon their respective expiry dates. Accordingly, the BREEE - At ESRREHLETRE
Directors consider it appropriate to classify such deposits as non-current assets. EORAERBEE -
19. Financial Assets designated at Fair Value through Other 19. EERRAFEESFAHMGZERENH
Comprehensive Income BEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Listed equity investments, at fair value EmkHIRE  BRATEE
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited BERRGDRERRBRAT]
("HKEC")* ([VERFT]) * 1,413,890 901,135
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value FETRINIRE - RATFEE
Sure Success Holdings Limited Sure Success Holdings Limited 19,393 20,110
Golden Twin (Un Long) Catering Company Limited &% (GTE) SR EAR A A 12,509 13,993
Hong Kong Precious Metals Exchange Limited BEAECBRIMBRAT 291 361
32,193 34,464
1,446,083 935,599
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FEMBREME

19. Financial Assets designated at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (continued)

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these

investments to be strategic in nature.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's listed equity investments with a
carrying value of HK$850,000,000 (2019: HK$784,300,000) were pledged

to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 30).

During the year, the Group sold part of its equity investment in HKEC.
The disposal enables the Group to realise cash and unlock the value in its
investment in HKEC at fair market value. The aggregated fair value on the
dates of sale was HK$100,656,000 and the accumulated gain recognised
in other comprehensive income of HK$100,627,000 was transferred to

retained profits.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received dividends
in the amounts of HK$23,864,000 (2019: HK$24,185,000), HK$591,000
(2019: HK$611,000), HK$427,000 (2019: HK$413,000) and Nil (2019:
HK$46,000) from HKEC, Sure Success Holdings Limited, Golden Twin
(Un Long) Catering Company Limited, and Hong Kong Precious Metals

Exchange Limited, respectively.

* On 6 March 2000, under the Schemes of Arrangements of the Stock Exchange
and the Futures Exchange and pursuant to the Exchanges and Clearing Houses
(Merger) Ordinance, the Group received 6,223,500 shares of HKEC, six exchange
trading rights in the Stock Exchange and one exchange trading right in the Futures
Exchange as a consideration for the cancellation of its 6 shares held in the Stock
Exchange and 1 share held in the Futures Exchange. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group held 3,326,800 (2019: 3,561,800) shares of HKEC, five (2019: five)
exchange trading rights in the Stock Exchange and one (2019: one) exchange

trading right in the Futures Exchange.

20. Inventories

Goods held for sale FHEHEZEm

19. EERRAVEEFAHEMGREREOH
BEE(H)

LBHREE T HEEE AR AT
BEAEMZARE - AAEER B
EREBKMILE -

2020128310 AEBI EHk
15 1% & B T 18 850,000,000% 7£.(2019
F 1 784,300,000 7T ) (EIE#H - BASE
BT E—AERTTE B EER (FFE30)

FR- RAEBHESRIMMIBHERE
B gHESAERBNAEHTEERERN
BRATHIRE - RILERH - AT EEBER
%8/5100,656,000/8 7 © REMEEIE
R 2 255 100,627,000 7 7T 2 B

EREEF o

HE2020F12831HILEE  AEE
I B B 823,864,000 JL(20194F :
24,185,000 7T ) ~ 591,000 7T(2019
£ :611,000587T) ~ 427,00057£(2019
F 413,000 70) R EHEL(2019F -
46,0007 T ) o Al 2k B 7 X B+ Sure
Success Holdings Limited « 4% (7TER ) 8K
REERDAIREABECBERIFNBERA
ﬁ] °

& A 200043 A6H - R R AT R
HROAF AR FHMREER(A
BFERI - AR BESHERFT6,223,500 A%
Bfn - AEMZARHER —ERZAR
518 UK REBIFTIFE 26 RRM
REBZAHEE 2 1BREH - R20204F
12A318 - AEBEHFHBRH 3,326,800
A% (20194 : 3,561,800% ) & 1 « F fA
(2019F : AR FE K — @
(2019%F : — (@) AR FTR S E -

2. #&
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$°000
TET TET
8,774,591 8,932,514
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FEMBREME

21. Accounts Receivable

Trade and credit card receivables BWE Z REARER
Impairment VERES
Accounts receivable FEUBR X

The Group's trading terms with its retail customers are mainly on cash
and credit card settlement while trading terms with corporate clients and
wholesale customers are on credit with credit period generally up to 60
days. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 1 month 18 AR

1 to 2 months 122M@A
2 to 3 months 2Z3f@A
Over 3 months HBiE3MEA

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of accounts
receivable are as follows:

At 1 January ®1A1H

Impairment losses, net (note 6) REERE - FEHEE)
Exchange realignment R

At 31 December RN12A31H

21.

FE W BR R
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET
884,455 942,312
(49,806) (26,508)
834,649 915,804

AEERETERPIUNR B HEREIE
MRERERTEE  MECERP R
RRPAIUNRSEN  BEH—KR&Z
AE60K - BHEHEREERARE
HER - BRESFERRRE -

R|ER - BURFRIEESR B R
RERRERZREITAT :

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
Tz THET
749,061 719,355
71,626 107,788
13,149 30,415
813 58,246
834,649 915,804
FEWRTR 2 BRI R EE ST -
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
TRz THET
26,508 8,116
20,982 18,790
2,316 (398)
49,806 26,508
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FEMBREME

21.  Accounts Receivable (continued) 21. ERERI(E)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a REBRSIRE BEFE AR EEREETH
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates B T ERBEEERE - BHEX
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments EREFEUBXRER(INEE - &
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type mBEUREPEERAR) cEEEF
and customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability- DEAR BB KXEET o AT E kiR
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and AR INERAR B ERBEUIER
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past REHHESHEREBTSHZAERT
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. TERER BRI A R RREE MR TR
Generally, accounts receivable are written off if past due for more than Al —KmE  AHBA—FREAZR
one year and are not subject to enforcement activity. & HIETTIE BV FE AR TR T LA SE o
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TREIIAEE AR B R E R ER

Group's accounts receivable using a provision matrix: EFNEERRER

As at 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

Past due
B
Less than 1to3 Over

Current 1 month months 3 months Total
wB SRM1ER 1Z3B HBBE3EA &5t
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEBEX 0.63% 3.66% 4.38% 83.25% 5.63%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BRE&E(FHT) 690,199 109,319 37,096 47,841 884,455
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) TEHAEEEE(FHT) 4,352 3,999 1,625 39,830 49,806

As at 31 December 2019 M2019%12/831H

Past due
bl
Less than 1103 Over

Current 1 month months 3 months Total
nE  LR1EAR 1E3EA  #B3EA &
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEBEX 0.14% 0.94% 2.16% 32.77% 2.81%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BRE4AE (FHT) 701,616 122,282 47,038 71,376 942,312
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FEEAEEEE(THT) 951 1,146 1,018 23,393 26,508
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FEMBREME

22. Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking

Receivables arising from securities and futures ERBEBRERR
broking conducted in the ordinary course of HERLEE
business: 2 FEMARK -
Cash clients RewP
Clearing houses, brokers and dealers RER - B 50
Clients for subscription of initial public RBERLFABBRER *
offering (“IPO") shares*
Loans to margin clients’ FEEFER'
Impairment A
Receivables arising from securities and futures EFRRERGLCEEZ
broking JE W AR R
& As at 31 December 2020, receivables from clients for subscription of IPO shares

of HK$38,526,000 (2019: Nil) were due when the corresponding allotment results
of the related IPO shares had been publicly announced and bore interest at

commercial rates.

The loans to margin clients were secured by the underlying pledged securities,

repayable on demand and bore interest at commercial rates. No ageing analysis
was disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an ageing analysis was not
relevant in view of the nature of the business of securities margin financing.
As at 31 December 2020, the total market value of securities pledged as
collateral in respect of the loans to margin clients was HK$833,346,000 (2019:

HK$710,484,000).

The receivables are settled two days after the trade date or at specific
terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and dealers. Futures deals are
normally settled on a cash basis. Receivables from margin and cash clients
arising from the business of dealing in securities and futures broking are
repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of receivables arising
from securities and futures broking are as follows:

At 1 January 2019

Loss allowance recognised (note 6)

At 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020

BENMERLEE 2 BLURR

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERx FHT
101,752 54,769
134,777 36,371
38,526 -
873,362 939,758
1,148,417 1,030,898
(489,744) (445,668)
658,673 585,230

* R2020612 A318 ' ERABERDH

BREF 24 %4 38,526,000/ 7T (2019
F:TET) DREBRERRARBRZ
fig@i%&%%ﬂﬁﬁﬂ%@ Wiz R

B
o e Wozoinﬂm B A
ﬁ%ﬁ)?é%}i%‘ AR F IR RER R 2
# ™ { 5833,346,000/% JT(2019% :
710,484,0005%7’5) o

BUWRFRER S B BEMARIREEE
Zi Z«‘ZE&X%F%’JEZ% [BRFRAETTHS
B -HERG—RUREHEE - REZEH
&H EEE%WE’JHE&ﬁi%ﬁEﬁ%W
ERREEHRRNERFEE -

Loss allowance recognised (note 6) = R 1B (Fi5t6)

At 31 December 2020

FHRERCEE ZEWIESR 2 RES
BEEEESHIT
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
YEEERE HREERE
12@AEH ZZ Ay ZEHEH
FEE#E FEESE FEEE
(B1RER) (E2MER) (B3P &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET FERT FTET TET
R201941 H1H - - - -
EHREERE(MTe) - - 445,668 445,668
M201946 12 A31 8K
20201 R 1H - - 445,668 445,668
- - 44,076 44,076
7202012 A31H - - 489,744 489,744
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FEMBREME

22. Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued) 22, BERHPERLCELEEURR(E)
Receivables arising from securities and futures broking are categorised BAEMBECREEZRBESRS AT
into excellent, good and fair. Excellent refers to exposures which margin B RIFR—R - HEEAEITRE
obligation can be met and payment of interest and principal is not SEME MABERAEHL N TFRRE
in doubt, with good quality and liquidity of collateral. Good refers to BEBERAmOmE RRBMRL - RifE
exposures which principal and interest are partially or fully secured but at AR RFSEHDREHER - BER
a relatively low level. Fair refers to exposures which loss, partial or full, has EZEEBE - —RERERXHHHE
incurred and with insufficient collateral. MEL - BERARDRE -

Analysis of the gross carrying amount by the Group's internal credit rating BASERABEETIRRERIEED
and year end classification: RELZESITWAT
As at 31 December 2020 R2020512A31H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E1RR FE2RR R &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FTEx FTEx THER
Internal rating grade NEME BT AR
Excellent HeE 425,434 - - 425,434
Good RiF - 11,888 - 11,888
Fair —Rg - - 711,095 711,095
425,434 11,888 711,095 1,148,417
As at 31 December 2019 R2019%F12 431 H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
81 PRER B2 FE3MRER &5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FAT FHT
Internal rating grade M= E TR
Excellent efes) 319,697 - - 319,697
Good R - - - -
Fair —f% = = 711,201 711,201
319,697 - 711,201 1,030,898
23. Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets 23. BEMARE HtEWERIARHEGEE

Prepayments T FRIE
Deposits e
Right-of-return assets REEERE
Other receivables Hofth FE U AR 3R

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default and past due amounts.
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the loss allowance was assessed to be

minimal.

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
435,822 376,713
55,032 51,621
578 420
16,267 5,107
507,699 433,861

BEELEGRZMBEERLTEE
DML Z EUERTR - M2020F &
2019F 12 8318 K EEEREE
fR /) o
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24.

25.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 24,

EmlRE  mAFEE

Listed equity investments, at fair value

The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

Cash and Cash Equivalents/Cash held on behalf of Clients 25.

An analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

Cash and bank balances B e RFITER
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity — 7F i ZIH B DR =1 A

of less than three months when acquired 2T TS
Cash and cash equivalents RekZERBS

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group's subsidiaries operating in Mainland China denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to RMB938,736,000 (approximately
HK$1,114,749,000) (2019: RMB554,223,000 (approximately
HK$619,954,000)). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for periods of 1 day to 1 month,
and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed banks to
hold securities and futures clients’ monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients’ monies as “Cash held
on behalf of clients” under the current assets section of the consolidated
statement of financial position and recognised the corresponding accounts
payable to the respective clients on the grounds that the Group is liable
for any loss or misappropriation of the clients’ monies. The Group is not
allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations.

RAPEEFABRENUBEE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
9,634 13,394

Hilil iR EBETREEERE - MO BB
BAFEEABRNUBEE -

RERSERE REFEFRE
ReRERBE2AWWMT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
TR THET
1,599,651 900,563
54,116 127,763
1,653,767 1,028,326

RIREHIR - REBEFPEARELE 2 K
BRRAUARBABMN 2RE RIBITER
45938,736,000 7T A R (#71,114,749,000
# 7T ) (20194 : 554,223,0007C A B #
(#47619,954,000%870)) - ARKETRRES
MABRBHEMER A REPEARE
ZINEE B R TR - EE R EE R
BT AREEEEBEREETINEE
BZBITHEARBRBAAHEMEE

ROTREREE RRTERF LT A
KERDFIE - REMERFR 2 FHER
AEVEARSE - LKA Z ERERA
KEREA B o RITERFREERFME
HAY AR A4 ER 2 9RAT -

AEERFMRRITRRBIUETRS - A
FREFIAEEPNABERBEL LR
B AEEE BB ERPHFEASBREA
BBERRRARRBDEER T 2[REP
FAERE | YMRAKER EEPFUR
ZEMBRRIBR . AEMERRENT
HEAEPERN - ARBETAEREFA
EEREE & -
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FEMBREME

26.

27.

Accounts Payable

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 1 month 1B A A
1 to 2 months 1221848
Over 2 months B2 @A

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing.

Payables arising from Securities and Futures Broking

26. EREX

Payables arising from securities and futures

Payables arising from securities and futures
broking

EHEEBTES

broking conducted in the ordinary course of REREREESE

business: Z IR
Cash clients® Begp'
Margin clients* HRER*

ERMERLES
ZIERRRAK

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an
ageing analysis is not meaningful in view of the nature of such business.

#

Included in the cash client accounts payable arising from dealing in securities
conducted in the ordinary course of business is an amount of approximately
HK$420,070,000 (2019: HK$383,185,000) representing those clients’ undrawn
monies/excess deposits placed with the Group. As at 31 December 2020, the cash
client accounts payable included an amount of HK$705,000 (2019: HK$484,000)
in respect of securities transactions undertaken for the accounts of certain
Directors. The cash client accounts payable are repayable on demand and bear
interest at commercial rates.

The margin client accounts payable are repayable on demand and bear interest at
commercial rates.

RIBEEER  BANEFRBEZZAH 2K
BRI

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

63,311 115,651

66,314 431

178 74

129,803 116,156
ENBEFARS -

27. BERPELLELECERAERR

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

508,614 441,745

66,438 61,526

575,052 503,271

EZRRENERBEESHREITER
TR B EBEERE DT -

# BRECBEEBPETELFEEELL
FEfH3R & P BR 347 420,070,000 7 7T
(20194 : 383,185,000 7T ) A% & &
FRERASE 2 RIRIRGIE/BINIIT IR
£ o MR2020F 128310 ENBEERF
ERREAETESRFPENEHRRSZ
X 705,000 JL(20194F : 484,000 7
) c BB BFRFXANEREHEE
REBEETETR

* TR E P IR UVARN B REHEE RIZA
RBHETR -
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FEMBREME

28.

Other Payables and Accruals
Note
(i3
Accruals FEFTIE B
Contract liabilities GHEE (a)
Refund liabilities RyAafE
Other payables Hofh e AR K (b)
Customer gold deposits BEFES (©
Notes:
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows:
Short-term advances received from customers FKEEFEZ RN E

Sale of goods EmiHE
Customer loyalty programme BEFRAHELE

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver jewellery and
precious metals, and amount allocated to customer loyalty programme of the
Group's retail of jewellery business. The increase in contract liabilities in 2020
and 2019 was mainly due to the increase in short-term advances received from
customer orders of goods.

Other payables are non-interest-bearing.

The Group provides gold deposit services to its customers. Under this arrangement,
customers deposit physical gold with the Group and can withdraw the same units
of gold together with a fixed amount of fee on the maturity date. The customer
gold deposits are estimated based on the fair value of gold deposits outstanding
at the end of the reporting period. The basis of estimation is reviewed on an
ongoing basis and revised where appropriate. As at 31 December 2020, gold
deposits from customers also included approximately 800 (2019: 2,800) taels of
gold from certain management personnel of the Group.

28.

HittFEN IR R R EE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TR
65,280 65,152
108,941 88,610
787 633
323,265 341,427
22,526 47,098
520,799 542,920
BHAEFENT :
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT
95,152 74,504
13,789 14,106
108,941 88,610

BHEBERRRNKERESBREZ
RHBRFE RS EEAEEKRES
EEBZEPBMEEZEE - 20204
K2019F 6N ABENEFZERARER
F & & ] B URER 2 2 HA 78 M R IE 3 an A
iﬁ °

HEENEARRE

FEERERFRUTERY - REKE
- RERAAKREGTAES  REHAH
ROBREN s ZSETHEER - BFF
SHERBRERRHNSBTE 2 AFEBEE
diffar o G RESHERT  YEEE
BHELEET - W2020612 A310 - BF
BENBENERETEEABZERY
800/ (20194 : 2,800 ) °
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FEMBREME

29.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Assets BE

Cross currency swaps RX G H
Liabilities =N

Bullion contracts EEBEW
Cross currency swaps RX G H

The bullion contracts and cross currency swaps are stated at their fair
values. The above transactions involving derivative financial instruments
are conducted with reputable financial institutions or top bullion trading
companies. As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate contractual amount
of the bullion contracts was HK$405,296,000 (2019: HK$464,039,000).

In addition, the Group has entered into cross currency swaps to manage
its foreign currency risk. The cross currency swaps were measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value thereof amounting
to HK$3,079,000 (2019: HK$5,410,000) were charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year.

The purpose of the above contracts and swaps entered into by the Group
is to manage the Group's commodity price risk and foreign currency risk.
Such contracts and swaps did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

TEE®MIA
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
= 145
4,120 9,158
2,934 =
7,054 9,158

ELBANRRNEBIR AN T EE
FIER - P RTESRIAZR S A
CERYZSRMERRLESBEE SN
F#1T - M2020E12A318 &84 B
AN 2 EHEELE R 405,296,000 T
(20194 : 464,039,000/87T) °

BN - AEBE R R N & 8 & 18 H Hh
ERR - ZRXXEKEBE AT EER
AEBHHE - FARGEEIEBEZXREMEG
HAFEEZENSEEAE3,079,00057T
(20194 : 5,410,000 ) °

AEEAY LA REREEERASE
EzAEmERRRRIMNERR - ZFAL
RGNS RS T RE 2 R
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30. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings/Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 30. FEBRTER BHRESCLELZH
arising from Securities and Futures Broking ERITEN
2020 2019
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate Maturity HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
ELEES ZEA TR BHIH = 2R TEr
% %
Current e
Portion of term loans from  RERITER—ER
banks due for repayment HHMERZHDE
within one year HER
- unsecured - EEA 14-17 2021 117,580 16-37 2020 56,040
- secured - B 1.1 2021 180,000 39-50 2020 280,000
297,580 336,040
Current portion of bank loans ZAR—FRNEHEE
due for repayment within ZBOTERZRE
one year b
— unsecured - EEA 1.3-38 2021 401,442 33-42 2020 440,554
699,022 776,594
Non-current FERE
Non-current portion of bank AR AT 2RI AZIH
loans due for repayment BEZBITER
within a period of: ZIEREED
More than one year but —EN kB
less than two years DRME
— unsecured - mEA 13-37 2022 323,713 3.3-42 2021 276,896
More than two years but GEV ]
less than five years PREF
— unsecured - BT 13-25 2023 57,194 33-41 2022 163,434
380,907 440,330
1,079,929 1,216,924

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term loans repayable
on demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the portion of the term
loans due for repayment after one year which contain a repayment on
demand clause and that are classified as current liabilities is expected to
be settled within one year.

ARRTEN(ERREREREZEHE
FO TR B R AT o AR ER —F
RINEELBSREREEGIRSR
RRBEREZHBIERERHN —FAB

f& o
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30.
arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's banking facilities amounted
of which
HK$1,079,929,000 (2019: HK$1,216,924,000) had been utilised at the
end of the reporting period. Certain of the banking facilities amounting
to HK$470,000,000 (2019: HK$570,000,000) are secured by certain
assets of the Group as disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial

to HK$2,772,119,000 (2019: HK$3,306,440,000),

statements.

All of the banking facilities, including bank borrowings and bullion
loans (note 31), are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to
certain of the Group’s financial ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was to breach the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, certain of the Group’s term loan agreements contain clauses
which give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at any time, irrespective of whether the Group has complied

with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants for
all the outstanding bank borrowings and bullion loans. Accordingly, the
Group does not consider it is probable that the bank will exercise its
discretion to demand repayment so long as the Group continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 41(a). As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, none of

the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of the bank loans at the end of the reporting period

are denominated in the following currencies:

BT
HEK

Hong Kong dollar
New Taiwan dollar

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings/Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings

30.

FAERTER BERPELLEL 2
BRITEN(H)

M20205612A318  X&EBZRITE
& % /52,772,119,00078 T(2019 4 :
3,306,440,000 L) - RBEHRE
A H$1,079,929,0007% 7L(2019 4
1,216,924,000%8 ) - & TEITEERE
470,000,000 7£(20194F : 570,000,000
BT NAEBRGRE TSRS 195
BlATAEERER -

FIERTEE(BREETERARELES
/\(WIN))/,\$‘§lﬁé}%¥ﬁﬂ‘ktt
R EREARESCHEBIUZEER
B MAKEERER B - FTiRBREEBA
E;zji%% o JtEAh - $‘§IZ%$*EHE\
ARE B S4G TIRRAER T 2B
quiiﬁﬂfaﬁﬂ'%?ﬂ SRAEERDS
BETHERBIEEEREML -

REEFAE REE]
BErHEREETZE R
Z’KEEWDJ%/\K%ZH L_J'uz iﬁ:i fEfT
BAReTEEREREREZER - 5H
AEEEBRRHECRR 2 #E— ﬂﬁﬁl £
WFTEE41(a) © R 20204 % 2019 12 A
1 AEETEEREBEHAGEEZ

B

RITERRETBE
2150 o At

RITBEFRBEHR ZEAEU T EE
BB

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

THT FAT

1,052,349 1,190,884

27,580 26,040

1,079,929 1,216,924
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FEMBREME

31. Bullion Loans

Bullion loans — unsecured

Bullion trading facilities

Contractual interest rate
Original maturity

BESREE - BER

BEeBRHEE

BHFIR
RE|HA

The amounts represented borrowings from banks or top bullion trading

companies and the amounts payable are pegged with bullion prices.

Certain of the bullion loan facilities are subject to fulfilment of covenants
under the Group's banking facilities. Details of which are disclosed in note

30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Bullion loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuation of
bullion prices on bullion inventories. However, the criteria for hedge
accounting were not fully met. Bullion loans were designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as they are managed and their
performance are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management and investment strategy, and information
about the bullion loans is provided on that basis to the Group's key

management personnel.

The carrying amounts of the bullion loans at the end of the reporting

period are denominated in the following currencies:

Renminbi
United States dollar

ARE
e

31, E2BfEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
1,002,135 1,473,773
3,212,613 3,468,008

0.9% - 2.7%
1-5 months A

0.9% - 4.9%
1 -5 months A

ZRBIERLRTRERECBE S ARG
B MENFREESBERENE -

ETRSBEERABHASEMAGE
B2 HERGRA M BRENE30
BE -

EAECBEEENAREESBERK
PHATMEEIHE - AT - ReEx
HeYheTREZ KN - ENESBE
ETRERTERREERIRERKRAT
BEEEEENFERE - WEREAR
AFEEFABROABEEE - MBEBZ
FEEBREREZENDEABEER ALK
BzIEERARRM -

ZEETBEERMERRZREEAT
SIEHEREN

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
438,534 709,416
563,601 764,357
1,002,135 1,473,773
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32,

Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as

follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2019

Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss
during the year

At 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020

Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss
during the year

Exchange realignment

Gross deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position
at 31 December 2020

EEBEAE

M2019%F 1 A1H

FARGAERR
1/ (GEA)
ZIETEIR

MN2019F 128318 R
20201811

FARGAERR
i YAGIN)
IR IR

fE 5 AR

2020F12 B31 B
IR A MR R IER
ZEERIBERERE

Depreciation

32, EEFRE

FRETHRAEREEZESNT :

allowance
in excess
of related  Withholding
depreciation taxes Others Total
HERBE
HBEBTE HERB Hith &t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THERT FTET TET
36,254 212,945 919 250,118
(1,340) 33,656 (919) 31,397*
34,914 246,601 - 281,515
(152) 41,722 (449) 41,121*
72 - (45) 27
34,834 288,323 (494) 322,663
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32,

Deferred Tax (continued)

EEBREE

Deferred tax assets

32, EEBIE(E)

Losses
available
for
offsetting
against
Decelerated future  Impairment  Impairment
Lease tax taxable  of accounts of right-
liabilities ~ depreciation profits  receivable of-use assets Others Total
MEHRR
‘ ERBEA fEl ] ERE
HESE HERENE B8 BHAE BEHE ff fit
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Thr ThT TR Thr TR Thr
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1518 7,821 8,023 - 1,787 - 17,254 34,885
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ERnGaERE
to the consolidated statement HA/ (B2
of profit or loss during the year s (89) 613 73,612 35 - 3,374 77,549*
Exchange realignment EiA% (120) (30 30 - - (293) (413)
At 31 December 2019 120194128318
and 1 January 2020 R202051 718 1,616 8,606 13,642 1,822 - 20,335 112,021
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ERpTABER
to the consolidated statement HA/(R)Z
of profit or loss during the year EiLHE 3,08 3,805 (52,778) 19 27,979 (4,126) (21,286)*
Exchange realignment i AE 640 158 584 - - 84 1,466
Gross deferred tax assets recognised 582020412 A31H
in the consolidated statement REEHBERAR
of financial position at ALERHBEE
31 December 2020 A% 11,298 12,569 21,448 2,614 21,979 16,293 92,201
* Net deferred tax charged HK$62,407,000 (2019: credited HK$46,152,000) to the * ERNNGEEIBERINK 62,407,000/ 7T

consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year (note 11).

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$598,154,000
(2019: HK$445,907,000), Mainland China of HK$35,125,000 (2019:
HK$25,401,000) and Taiwan and Macau of HK$14,865,000 (2019:
HK$26,300,000). The tax losses arising in Hong Kong are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the tax losses arose, whilst those arising in Mainland China, Taiwan
and Macau will expire in five years, ten years and three years, respectively,
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses of HK$536,019,000 (2019:
HK$42,696,000) as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is uncertain whether taxable profit will be

available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

(20194 : ABR46,152,0008 7T ) ZEE
BEFE (M) -

REBRBEAEEZHEERRB
/598,154,000 8 7C(20194F : 445,907,000
BIL) RAEBAEELEZHEERS
35,125,0005% 7£.(20194F : 25,401,0007% 7t )
FEREERARAMELEZHEEBRA
14,865,000 T(20194F : 26,300,000
BIT) c REBEAEZFIAEE &R
BREREZSEERBERRAR ZRKE
ERR A - MR Bk « EEBME
EZHEBEEEESINAF TER=F
WER + TS A ER R R ERE R
il - AR EFEETIREBEEE —BKHE
ZHBRAE - AR REETLEEER
FomAlnE AR IBEERE WY EHR
536,019,000 7L (2019 4F : 42,696,000
BN EEHEERECHELE
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32. Deferred Tax (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the People’s Republic of China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group's subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China, the
applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China in respect of earnings generated from 1

January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of

dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

33. Share Capital

Authorised: VAT ¢
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of

HK$0.25 each

Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
677,434,000 ordinary shares of

HK$0.25 each

ik

677,434,000 I SRR E &
0258z @R

32.

33.

1,000,000,000 % & i E &
0258 T2 LR

EEDIR ()

RERBELEMSRZE - RNRZEARIRM
B 2 N B ERMINERBEEE
TR E AR 10% BURTBIRT - LR E M
2008 1 A1 B AR - I A1 2007
F12A31BEZ&EF - tap Bl AREESN
B EEMERZEERARKIRT
Al AR ENERBRE - iAEE
RREARLRMBEKZZHBARIME
HAMEAS%H10% - Bl - NES
BEERZENHEAR LB 2 K
BRAIN2008F1 A1 HEEE 2%
FT iR 2 BB TEIRR -

ARAMERRIRE 2RSS K5

B
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
250,000 250,000
169,359 169,359
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBRENE
34. Share Option Schemes 34. BRESTE

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 11 June 2020,
the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “New Scheme”) and the termination of the share
option scheme adopted on 7 December 2010 (the “Old Scheme”).

Old Scheme

A summary of the principal terms of the Old Scheme is set out below:

The Company operates the Old Scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to the
Group and enabling the Group to recruit and retain valuable employees.

Pursuant to the Old Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite any
employees, Executive or Non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors), advisers, consultants, shareholders of any
member of the Group or such other persons from time to time to be an
eligible person to whom share options will be granted as an incentive
to attract and retain them for their contributions to the business
development of the Group. The Old Scheme was approved and adopted
by the shareholders of the Company on 7 December 2010 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the Old Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the date of approval of the Old
Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted under the Old Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company to each participant in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of total number of shares of the
Company in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Old
Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date on or after
the date on which the option is granted as the Directors may determine in
granting the option and expiring at the close of business on such date as
the Directors may determine in granting the option but in any event shall
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant (which is the date of offer of
grant if the offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Directors
provided always that it shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of
the Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

ARARR2020F6 A 11 BETHRRE
FRG b AARIRERIER AT R
FTEI([FET 8 )) R AR IER2010F 12 A7
BRpz BB ([E52)) -

EitE
EBIMERZRABMESINT ¢

ARRREENE BEEMNRER2EE
HASEIEL 2 BRG T RE)HEE - U

SARERASYREHAREARE
B2E8 -

BREEFE BT B THRHBER
BAMEE ATEFEUGERNTEE(E
EBMIEHTES) BH - ZWA A
SEEMKEARZBREIZSHEMAL
BARERALT  EEERBRE £
RAFEEHREBEKEREL BB MRS
VIR B RE 2 RE) - EFFEIR 20105 12
A7 BERDNRRRAERRSY  BRIEE
HEWBTEUESER] > BRI AZAE
EET10ERBR -

TERBEF SR 2 2 A BRER A T
BIZRINBE  aATBHRBRERS
B ARz RITRNZ10% -

FREVEEEEMNEALNEERLE
BEE B L)  RBEFERADRER
H b BE AR A 5T 21 5% 2 BE AR AE T ATT
B BT REEITZRNEE LBRTE
BBAAREBITRMBEZ 1% °

BREREBESBGIZRE  NESF
ROBAER  AEREZBREE A
HEATRIETE  EEESRHBRE
BEREZHRERBRERKER © 1
PMEMBERT > MR EBEREE B (AR
HRHBREZOER - MZBREEY
BEX)EF T AHBBI0F -

REBREZZNVENRHENZAE
EA(BREREENE R)ERY - 1
BXREBREZRNOE  BHM1.00

BT -

BREZTRENHESET @ X1
BELRUTREZESE © ()ARAR
DREXN R BEBRZ A EERERMIIZ
BB (NVARARNNERENBH
A1 5 32 5 BB X P B 3RERMTI 2
FHUME : Ri)ARRSRER 2@
@
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34,

Share Option Schemes (continued)
Old Scheme (continued)

Following the termination of the Old Scheme, no options shall be
granted under the Old Scheme. However, options granted prior to such
termination will continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
the rules of the Old Scheme.

During the year, the movements in the share options to subscribe for the
Company'’s shares under the Old Scheme were as follows:

2020

34.

e e )

L HEUE )

RILERBIR - TRBBEFIRLER
FBARAE o AT - AR LERTIR A0 RE R S
BEM YAREEREORAAT T
fE

FR - B BT REAR ARG 2 BRE
EHNT

Number of share options
REHE

Cancelled/
Exercise Balance Granted  Exercised lapsed Balance
Date of  price as at during during during as at Exercisable
Eligible person grant per share 1/1/2020 the year the year the year 31}7//\\12/202 period
12020
\ 5K R2020% o EmEE/ 125 )
RERAL R BH ?ﬂ%ﬁ 1R1B&R  FARY  FAGR k% 31A%% &S
HK
B
Continuous contract ~ #&A/4)  22/7/2016  14.89 2,648,000 - - (2,648,000) - 31/12/2017 -
employees’ g’ 30/12/2020
22712016 14.89 3,143,000 - - (3,143,000 - 31/12/2018 -
30/12/2020
Total CE 5,791,000 - - (5,791,000) -
2019
Number of share options
BRESE
Cancelled/
Exercise Balance Granted Exercised lapsed Balance
Date of price as at during during during as at Exercisable
Eligible person grant per share 1/1/2019 the year the year the year ~ 31/12/2019 period
\ ) R2019%
\ il R2019F . _ Fmds/ 128 .
AERAL RiLEH fﬂ%fg 1R1B&E EAK FRTTE KM 31RER T1E 8
HK
BT
Continuous contract ~ FEAK 22(7/2016  14.89 2,842,000 - = (194,000) 2,648,000 311212017 -
employees’ B8’ 30/12/2020
22/7/2016  14.89 3,338,000 - - (195,0000 3,143,000 31122018 -
30/12/2020
Total &t 6,180,000 - - (389,000) 5,791,000

Continuous contract employees include an associate of a director, Ms. Genevieve
CHOW Karwing, who held 53,000 share options as at 31 December 2019.

Notes:

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had 5,791,000 share options outstanding under
the Old Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 5,791,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of HK$1,448,000 and share
premium of HK$84,780,000 (before share issue expenses).

! BEAHEERREES, —AHEAL
AEALL  ®RN2019F12 A31 BEA
53,000 BB AR % ©

EE

R2019F 12318 ARAIEEFETHA
5,791,00017 14 R 1T{E 2 BB AR A4E - RIEAR D AR
BRARERE - BEIEHMRITEZERE - AR
A8 175,791,000 IR AN L RmAR - I HTIE AR A
1,448,000 7% 7t & % 7 4 (B £ 84,780,000 7 7T (R
MBRRRAD BT »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBRENE
34. Share Option Schemes (continued) 34. BRESTEI(E)
New Scheme FErEl

A summary of the principal terms of the New Scheme is set out below:

The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
Eligible Participants (as defined below) who have contributed or may
contribute to the Group and to enable the Group to attract and retain
employees and other personnel that are valuable to the Group and any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).

Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Board may, at its absolute discretion,
offer to grant an option to subscribe for the shares of the Company
subject to such conditions as it may think fit to the following persons (the

“Eligible Participants”):

a. any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including
any executive director but not any non-executive director) of the

Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

b. any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested

Entity;

C. any individual acting in his capacity as an adviser or a consultant
that provides research, development or other support or advice to

the Group or any Invested Entity;

d. any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of securities issued by any member of the Group or

any Invested Entity; and

e. any distributor, contractor, customer, supplier, agent, business
partner, joint venture business partner, promoter and service
provider to the Group or any Invested Entity whom the Directors
consider, in their sole discretion, has contributed or may contribute

to the Group and any Invested Entity.

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the New Scheme and any
other share option scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
total number of the Company’s shares in issue as at 11 June 2020 (the
“Adoption Date"”) (such total number of issued shares being 677,434,000
shares). As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the New Scheme is 67,743,400 shares,

representing 10% of the shares in issue.

BN ERGEFHEEIIMT -

#at 85 ERE AKEEL BRIk A RE(E
HERMZABR2EAERRTORT
HENRE - AREAREERS/ LR
HARBERASERBEAREZEAE
BREERAREEZEERAMA

REHE EESERA/CENER
REERET - AI2ERERANTAL(A
BREBEADRHBRENELD - ARE
ARER

mo

\

a.  ARAE - HEMMEARSER
BERNEMEE(THAZE®
FRES BREEMHTES A
TEBEAFRTES)

b.  ARE - EEFHERRSUEME
BERBNEMFRTER(RRES
UFHTEE)

¢ (ERERZIEAA  AREBRE
B BRI - RBEIEL
XFBREFOEMAL

d ~AEBEMKERRHEMREER
B2 EMRR  AAEEEMKE
ARREMREERABEITZES
ZEAREA R

e. EFRRENBRARCEXAEUA
SEREIMREERRELAR
AEBEHIAREERNEMDH
BeEeE-FPHER- A
B XBEN SERBBH
B RIRIGHER -

R 8 R AR E b BE AR 5 IS 3%
HZFEEREEBTERY FEITZ
RRARBHBEE  AHFBBBEAR
AIR2020F6 ANMB(IERMBE] 2
ERTRNDEHEMI0% (ZEETRN
4 5677,434,0000% ) R AFE R H
H - BEFGETHBETOROLE A
67,743,400 - BNE BTN HI10% °

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESBEERAERARA

©

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
2020 F %k
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34. Share Option Schemes (continued) 34. BRESTEI(E)
New Scheme (continued) st (&)
The total number of the Company's shares issued and to be issued upon FHREERZBAREM12EARER
exercise of the options granted to each Eligible Participant (including H 2 BRE(RES TR RN ARTTR A
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall B FOATER T BT RBBITZARD
not exceed 1% of total number of shares of the Company in issue. Any AIRMBE - TEBBNDRBEETRN
further grant of options in excess of the 1% limit shall be subject to BB 1% o M- PR BBRENEE
shareholders’ approval in general meeting with such Eligible Participant iR 1% RE - ARRAERREAE LB
and his close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or his associate BIRERE  MZAEBERREARERR
(as defined in the Listing Rules) if the Eligible Participant is a connected B A(EER ETRED(RHZEER
person (as defined in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from voting. 2BABBEAL(EER LEWRA) - 8

HBEA(ERR LMRA))ERE LK
EREHE -

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the New BRERENTERIZATE  RES
Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date on or after SROBRES  RERLZBEREEH
the date on which the option is granted as the Board may determine in FHEATHRRITE  EEESeRLE
granting the option and expiring at the close of business on such date RERERTE B HEERBEREE
as the Board may determine in granting the option but in any event shall o ERMEERT - REREERESR
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant (which is the date of offer of (RO LEREZNER - MAER
grant if the offer for the grant of the option is accepted). EEHNEES )BT BB10FE -
An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days REERENZENENREZEN 2B H
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable (BIEZ B )BT 30 H NEREMR - HERMFR
on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. HEERERZLE [ 1.00/87T
The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board provided BRENTEERESSET  H&RITE
always that it shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the BAZLATIGENESE () RHE
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date R BBl EABR B RERAE
of offer; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock FRE) (WO EBERL BERSE
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately L% BT H KB (VAR AT B KPR
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a share. HERE)  R(i)ROEE
Subject to the termination provisions set out in the New Scheme, the X HIRITRT )2 SRS - FTET B B RN
New Scheme shall be valid for a period of 10 years commencing from the HERHE - BUHABI10F -
Adoption Date.
No share option has been granted under the New Scheme since the SEZSOASE- YR i U e e
Adoption Date. HEARAE -

35. Reserves 35. f#fE

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 76 and 77 of the consolidated financial
statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-foreign-invested
enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries which
are established in the People’s Republic of China has been transferred to
reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

K EE REBREN BT 2T
SR B REE76R 7T AZEA
EREDER -

BREERAREIERECEZHBERR
ER - REERDEARKMBERL K
BRAZBABNEEREREIRHZ
FEEE -
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Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Interest income

Dividend income from listed investments

Dividend income from unlisted investments

Net loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Net loss on disposal of derivative financial
instruments

Net loss on bullion loans designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment
properties

Net fair value gain on bullion loans
designated as at fair value through
profit or loss

Net fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Net fair value loss/(gain) on derivative
financial instruments - transactions not
qualifying as hedges

Covid-19-related rent concessions from
lessors

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Impairment of right-of-use assets

Impairment of accounts receivable

Impairment of receivables arising from
securities and futures broking

Write-down of inventories to net realisable
value

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease in accounts receivable

Increase in receivables arising from
securities and futures broking

Increase in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Increase in cash held on behalf of clients

Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable

Increase in payables arising from securities
and futures broking

Changes in derivative financial instruments

Increase/(decrease) in other payables and
accruals

Cash generated from operations

FRBLATE R

HE
BHEM
FIEBA
ETEREZIREEA
I EMIRE 2 RERA
HEME - BER

REERFEA

HENMESMTAFER

ETARDTEETER
BrELBEEFER

BEWE 2 NFBESF
B8/ (M)

EERRATBEITE
BECESBEEN
NEBEFRE

BAFEEF ANBEN
BSEEZAFER
EEE

fTESMIA AVER
FEEE (W) - TF
EHARTEZRS
HBAALTFH 2019
HRRSHEEZ
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WE - WEREEZ
ﬁ%

ERRAEIIE
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ERBAEAE
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BARBEEEEY
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Y
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36. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 36. MEERSRERME
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from (a) REBFHELEMEREZHE
operations

2020 2019

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
= FEx FET
920,920 883,291

7 87,864 89,162
6 (62,930) (69,528)
6 (24,360) (24,710)
6 (1,018) (1,070)
6 4,880 4,394
6 21,446 123,232
6 209,464 224,208
6 1,811 (2,088)
6 (10,247) (70)
6 3,760 201
6 (1,961) 2,321
16(b) (73,270) -
14 277,894 235,750
16(a) 654,309 685,359
14 4,063 =
16(a) 169,572 =
21 20,982 18,790
22 44,076 445,668
6 29,198 11,790
2,276,453 2,626,700

346,010 (1,551,725)

115,273 54,964

(117,519) (12,557)

(52,651) (130,093)

(41,492) (1,278)

41,243 (35,486)

71,781 46,261

(21,446) (123,232)

(18,638) 37,863

2,599,014 911,417
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBRENE

36. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 36. MEBRSRERMT(E)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities: (b) REFTHELZEEBEH:
2020
Interest-
bearing bank
borrowings

Interest-  arising from
bearing securities and

bank futures Lease Bullion
borrowings broking liabilities loans
EHFER
BERRELE
2B ELE
FERTEN BITEX HEEE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TET
At 1 January 2020 R202061 1A 936,924 280,000 1,299,901 1,473,773
Changes from financing cash flow FEREREE (38,535) (100,000) (539,329) (697,810)
New leases HFHE - - 308,742 -
Foreign exchange movement HNEE & 1,540 - 24,206 26,955
Interest expense FIEBFX - - 46,223 -
Interest paid classified as operating D AELE £ HEH
cash flows BERFIE - - (46,223) -
Termination of leases BIEHE - - (19,088) =
Covid-19-related rent concessions 17 A% F #2019 E itk
from lessors mERE SRR - = (73,270) =
Net loss on bullion loans designated & AR A EE:E
as at fair value through profitor ~ EEv E4BREE
loss FBE - - - 209,464
Net fair value gain on bullion loans #EE AR AL EBEE
designated as at fair BEZESBEEMN
value through profit or loss ATEEFRS - = = (10,247)
At 31 December 2020 #®2020% 12 A31H 899,929 180,000 1,001,162 1,002,135
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

36.

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

(b)

(o)

(d)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

(continued)

2019

At 1 January 2019

Changes from financing cash flow

New leases

Foreign exchange movement

Interest expense

Interest paid classified as
operating cash flows

Termination of leases

Net loss on bullion loans
designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Net fair value gain on bullion
loans designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

At 31 December 2019

Total cash outflows for leases

201941 81H

BMEREREE

HHE

SN 2

F B AL

PERKEELREN
BERFE

RIFAE

HEERRNTFBETE
BEZESEBEE
FEE

BEAEATEET
BECESBREEN
ANEEEFE

72019412 A31H

36. HFERSRBRMEE(E)

(b) BMEZHELZRELE: (H)

Interest-
bearing bank
borrowings
Interest- arising from
bearing bank  securities and Lease Bullion
borrowings  futures broking liabilities loans
#EHk
HEREEE
Zit8 Lk
FEBTER RITER HEAE fEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TER TERT
765,722 200,000 1,058,109 970,140
170,827 80,000 (655,508) 290,976
- - 956,487 -
375 = (4,616) (11,481)
- - 46,310 -
- - (46,310) -
= = (54,571) =
- - - 224,208
= = = (70)
936,924 280,000 1,299,901 1,473,773

The total cash outflows for leases included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows is as follows:

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

Major non-cash transactions

REEEBN
BMEEBA

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$350,071,000 (2019:
HK$964,298,000) and HK$308,742,000 (2019: HK$956,487,000),

respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for buildings.

(0 HERSHRLAEHE

AAGEARERERNEERSR

HAEMT
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET
118,104 101,488
539,329 655,508
657,433 756,996

(d) EEFHREXS

FRAEEREFHELIEN
FREEZELHAESAENER
% 3 119 B &350,071,0007 7T
(20194 : 964,298,000/ 7T ) &
308,742,000/ 7T(20194 :

956,487,000 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

37. Commitments

(a)

(b)

37. &g

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the (a)
reporting period:
Contracted, but not provided for BET4) - BREE

Property, plant and equipment ERN: S ]

Capital contributions payable to BFE—REEhE

a joint venture (note) (BF3E)

Note:
In 2016, the Group entered into an agreement with independent third parties to
form a joint venture. In March 2020, the Group did not proceed with the joint
venture agreement.
The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet commenced (b)

as at 31 December 2020. The future lease payments for these
non-cancellable lease contracts are HK$18,908,000 (2019:
HK$24,537,000) due within one year, HK$58,495,000 (2019:
HK$100,631,000) due in the second to fifth years, inclusive and
HK$488,000 (2019: HK$3,563,000) due after five years.

REEPNIRE R E AR N
T

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
16,453 19,242
- 453,033
16,453 472,275

B :

R2016F « AEBEBYE=HETLAE
R —K&EE % - R2020F 3 AK
SERBEEREERE -

M2020512A318 A&£E A
MARBHNSERAESGN - %E
TR BEBEANNARBER
18 7 18,908,000/8 JL(20194F :
24,537,000 7t ) B — F A F
HA + 58,495,000/ JL(20194F :
100,631,000 L) RE_EF R
F(BEBEEMST )T HI K& 488,000
#BIT(20194F : 3,563,000 78 7T )
REBTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

38. Connected and Related Party Transactions

(@) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere
in these consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following material transactions with connected and/or related

parties during the year at mutually agreed terms:

38.
(a)

BEALRS

RERAEAMBIMEEMEIF
2R 5 R - $‘EEIEA¢W
RS AN TR ARG s
ATEARS

Nature of transactions Relationship 2020 2019
REUE ofEs HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Lease payments for the lease of a retail shop®  Certain Directors of the Company
who have beneficial interests in the
property
HETEERHREMT’ ARRETEERZNEHESR
-l 3 3,300 3,769
Lease payments for short-term leases of Related companies in which certain
quarters of the Company’s Directors Directors of the Company have
beneficial interests
MEARRESEEZRHBHE 2 MEFHE ARRETESHRER R
BE R A 900 900
Consultancy expenses for the provision of A related company in which family
image consultancy services to the Group members of a Director of the
Company have beneficial interests
R A5 4R (L7 S B T AR 75 2 B R B ¢ ARR—EEEREKEHRR
BanfEn s MENT 1,233 448
Commission fee for sale of consignment stock A Director of the Company who
has beneficial interest in the
consignment stock
FEFEZHERD AR —EEERFEREHEER
EniEn - 115

2

As at 31 December 2020, the right-of-use assets related to a retail shop
from these related parties amounted to HK$3,275,000 (2019: Nil) and
lease liabilities of HK$3,240,000 (2019: Nil) were due to these related
parties of the Group. Depreciation of right-of-use assets related to this
retail shop amounted to HK$3,275,000 (2019: HK$929,000) and interest
on lease liabilities to these related parties of the Group amounted to
HK$168,000 (2019: HK$5,000) during the year ended 31 December 2020.

All of the above related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The above transactions are exempted from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules.

# R20205 128318 BHXA

ZEMEALZ —RTERH2E
FA & = 43,275,000 7£(2019
F:TBL) ARBRNZER
# A+ 2% E A & A3,240,000
BL(2019F : T L) ° EAQI
20006 12A31RLEE - BF
;Z?%Eﬁﬂi%&ﬁsz%ﬁ%ﬁ
3,275,0003% 7 (2019 4F : 929,000
BT)RAEEALFZEBEAT
ZHE B EF E A168,0007% T
(20194 : 5,000787T) °

FtRFFEBEALR S IMER L
THRUNETMAZMREZHER
ERS e PR HRIE ETRA
FUAIBKRERERT  FESE
% RERBIBREAEZRE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

38. Connected and Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b)

Emoluments of key management personnel of the Group

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid and payable to key
management personnel during the year, including the amounts paid
and payable to the Company’s Executive Directors, is as follows:

Fees we

Salaries and allowances e M2
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable B RENBIEIEA
Pension scheme contributions RIKSFTEIER

Further details of Directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.

38. BEALXZ(#E)
(b) FEEXEEBEAEHS

FRENRENEZEEEARZMH
LRE  BRECNRENARFH
TERZEE #MT -

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
1,063 1,090
40,793 36,497
4,984 2,989
791 1,133
47,631 41,709

EEMeE—THBEARNGEAMHE
WMEMES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

39.

Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2020
Financial assets

Financial assets included in
other assets

Financial assets designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss
Cash held on behalf of clients
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities and
futures broking

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Bullion loans

Lease liabilities

MBEE

BEHEMEEZHMTHEE
RERBRRTEEHS AL

EHRENTEEE
TEYRR

%éﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁéiZ%W

BARBEE « AER
ERDE AR T

B

BE
REFHESS
RekFRHAE

MBEE

IR
AL HEREEEY
B H K
BATEMEIERR
Wi ER o MBAR
fESBTA
SRR
EimiE

BE
BRYFEE ARSHIS

Financial assets

39. RERSEZzeMIA
RBERR  SERzeMITAKREER

T

Financial assets

at fair value designated
through profit at fair value
or loss - through other
mandatorily ~ Financial assets comprehensive
designated at amortised income - equity
as such cost investments Total
HATEE
s AR  EEARAYEE
BBEE BEERLS FAHMEZERG
- wAEE ISR W BRE .
R ER BBEE - RtaRE it
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TR TET THEL
- 207,170 - 207,170
- - 1,446,083 1,446,083
- 834,649 - 834,649
- 658,673 - 658,673
- 71,299 - 71,299
9,634 - - 9,634
- 485,289 - 485,289
- 1,653,767 - 1,653,767
9,634 3,910,847 1,446,083 5,366,564
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
BAVEEGFABRNHBEE
Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortised
recognition trading _cost Total
DR T BERAA -
EEALER FEEE BenBaE =S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TR
- - 129,803 129,803
- - 575,052 575,052
- - 351,580 351,580
- 7,054 - 7,054
- - 1,079,929 1,079,929
1,002,135 - - 1,002,135
- - 1,001,162 1,001,162
1,002,135 7,054 3,137,526 4,146,715
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBRENE

39. Financial Instruments by Category (continued) 39.

BRERSBERIA(H)

2019
Financial assets

Financial assets included in
other assets

Financial assets designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities and
futures broking

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Bullion loans

Lease liabilities

HKEE

BEhEMEEIMHEE

BEERRATHERES AR
PERENMEEE

TR

ErRHERREL 2 RR
&R

BEERNUR - AthElk
ERREMEENTTH
BE

BRVEE ARSNIE
BE

fTAESMIA

REFREES

RekFRHAE

MBEE

FERTBR 3R
BERBERLESY
[ETEER
BETAMENERK
JEEEE 2B AMRE
TESRBIEA
FERITER
ESEEE
HERE

Financial assets

Financial assets

at fair value designated at
through profit fair value
or loss - through other
mandatorily  Financial assets ~ comprehensive
designated at amortised  income - equity
as such cost investments Total
BAFEE §
st ABEHY | ETREAYERE
MBEBE RBENA HARMREKEG
- Bl 5138 WEAE
RULEER MBEE - iR E At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T A T
- 206,340 - 206,340
- - 935,599 935,599
- 915,804 = 915,804
- 585,230 - 585,230
- 56,728 - 56,728
13,394 - - 13,394
145 = = 145
- 443,797 - 443,797
= 1,028,326 — 1,028,326
13,539 3,236,225 935,599 4,185,363
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
RATEEFABRGNHKEE
Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortised
recognition trading ‘ _cost Total
RAIRERES T RBERAA )
B RULER REEE BB BaRE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TEL TEL
- - 116,156 116,156
- - 503,271 503,271
- - 390,356 390,356
- 9,158 - 9,158
- - 1,216,924 1,216,924
1,473,773 - - 1,473,773
- - 1,299,901 1,299,901
1,473,773 9,158 3,526,608 5,009,539
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

PR S B

40. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the Group’s

financial assets and liabilities approximated to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of accounts receivable,
receivables arising from securities and futures broking, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, cash held on
behalf of clients, cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, payables
arising from securities and futures broking, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals and bank borrowings due for repayment
within one year approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the

short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the

fair values:

The fair values of other assets and bank borrowings due for repayment
after one year approximate to their carrying amounts, which have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group's
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings, bullion
loans and other borrowings as at 31 December 2020 were assessed to be

insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices. The fair values of the unlisted equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income have been estimated
using the income capitalisation method and net realisable value method.
The valuation requires the management to make estimate about the
capitalisation rates. Management believes that the estimated fair
value resulting from the valuation technique, which is recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the related change in fair
value, which is recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable,
and that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the

reporting period.

The fair value of bullion loans and customer gold deposits is based on

open market prices of bullion.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with reputable
financial institutions or top bullion trading companies. As at 31 December
2020, derivative financial instruments represented bullion contracts
and cross currency swaps which are measured based on bullion market
prices and swap pricing respectively. The carrying amounts of the bullion

contracts and cross currency swaps are the same as their fair values.

40.

TRIAZAFPEERAVEESR

RESHR  AREZMBEEREE L
REEEEATEERES

ERECHEREER  EFRAELL
ELZREWEN - B EBNTEA - 2
YRS EMEEZHBEE - KEP
FERE  ReRFRARE  BEEK
ERMNERCEL ERNER  B2HE
HEft AR R EFIER MR ERA
R—FEREREEZRTERZATEE
HAKREERS  TRHRZETARSR
FEHAEIE -

FBEENBBZAFEE  BRTRAK
BRIE - TIABTERNENR 5%
TAARMRZ SBAR At A FEER
ERTURTIIERRBR :

EBEERBM I FRIBEEZRTE
R AT EEREEAERS KR
BENRBAEENER  EERREGT
NBMBEZTAZARERMRTRAERE
HARRRERE - AEEN2020F12 A
B1ERETERTER  E¢BEERE
WEFEH 2 TRORBTEH 2 AFE
BEERTHEALTEK o

EABRHREZ A FEEDHRETSRE
FE - BEARATEES AL LEZEK
w2k EMBRNIRE 2 A FHEEDRAR
ABRCER AT BFFEAER A © %
BREERREEBHENMCLRENR
i BERRRRAERMEL 2GR
FEEERGERUBERARTRIEBA
FEEEHEREMLE2ERECE 18
AE RARNBERRTEZ 2EE -

ECBEEREPFRZATEETRE
B ARTEE -

REFHEEERFZEHBERERES
BESZRRFUTEESRMIEA - 2020
F12A318  (TEEBRIEEDRIRE
CBMHERTEZESBA O RIZHE
BT E 2R BB - EEBAIER
N EBE S REEEE AT EEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

40.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable input to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis:

As at 31 December 2020
M 2020%F12A831H

Unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income

EERBRATEESARME2EKS
HFE LMD IR E

As at 31 December 2019
M2019512831H

Unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income

EEARRTEES AL B2ERE
HE MR E

Valuation
technique

S

Income
capitalisation
method

BWAB AL

Net realisable
value method

AR FEE

Income
capitalisation
method

L UN-¥.N|#73

Net realisable
value method

ARBHE

Significant
unobservable input

EXEUBREE

Capitalisation rate

ERbib=

N/A

TEA

Capitalisation rate

BAEE &

40.

EMIAZAVEERAVEESR(A)

UTRERBTAREZERBNBRUE
MBERECBRENT :

Range

EE

3.8% to
4.5%

3.8%
£4.5%

N/A

TER

3.8% to
4.8%

3.8%
£4.8%

Sensitivity of the
input to fair value

BEHAVEEZHBE

1% increase/ decrease

in capitalisation rate
would result in decrease/
increase in fair value by
HK$194,000

BRI REMHWD 1% #
HHATEERD, B
194,000 7 7T

N/A

TEA

1% increase/ decrease

in capitalisation rate

would result in decrease/
increase in fair value by
HK$201,000
BRI RE M, B 1% 8
BYATEERD /N
201,000/ 7T

N/A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

40.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2020

Financial assets designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2019

Financial assets designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments

M2020F12831H

HERBRATEBTA
Hith 2 Az 75
BE

BRATFEEABEN
MBEE

M2019F12831H

BERBRATEBETA
Hit 2 E K& 75
BE

mAFEER AR
WiEEE

THEERMTA

40. 2@MIAZAVEERAFEESR(E)

AFEEER

TREJNASKEERTIAZ A FEEAE

M
BAVEEMECEE

Fair value measurement using

RAUTHE 2 APEETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SER™ IS BEATHEE EBEAEUER
RE Y& g
(& Al1) (#B12) (&% 513) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT FEx FERx
1,413,890 - 32,193 1,446,083
9,634 - - 9,634
1,423,524 - 32,193 1,455,717
901,135 - 34,464 935,599
13,394 - - 13,394
- 145 - 145
914,529 145 34,464 949,138
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

40.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the year are

as follows:

Financial assets designated at fai
other comprehensive income:
At 1 January

Total loss recognised in other comprehensive

income

At 31 December

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2020

Bullion loans
Derivative financial instruments
Customer gold deposits

As at 31 December 2019

Bullion loans
Derivative financial instruments
Customer gold deposits

40. SRMIAZAVEERATFEESHR(EA)
AFEESER(E)
FARA3ZAFEBEFELHNOT :
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER THET
rvalue through  #EERBRAFEBEET AELAM
ZEBENFBEE :
Rm1A1R 34,464 37,287
REMmEEKEFERZ
EEeE (2,271) (2,823)
»12A31H 32,193 34,464
BRATEBEFECEE
Fair value measurement using
RAUTER ZAFEETE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
JERT S ERUBE BAHEUBE
HRE i g
(#&501) (8 512) (4 513) &%t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TR TR TR TER
720205128318
EBREE 1,002,135 - - 1,002,135
EEmIA - 7,054 - 7,054
BEFES 22,526 - - 22,526
1,024,661 7,054 - 1,031,715
M2019%12A31H
B BfEE 1,473,773 = = 1,473,773
TESRIA - 9,158 = 9,158
REFES 47,098 = = 47,098
1,520,871 9,158 = 1,530,029

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities.

FR - MBEERMBREEH 1 KK
Bl2 2BBERAVEETESER  TES

AHBHFRI3 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

41.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
borrowings, and cash and bank deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
accounts receivable and accounts payable, which arise directly from
its operations.

The Group’s overall risk management policies focus on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to utilise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by management under the policies
approved by the Board and it identifies, evaluates and monitors
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating
units.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
equity price risk and commodity price risk. The Board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
utilising below.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk due to potential changes
in interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities.
Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly loans to margin clients
whereas interest-bearing financial liabilities are primarily bank
borrowings with primarily floating interest rates which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

For Hong Kong dollar floating-rate borrowings, assuming that
the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year, a 50-basis point
increase/decrease in interest rates at 31 December 2020 and 2019
would have decreased/increased the Group's profit before tax by
HK$3,798,000 and HK$3,996,000, respectively. The sensitivity
to the interest rate used is considered reasonable, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax.

The Group's interest rate risk exposure also arises from margin
financing and other lending activities. The Group has the legal
capacity to quickly recall such loans or re-price its loans to an
appropriate level. A 50 basis-point increase/decrease in interest
rates at 31 December 2020 and 2019 would have increased/
decreased the Group's profit before tax by HK$1,320,000 and
HK$1,417,000 respectively. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of assets carried at the end of the reporting period was
carried for the whole year. The sensitivity to the interest rate used
is considered reasonable, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax.

41. BHREREEBEEREE

(a)

MREREE

AREZIRERTABRERTE
FERERRITER - HELH
TRAZIZRAZTIRAREZEE
BHRED ARERETHEMMBE
ﬁ?&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéiﬁﬁ%é
AR MR TR R FE A R R o

AEECERAREERRHH S
BT 5 2 REATRANE - W STORE
ﬂ$%lﬁﬁ§ﬁ%%Z@ETﬂ
FE -RRERIHEEERESE
$ HVZ& RAETT - MERER
AEEZEEBUREAE  UH
- AR ERAEER -

AEESRIAMELZTERAR
AMNEEE - MERE  EER
B RBEER  BROERRR
LEmERER EFEEMLF
ETNALEESALZRR
B o

VeI
$%llﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ52ﬂ
RBEEEEMAZFERR - 5T &
NBEETERHREFER M
HEMBABEXEARRITENR X
ZRZHNETE  ERAEER
XReREFERER o

BT EZHINEERME  BR
RBEPRERZEBBLEIR
BEEFERER FERR20206 Kk
20194E12 A31 B & /% 2 50
BES - BHRD ENEE
@ B 4 Bl % 73,798,000 T &
3,996,000/ 7T © FEFATA HAb %
BETE LA ATMRESZR 2
BRT  AEBRAHAFERZ
HERETIBEE -

REEZHNERBITREFEEE
REMERES - AEBEEET
BN BRI RO B E R R ERT
HERZ@EE KT - FIER2020
F %2019 12 A31 B M,/ F
D50 EES - o RIE M B
REEBRBATEF 1,320,000 T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

41.
(a)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's policy is to obtain the most favorable interest rates
available without increasing its foreign currency exposures. In
addition, the Group monitors the level of interest rate exposure and
considers utilising hedging instruments should the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly arising from
sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the
units’ functional currency. Management conducted periodical review
of exposures and requirements of various currencies, and used cross
currency swaps to manage certain of its foreign currency exposures
on significant and recurring future commercial transactions.
Hedging is only considered for firm commitments.

The Group's assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar, Renminbi and United States dollar. Currency risk is
managed by partly financing non-Hong Kong dollar assets with
loans denominated in the relevant currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values of monetary
assets and liabilities) and the Group's equity.

2020

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens
against the RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar
strengthens against the RMB

fis B 7T AR ESS
B 7T 5L AR K N5

2019

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens
against the RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar
strengthens against the RMB

BT ARKEESS
BT AR N5

a1.
(a)

Increase/
(decrease)
RMB rate
ARBER
#m,/ ()

%

(5)

HEREERERIEK (&)

MR ERE R ()

FIEmfR (&)

KB 2 BRTENIE IEINE R
R BERTEMRAFZMEK-
SN+ AN SR B BRI R AR AR K
T RRERERERRALHT
B

SMNEE 2
AEBEZXHEBRRIEREE
BEMAENEEBUIN 2 BEE
TZEE - EEERTRERHORE
R R HBETERR - YAAR
XEBERERABARERER
REEZXHZETINERR - A&
B E R AERITE A -

AEBZBERBBEIRNET
ARBERETAEN - EEINER
BITERAIMNEE R RTF LIEET
BEETHORE -

TRETRAA LGRS TE
ZERT  ARERBEHR LR
AN (REEEERBBELRY
BEMNZE) RASENEREA
REERAIGSBES 2 GRAE -

Increase/
(decrease) Increase/
in profit (decrease)
before tax in equity
BRBLADRF e
#m/ () #m,/ (Rd)
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TERT
4,975 348,765
(4,975) (348,765)
4,488 294,460
(4,488) (294,460)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

41.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The accounts receivable and receivables arising from securities and
futures broking represent the Group’s major exposure to the credit
risk arising from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial assets in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group's retail
sales of jewellery and watches are usually transacted on a cash
basis, via popular credit cards or through reputable and dispersed
department stores. The Group's credit sales to corporate clients and
wholesale customers are generally on credit terms within 60 days.
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk with
respect to its retail business as it has a large number of diversified
customers. For accounts receivable arising from the wholesale
of diamonds and precious metals, the Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties and bullion banks. The
Group's receivables from margin clients arising from the ordinary
course of business of dealing in securities are secured by the
underlying collaterals. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has its credit control policy
to minimise the credit risk. In addition, all receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and overdue balances are followed

up by senior management.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross

carrying amounts for financial assets.

41, BHEREERERBEE)

(a)

MR ERE R ()

ERER
BURIRSRESRRERLEEZ
BURERF DI AREARZ HHF T
BAMELZIREERAR &%
RBAENGAMBRARTILE
WBEBEEZRTE AEE2KE
REERTEHEREURS - BB
ERERRREBEERKERDE
ZBEAAETRS - AKEAD
REPRMBRFPETZEEHE
—RIEORAZHRAET - @
REEXEBKRBEREDHEF » &
TEEREHZEERR - SED
LECBHBES ZRUER - K
SEERERARAEELE =%
LEMENRS - ARBREAE
EEPESFERELCREARE
FHRFAB B EMESEEM -
AR B R R TR A S B AR
Bl WREEEEHBRARESE
BREfg - g5 - A BKAR SR
BE/EER  BRERERRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

41. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2020

Accounts receivable*

Receivables arising from
securities and futures
broking
— Normal**
- Doubtful**

Financial assets included in
other assets

Financial assets included
in prepayments, other
receivables and other
assets
— Normal**

Cash held on behalf of
clients
- Not yet past due

Cash and cash equivalents
- Not yet past due

FEHARTR *
ErMELR
EEZ RN

_ J‘_Ef‘%"**

- THERE **
BEEHAMEEZ

BBEE
BREERNEA

Hfth R BR R %

Hith & ER I %

BE

_ Eﬁ%‘ * %
REFPHAERE

- HABH
ReMFERASE
- HABH

41, BHEREERERBE(E)

(@) MEER

EESC )

EEAR (&)
REEAREFRSEEDHE(E)

R2020F12A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
128 A
FEER EHRMEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total
1R BB FEIRR K7 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT THET THET THERT THET
- - - 884,455 884,455
425,434 11,888 - - 437,322
- - 711,095 - 711,095
207,170 - - - 207,170
71,299 = = = 71,299
485,289 - - - 485,289
1,653,767 - - - 1,653,767
2,842,959 11,888 711,095 884,455 4,450,397
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

41. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2019

Accounts receivable*

Receivables arising from
securities and futures
broking
— Normal**
- Doubtful**

Financial assets included in
other assets

Financial assets included
in prepayments, other
receivables and other
assets
— Normal**

Cash held on behalf of
clients
- Not yet past due

Cash and cash equivalents
- Not yet past due

FEHRTR *
ArMELR
EEZ YRR

_ J‘_E%‘-**

- THERE **
BEEAMEBEZ

BBEE
BEEENE

Hith YRR K

HittEERN I

BE

_ ET%‘“ * %
REPHALSE

- MR

RehEREE
- HABH

note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

* %

41. HBEREEEERBE(E)
(@) MEREBEE(E)

EEAER (&
REEAREFRSEEDHE(E)

R2019F12A831H1

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
12 {8 A B
FEEA EHEBEEEE
Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
£1ER E2MER F3RER Gkl apz: CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET FET
_ - = 942,312 942,312
319,697 - - - 319,697
- - 711,201 - 711,201
206,340 — — — 206,340
56,728 - - - 56,728
443,797 = = = 443,797
1,028,326 - - - 1,028,326
2,054,888 = 711,201 942,312 3,708,401

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in

The credit quality of the receivables arising from securities and futures
broking and financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the

credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “"doubtful”.

* %

AR B A AL 7y AT S e O
RERE - ABRERERERDN
BHBENGAMTEREME21 -

&SRR R R EE 2 R R
REBBEEMKE - A EYK
ERRAMEENRBEEY &
BHAYERBEMBTZENHE
EZERERBENAEIRAR
B AZERBRELERE
ERBRAIER] BRI ZEH
BEEZEREERBARITR

Ele
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

41.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

41, BHEREERERBEE)

Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HBEEREZ(E)
Liquidity risk B E TR
The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash AEBERFTAFRERERRS
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the REBAERABRHKE AKX
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash SEEBFREESREMBSRE
flows. The responsibility of the Group’s treasury department is to BB 22 AREMBHAZE
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility TREBERROIGEETER ZE
through the use of banking facilities in order to meet its liquidity B REEN 2 BEIUSFE - AR
requirements both in the short term and long term. The Group AEEBERRERBEST K K
maintains significant flexibility to respond to opportunities and SEEREREE DA ZEEH
events by ensuring that committed credit lines are available. All EERE  #RFRBESIEADE
debts of the Group (other than lease liabilities) as at 31 December R E M 2020512 A 31
2020 would mature within three years. B -A&EEMERE(HERRER
SR =FNEIE o
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end RBERR  AEBZHBEER
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted .J%’MEGH)?J'EE KIEETE 2 BB
payments, is as follows: AT
2020
No fixed
terms of 1 year 2 years 5 years
repayment/ or less or less or less
repayable ~ 3months  butover  butover  butover Over
on demand orless 3 months 1 year 2 years Syears  Undated Total
EEE
e 3EA 1EIUT  2FENT SEFNT
REXEE AT @3EANL  B1ENE B2EME  SENE &R it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T#n T Tn T T Tén T
Accounts payable EREN 81,174 48,629 - - - - - 129803
Payables arising from EHRMEELES
securities and futures R
broking 486,508 88,544 - - - - - 575,052
Financial liabities included ~ B&TEEMEREFR
in other payables and EERY
accruals HBaRE 151,240 200,340 - - - - - 351,580
Derivative financial fTEEBIE
instruments - 4,120 2,934 - - - - 7,054
Lease liabilities figak - 159,545 431,208 314,926 141,409 11,910 - 1,058,998
Term loans subject to RERERARZ
repayment on demand THER
clause 297,580 - - - - - - 297,580
Other interest-bearing bank ~ Efzt 8 HR47E R
borrowings - 118,412 298,278 259,973 126,751 - - 803,414
Bullion loans ESBRE = 924,264 11,81 - - - - 1,002,135
1,016,502 1,543,854 810,291 574,899 268,160 11,910 - 4,225,616
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBRENE

41. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 41. HEEREEEERBE(E)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) BIHEREZEGE)

Liquidity risk (continued) HEELER (B)

2019
No fixed
terms of 1 year 2 years 5 years
repayment/ or less or less or less
repayable 3 months but over but over but over Over
on demand orless 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years Undated Total
EEE
BEH/2 3EA 1EIMT 2FIMT  SEAMT
REXER FUT E3EANE  E1ENE E2ENME SEpE B8R At
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
Fin Tk Fin T T T T Fin
Accounts payable R 8332 32,834 - - - - - 116,156
Payables arising from ERRMERLES
securities and futures LIERERR
broking 4447712 58,559 - - - - - 503,271
Financial liabilities included ~ B2EEMEREH R
in other payables and EERZ
accruals HBafE 124006 266330 - - - - - 39035
Derivative financial fiteRIA
instruments - 8,328 - - - - 830 9,158
Lease liabilites HEaf - 153397 458646 467,035 269,074 24,508 - 1372660
Term loans subject to FEXERENZ
repayment on demand THER
clause 336,040 - - - - - - 336,040
Other interest-bearing bank (3t B 51783
borrowings - 139,486 325,913 288,160 166,193 - - 919,752
Bullion loans EEBEE - 1217378 256,395 - - - - 1413783
988,100 1,876,312 1,040,954 755,195 435,267 24,508 830 5,121,166
Equity price risk REREE

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The fair values of these listed
equity investments are affected by market forces and other factors.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as financial assets designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income (note 19) and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 24) as at
31 December 2020. The Group's listed investments are listed on
the Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period. The majority of the listed equity
investments are held for non-trading purposes.

B EBRRBRIERNES 2 AFE
ERRR 5K REREHEE
HEESHM IRz ER - WE LT
BOBREZAFBESTSHER
HREFE -  NREBER20205F
12A31 B BEAREBTEARAT
EBEFAEMEZEKENIBEEE
(BfF3E19) RIB DA FBEF ABZE
BB 765 8 2 (B RE 24) 2 1@ BB 7
BERMAZRDEBRER - A&
Bz EIRERBRA LT - AR
EHRATIEMEE - KD L™
BB DB IEFEEERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

41.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 41.
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a)
Equity price risk (continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the
purpose of this analysis, the impact with respect to the financial
assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.
Carrying
amount
of equity
investments
BRIBREZ
BREE
HK$'000
TERT
2020
Investments listed in Hong Kong: RESLMZEE :
Financial assets designated at fair EBEBERAFER
value through other comprehensive AR 2 E Y
income KA E 1,413,890
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEEFAEBE
profit or loss B EE 9,634
2019
Investments listed in Hong Kong: REB LM ZBE
Financial assets designated at fair EERRATEE
value through other comprehensive FPAE M2 RS
income N EE 901,135
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEEF AR
profit or loss KA E 13,394

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sale of jewellery including bullion
products. The bullion market is influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. A significant decline
in prices of bullion could adversely affect the Group's financial
performance. In order to reduce the commodity price risk, the
Group uses bullion loans as well as derivative financial instruments,
such as bullion contracts, to reduce its exposure to fluctuation in
the bullion prices on bullion inventories. The bullion price exposures

are monitored by management.

For the bullion loans and bullion contracts, assuming that the
amount outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year, a 10% increase/decrease in
market prices of bullion at 31 December 2020 and 2019 would
have decreased/increased the Group's profit before tax by
HK$141,155,000 and HK$194,697,000, respectively. The sensitivity
to the market prices of bullion used is considered reasonable, with
all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax. This
information has not taken into account potential financial impact

on other financial statement line items.

HEREERERIEK (&)

B i B R 2 ()

R ER-EE (&)

TRETERHREHARZ RHER
B RAEEMEHRTE R AL
AHREYEMHRNRERTFER
B10%ZE 2 GRAE - LA
ME  "EEREAVEEAR
tEARENRHBEECARYE
g%u%&&%%&%@@%&%&%

Increase/
decrease Increase/
in profit decrease
before tax in equity
BR 7B A 4 Al EwiEm/
2,/ wo D
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FTHERT
- 141,389
963 -
= 90,114
1,339 —

B B 15 A5

AEENRSHENT  BRESE
Em BEBMSX2RUARBE
HEHRERTE - B2 BERAK
I REH AN SR B 2 B IR AB AR T 7
FE - BRREAmERER A%
EERECBEEUARESEAH
ETESRMIEA  URESSBE
REDHHE BT 2 ABALE -
E@E@%%ﬁ@EE%Z@@ﬂ

BELEBEERESBANME -
BERRBEMRER 2 EEINE
EFEELEX  E€BHEN2020
£ K2019E 12 A31 8 &,/ 5
$10%  BARIRD LI EE
B[ R AT F 141,155,000 78 7T &
194,697,000 7T ° FEFTH H A&
BB FETE T AT ER
ZERT  REBRAEUHEES
BHEZHBENBARE - WER
WiEEEHEMMISREBE 2
BT E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

41.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(b)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and
to enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions and business strategies.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, raise and repay debts or issue
new shares. The Group is required to comply with certain externally
imposed capital requirements set out in certain of its banking
facility agreements. Additionally, certain subsidiaries engaged in
securities and futures broking, which are regulated entities under
the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC"), and
a subsidiary which is a member of the CGSE, are required to comply
with respective minimum capital requirements imposed by the SFC
and the CGSE. During the two years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, these subsidiaries complied with respective minimum capital
requirements imposed by the SFC and the CGSE. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
borrowings to total equity. Total borrowings include interest-
bearing bank borrowings, interest-bearing bank borrowings arising
from securities and futures broking and bullion loans. Total equity
comprises all components of equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company. The Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio
at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

Total borrowings BEE
Total equity s

BARRELE

Gearing ratio

41, BHEREERERBEE)

(b)

BEXEE

AEEEAER 2 T ZABRRE
AEBRBELERK 28 L
FREZEAL X  UHHEER
RIEMAR 2 BEE

AEFREBER AR EERE &
HEBEEALER  UHHEELH
o BB ABRENER K&
B ARRRRRT RS - 18
MREEEBAKBEITHR - A£E
BBRTHEETROMERZNEZ
ETFIMEERBTE o o - BFH
BRRREEARPERLLERL
BEAEFRPEENERLZE S
((BEGFMECIHAEEE U
E—ZRMBREIALREEZ G2
28 ZEAREBRTEESRS
REZIHERZARREERR
Feo RNE E2020F K2019412
ANBLEMEEE  ZEWBA
RETEESNSREESLRE
B &EELRHT - #E2020
FR219F12A31BIEEE
REETEEAZ BIZ - BRHE
Rl e 28 o

AEERERBBELE(AEES
Yk m ) BERER - BiEE
EAERTER BFLHES
RELEZAERRTEFRRECSERE
E o BRROEARARERAA
[EERER AR - REEZH
RABERBBLRERHESTEK
T RBmEHRZERE AL EN
T

o mE

X

iy
F

3

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
TR THT
2,082,064 2,690,697
12,019,114 10,632,385
17.3% 25.3%

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESBEERAERARA

e

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

2020 F #



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

42. Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The following tables set out details of financial instruments subject to
offsetting at the end of the reporting periods.

42. EHEUMBEERMBEE

TREJIRBERRZEHNRZ SR T

AFE -

2020

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial  Net amounts of
liabilities  financial assets
set off in the presented in
consolidated the consolidated
Gross amounts statement of statement of

Related amounts
not set off in the consolidated
statement of financial position

AERGRUBRRRPEH BBSE

of recognised financial financial Financial ~ Cash collateral
financial assets position position instruments pledged Net amount
RERB% RERHH
xR VgL
B EH2ERA EH2HH [BE:%id
HREERR BREELAE EERE SRIA REHAR B8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Assets EE
Accounts receivable MR 834,950 (301) 834,649 - - 834,649
Receivables arising from &% R HASE4
securities and futures  E4 7 BN
broking Bk 796,051 (137,378) 658,673 - - 658,673
1,631,001 (137,679) 1,493,322 - - 1,493,322
Gross amounts  Net amounts of
of recognised financial
financial assets liabilities Related amounts
set off in the presented in not set off in the consolidated
Gross amounts consolidated the consolidated statement of financial position
of recognised  statementof  statementof FERGAMBMRARTEEHELE
financial financial financial Financial ~ Cash collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
REEEHE REAEH
el e
BER B2 BER 2R M 2EA
RERER REEAT SRR $RIA BEHRR BH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TARL TARL TER TER
Liabilities a8
Accounts payable EERR 130,104 (301) 129,803 - - 129,803
Payables arising from &% R g4
securities and futures  E4 2 EfR
broking BR 712,430 (137,378) 575,052 - - 575,052
842,534 (137,679) 704,855 - - 704,855
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

42. Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

42. EHMBEERMBEEE)

2019

Gross amounts

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
liabilities

set off in the
consolidated
statement of

Net amounts of
financial assets
presented in
the consolidated
statement of

Related amounts
not set off in the consolidated
statement of financial position

AERNGRUBARRTAE ABSE

of recognised financial financial Financial Cash collateral
financial assets position position instruments pledged Net amount
KR8 iSRRIk
xS Rz
B#R BH7BRR 2R E BEA
MBEESR MkaReR BERE ERIA HefAm et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THL TATL TAL TAL THEL
Assets (]
Accounts receivable  FEMERF 915,810 (6) 915,804 = = 915,804
Receivables arising from &% ki §4E4
securities and futures 4 2 el
broking BR 643,089 (57,859) 585,230 = — 585,230
1,558,899 (57,865) 1,501,034 - - 1,501,034
Gross amounts Net amounts of
of recognised financial
financial assets liabilities Related amounts
set off in the presented in not set off in the consolidated
Gross amounts consolidated  the consolidated statement of financial position
of recognised statement of statement of RBRNGANBHRRTHEE EHEE
financial financial financial Financial Cash collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
ReEaH REa %
RS WAz
B Bif EHR EwA BEA
fikaGRE HBAERE aEFE £RIA BeERG e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THEL FHEL TAL TAL THEL
Liabilities ff&
Accounts payable EERR 116,162 (6) 116,156 - - 116,156
Payables arising from  EHRHAGEL
securities and futures  EEAE 2 FEf
broking i 561,130 (57,859) 503,271 - = 503,271
677,292 (57,865) 619,427 = = 619,427

43. Event After the Reporting Period

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company announced
the cessation of operation of its securities and futures broking business,
details of which were contained in the announcement dated 29 January

2021.

43, REHBREE
REMERE  ARASMIELEEEHE
HERERECER  BRFHEINAHA
202151 A29AMAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

44,

Statement of Financial Position of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves (note)

Total equity

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Director

FRBEE
N IEYNGIP 3

RBEE
BN FE
RehERHAE

BRBEE

REBRE
Hith AR R R B
B

BRBRE
REBREFE
EERE
i
EBRITRA
e (K1)

B

44, ARDQFEHMRRE

BRARRANBEERR M BRRNKZE

KT
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
3,182,683 3,143,162
337 335
1,553 2,424
1,890 2,759
7.544 7,514
21 357
7,565 7,871
(5.675) (5,112)
3,177,008 3,138,050
169,359 169,359
3,007,649 2,968,691
3,177,008 3,138,050

Winston CHOW Wun Sing AR

Director

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME

44,

Statement of Financial Position of the Company (continued)

44, ELQTHMBEMRAE(E)

Note: BEEE
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARRlFEZHENT -
Share
Share option Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus profits Total
BROBRE  BRERE BABRHK REB A &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TET TERT FTHET
At 1 January 2019 201941 A 1H 1,060,356 15,251 975,582 908,498 2,959,687
Profit and total FRRMNREE
comprehensive income W 4asE
for the year - - - 401,916 401,916
Transfer of share option PR U B AR e P
reserve upon the BB
forfeiture of share
options - (983) - 983 -
Dividends declared and paid FERE & R+
during the year [d5) - - - (392,912) (392,912)
At 31 December 2019 and 20194
1 January 2020 12A318 K
20201 A1 H 1,060,356 14,268 975,582 918,485 2,968,691
Profit and total FERRMNZEE
comprehensive income W BEE
for the year - - - 242,189 242,189
Transfer of share option PR B I RS
reserve upon the RERERE
forfeiture of share
options - (14,268) - 14,268 -
Dividends declared and paid ERE & R &t
during the year ) - - - (203,231) (203,231)
At 31 December 2020 20204
12A31H 1,060,356 - 975,582 971,711 3,007,649

The Company’s contributed surplus arose in 1992 as a result of the
Group's reorganisation and represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares allocated under the reorganisation scheme
and the then consolidated net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries.

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus is

ARBRI192 FELE ZHABBKE AR
SEEA DREEEAIREZALT
B EEEHKBHBARER ZGAE
EFEZZRE -

BEAREIGIFARE  EETIER

distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.

T BABBATARTRR -
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AEESBEERAERARA

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
2020 F #



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RERMBREWT
45. Particulars of Subsidiaries 45. KMIBARFE
Information about subsidiaries is as follows: MBARZERMT
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
RI,/ ERTZERE A8 Frdh
ZH Ay e £ AR A REE D TEER
Direct Indirect
HE G
Acclaim Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$600,000 - 100  Investment holding
HEFR LA RERAREE 600,000 % T REZER
Chow Sang Sang Bullion Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
Dealers Limited
BAEELHERDA & 5,000,000 7T REZR
Chow Sang Sang (China) People’s Republic of ~ HK$1,500,000,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
Company Limited* China/Mainland China and watches
BEE(FR)EEERDF * REARZME, 1,500,000,000 7T RE R ERHE
BN
Chow Sang Sang Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Dormant
Commodities Limited
BAEEBRERDA & 5,000,000 %7 TEEX
Chow Sang Sang Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Sale of corporate
Corporate Gift Limited gift products
BEECEERERAA & 1,000,000 7T rEEREE
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of RMB10,000,000 - 100  Diamond polishing
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China
BEEER(ER)BRAR REARLME, 10,000,000 T AR BARIE
B
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of US$10,000,000 - 100 Diamond trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China
BEEER( L) BRAR hEARAME, 10,000,000 % 7T EBLEE
LB
Chow Sang Sang Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - 100 Group financing
BN BERDT BB 15,000,000 & 7T SERE
Chow Sang Sang Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Futures broking
BAEEHEERAF BB 5,000,000 7T e
Chow Sang Sang Holdings (BVI) British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
Limited
BAEEEE(RBERARES) KBRS 50,000 7T REER
ERAT
Chow Sang Sang Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$250 - 100  Investment holding
BAEEEEERAR & 250 7T REZR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FREMBREMR
45. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 45. KMIBARFE(E)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
RI,/ ERTEZERE QA etk
£% AR & EMRA BRER DL TEEB
Direct Indirect
HE 3
Chow Sang Sang International Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100  Property investment
(Shunde) Limited Mainland China
&£ BBR (B ) B IR A A) i N 28T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Investments Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
BAEEREERDA BB 2,500,000 7T REZK
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of
(China) Limited marketing services
and
investment holding
BEHEERE (PE)BRAR i 18T RIS B RS
R EER
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 - 100 Retail of jewellery
Company Limited and watches
BAEERESTARAA EE 30,000,000 % 7T KEREZTE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$275,307,500 - 100 Manufacture and
(Foshan) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
EEERE (FIL)BRAR REARAME,  275307,500%7T KRERERHEE
B R B
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Pte Ltd Singapore SG$2 - 100 Dormant
3K 27T Tmex
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of RMB20,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BAEERE(FB)BRAR REARLME, 20,000,000 T AR RERERHE
BIRRE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$24,400,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Shaanxi) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BEEKREST(RAE)BRAF * hEARKEME, 24,400,000 7T RESERHE
LAIETPN =
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
(Taiwan) Limited Taiwan
BEEREITROARAR REBEBAME B 50,000 % 7T KEHE
Chow Sang Sang Manufacturing British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100  Investment holding
International Limited
S EHBEEARAR EBRER RS 17T REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RERMBREWT
45. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 45. KMIBARFE(E)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
RI,/ ERTEZERE A28 firdh
Z8 B ES:E EIUIES REE DL TEXK
Direct Indirect
HE 3
Chow Sang Sang Nominees Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Provision of
nominee services
BAEEREABRAT BB 1,000,000 77T RERE AR
Chow Sang Sang Property Holdings British Virgin Islands US$30,000 - 100  Property investment
(BVI) Limited (redomiciled from
Netherlands Antilles)/
Hong Kong
REBRBAREE 30,000% 7T MERE
(BERERNIE),
Bt
Chow Sang Sang Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Property investment
BAELEBEEERAA BB 10,000,000 7T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Securities broking
BEEESFBRRA e 10,000,0008 7T B4
Emphasis Jewellery Company Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Retail of jewellery
Limited
HERABEERAR A 25,000 89T KETE
Foshan Shunde Jinpeng Jewelry People’s Republic of RMB 1,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited* China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BILTEER S BKREEH REARKME, 1,000,000 TARE RERBENHE
BREMEAF* LEN
Fullink Developments Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Dormant
REERRES 17T i
Hong Kong Gemological Research Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Gemological
and Authentication Centre research and
Company Limited authentication
ERBRAEREEF OERAT B8 100,000 & 7T BEOMERET
The Future Rocks Company Limited” Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100  Investment holding
BB 100,000 7T REZR
The Future Rocks (Guangdong) People’s Republic of HK$5,500,000 - 100 E-commerce
Company Limited* China/Mainland China
AREFEB(ER)ARAR hEE ARANE 5,500,000 77T EFE®
LEN
Tsin Chuk Kam Manufactory Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ US$100,000 - 100 Processing of
Mainland China jewellery
TREHEMER AR EBHERARES/ 100,000 37T KEMT
B K B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

PR S B

45.

46.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 45. KIBRARFEGE)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
Ry, EBRTLZBERE AR Frdh
28 EIVE-E i EITES REBDL TEEK
Direct Indirect
HE e %
World Commercial Sales Company Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100 Wholesale of
Limited precious metals
HRABTHRAF B 2,500,000 7T SETBIE
338.Net Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Dormant
) 28T Fmak
* These companies were registered as wholly-foreign-invested enterprises under the & SRR TDRE E AR ERMBEZT M

law of the People’s Republic of China
Incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2020

Incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2019

Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements 46.

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2021.

ZRINGIREDE
# REZE 2020412 A31 BIEFEAKT

RBZE2019F12 A31 BIEFEAKIL

RemBREzHE

NG AMBEREN 2021 F3A25HEE
EERERERETE -
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD
As at 31 December 2020

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:

FrisEFHE
202012 A31H

AEERAOIRYEFENAT

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE B SR B A% BEEE BE HE
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFEFR)
Hong Kong
B8
# 229 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 6357 Rental/ own use  31,225*% Commercial Short
NEBIE 22957 21E b=y [GES 51
* G/F & M/F, 326-328 Castle Peak Road, N.K.I.L. 2507 & Rental/own use  2,790* Commercial Medium
Kowloon 2177
MBS L8 326 £ 32855 T E & i,/ B GES i
* G/F & 1/F, 99-101 Wuhu Street, Hunghom, H.H.I.L. 472, 471 & Own use 2,345* Commercial Medium
Kowloon 447 s A
NEAMEREFIIZ 10155 TR 112 BA [EES H
* Roof, G/F & 1/F, 432 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2266 R.P. Rental/own use 1,788* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon
NEKXTERAI2FT ~ 1HERKE el =l EES H
* Shop B, G/F, 428-430 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2267 R.P. Own use 1,078* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon & 2268 R.P.
NEXTEF428E 4305k T B4 =) [EES H
Flat A, 11/F and Roof, 199 Nam Cheong N.K.I.L. 1230 Rental 551 Residential Medium
Street, Kowloon s.ARP. &
BEFEHI99M1EAEBRA 5.B.ss.2 api! F=E H
2/F, Flats A & B, 3/F, 4/F, 5/F & Flat A, 6/F, K.I.L. 6642 Rental/own use 10,836* Commercial Short
231 Nathan Road, Kowloon
FUBEREUE 23195212 - 3IEAMBRE - 448 - 5 el =l [GES ]
ERGIEAR
Units A1, A2, A3, A4, A6, A8, A11, A13, N.K.I.LL. 3515 s C, Own use 38,440 Industrial Medium
1/F, Unit A6, 2/F, Unit A4, 8/F & Unit A3, D&F
10/F, Block A, 489-491 Castle Peak Road,
Kowloon
NEESILEA89 E 4015 AE 1B AT ~ A2 - B I H

A3 A4 A6 A8 A1l A13Z 2FBA6Z -
SIEAMERI0OEAIE
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

As at 31 December 2020

FrisEFHE
202012 A31H

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE R Rz BEER EE ik
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(RBFARR)
Hong Kong
BH
Car Ports No. 7 & 22 on G/F, Car Ports No. ~ K.L.L. 10223 Rental/own use ~ N/A Car park Medium
26 & 57 in Basement, Ho On Mansion,
107-109 Austin Road, Kowloon
NERLT@E 107 E 109 T L& TER T R Gy gs)ii TEA B H
2258 R EE s 26 J 57 5%
Car Parking Space No. B162 in Basement, R.P. of K.I.L. 4208  Rental N/A Car park Long
Balwin Court, 154-164 Argyle Street,
Kowloon
BOEEHIS4E 164 FEZHMEBI625% 178 il B &
B
* G/F-3/F, 691-693 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 2444 s AR.P. Rental/own use  9,890* Commercial Medium
& 2444 R.P.
NERBHE691 E 6935 T =318 a8 m EEES s
* 85 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, Lot No. 3640 in Own use 3,255 Commercial Medium
New Territories D.D. 120
MATHATILRK 2 E BH [HES o
* Shop B, G/F, 70-78 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po Town Lot Own use 2,089* Commercial Medium
Tai Po, New Territories No. 28
MRABEBETIOR 785 T BE E)E [GES m
Shop No. 305, G/F, Lok Hin Terrace, Chai Wan Inland Rental 175* Commercial ~ Medium
350 Chai Wan Road, Hong Kong Lot No. 149
BBL2IE 35057 48 A T 30574 78 [EES e
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

As at 31 December 2020

Description

fES

Lot Number

iR

Use

&

FrisEFHE
202012 A31H

Gross
Floor Area

BEEER

Type
ek

Lease
Term

A

Mainland China
KB

Unit 501, Block 4, Meile Village, Rongshan
Community Association, Ronggui Street
Representative Office, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province

BREGLUTIREES EHBREESIL
BREEENAES01E

100100-047

Own use

=

(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFFR)

1,010

Residential

Medium

East of Guangzhu Highway, Licun
Management Zone, Licun District,
Lunjiao Town, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province

BREFHLTIEERGHABNERR
B TRER B A

154077-014

Rental

HE

123,700

Industrial/
commercial

I%/m%

Medium

" Unit No. 1-1, Fulihua Mansion, No. 150
Qinghui Road, Daliang Town, Shunde
District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province

BREFHLTIRERKREBER 1509
EBEAE1HZ

134092-003

Own use

8A

1,906

Commercial

GRS

Medium

16/F, Block B, R&F Yingtai Plaza, Section 2,
No. 100 Huangpu Avenue West,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province
BREBMHAIREHAETE 1005258
BENEZTESBE16E

2310-7-50

Own use

B8R

23,686

Commercial

GRS

Medium

Car Parking Space Nos. 200 and 201,
2nd Basement, R&F Yingtai Plaza,
Section 2, No.100 Huangpu Avenue West,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province
BREBNTRIEEHABA 100528
ENBRESE 28200 201 FE

2310-7-50

Own use

8M

N/A

Car park

Medium
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD
As at 31 December 2020

Description Lot Number

fES iR

Use

&

FrisEFHE
202012 A31H

Gross
Floor Area

BEEER

Type
ek

Lease
Term

A

Mainland China
KB

Unit Nos. 1601-1602, 16/F, Block B, 10501060004-17
Vanmetropolis, No.1 Tangyan Road, High-
tech District, Xian City, Shaanxi Province

BREGE PO % T = 7 R S RE R 1 SR AT P
BB RE16 /8 1601 = 1602 =

Own

BH

use

(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFFR)

5,025

Commercial

[GES

Medium

Car Parking Space No. D010, 1st Basement 10501060004-17
and Car Parking Space No. FO61,
2nd Basement, Vanmetropolis,
No. 1 Tangyan Road, High-tech District,
Xian City, Shaanxi Province
PRPGE PEZ T =0 7 2 FB AE B 1 SRR P2
BBt T 1 EEEDRO0105REAA R
T2 EEEFE 06T REN

Own

B A

use

N/A

TEH

Car park

v

Medium

No. 3 Xinxi 4th Road North, Lunjiao Town, 164084-189
Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province

BERAFHLUTIEERGAAN R4 IR

Own

B

use

583,225

Industrial

T%

Medium

Taiwan

EE

Units 1-2, 7/F, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E. ~ 0568-0000
Rd., Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan, R.O.C.

hERBEESEZSITHEERZREE
1771228

Own

BH

use

6,847

Commercial

[EES

Freehold

KAKRE

Car Parking Space Nos. 132 and 133 in 0568-0000
B5, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E. Rd.,
Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan, R.0.C.
HERBESEZSIMEBERAZREE
21503 N S8 132 } 133 5REEfL

Own

BH

use

N/A

Car park

B

Freehold

KAKRE

Location of branches
DITHE

Saleable area
ERAERE
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Financial Calendar

Announcement of 2020 interim results:

2020 interim dividend payment:

Announcement of 2020 annual results:

Closure of register of members for
annual general meeting:

Annual general meeting:
Closure of register of members for
final dividend and

special final dividend:

2020 final dividend and special
final dividend payment:

Share Information

Stock code on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited:

Board lot size:

Bermuda Principal Share Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

4th floor North
Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Telephone:  +852 2980-1333
Facsimile: +852 2810-8185

27 August 2020

24 September 2020

25 March 2021

28 May to 2 June 2021
(both dates inclusive)

2 June 2021

8 June to 10 June 2021

(both dates inclusive)

21 June 2021

116

1,000 shares

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Investor Relations

Corporate Affairs Department
27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone:  +852 2991-0366
Facsimile: +852 2730-9683
Email: ir@chowsangsang.com

BRERE

Bi% A&
A 2020 F R EIZELE - 202068 A27H

K3 2020 F A AL S - 2020F 9 A 24 H
NH2020F 264 - 20213 A25H

TEPIERMD B 202145 A28 H

B FE Z£6H2H
(BERBEFAD) : (PEEEMX)
fEERBFAD 20216 A2H
TEPER DB 20216 A8H
BRFECKREPKE £6A10H
MEFRIRARE) - (BRBEEMX)

32020 FRHIRE 202146 A21H
REFRIRARE. -

ROER
REBBEZHFER 116
RAZBBRE :
SFHEEL - 1,000
ARERMBFEEME

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

ERRMBFRETLIE
BEXFEEAE AT
EHREFRBR1835%

afif 5418

B|a 0 +852 2980-1333

BE :  +8522810-8185

B - is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

REERE

PEREBH

BERENERDE

KERENGR 2718

B ah 0 +852 2991-0366

BE : +852 2730-9683

EH : ir@chowsangsang.com
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